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ACB   Automated Clearing Bureau 

AGSA  Auditor General-South Africa  

AOD s  Acknowledgement of Debts 

BPR   Business Process Reengineering 

BCP   Business Continuity Plan 

CEO   Chief Executive Officer  

CSG   Child Support Grant 

CVM   Contract and Vendor Management 

DHA   Department of Home Affairs 

DRP         Disaster Recovery Plan 

DSD   Department of Social Development 

EC    Eastern Cape 

EM   Executive Manager 

ERP   Enterprise Resource Plan 

EXCO  Executive Management Committee 

FS   Free State  

GEPF  Government Employees Pension Fund 

GIAMA  Government Immovable Asset Management    

        Act, 2007 

GM   General Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

GRAP  Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

GSSC  Gauteng Shared Services Centre 

HCM  Human Capital Management 

ICT   Information and Communication Technology 

ICROP  Integrated Community Registration Outreach   

              Programme 

IGAP  Improved Grant Administration Process 

IT        Information Technology 

LAN   Local Area Network 

MANCO Management Committee 

MIS   Management Information System 

MoU   Memorandum of Understanding 

MTEF  Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

MTSF  Medium Term Strategic Framework 

NW   North West 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACRONYMS & ABBREVIATIONS 



3 

 

 

 

OAG    Old Age Grant 

PDSD   Provincial Departments of Social                

     Development 

PERSAL  Personnel and Salary System 

PFMA   Public Finance Management Act (Act no. 1 of 

     1999) 

PMDS   Performance Management Development  

     System 

POS    Points of Sale 

SASSA   South African Social Security Agency (herein 

     referred to as ―The Agency‖) 

SCM    Supply Chain Management 

SIU    Special Investigating Unit 

SITA    State Information Technology Agency  

SLA    Service Level Agreement 

SNBF   SASSA National Bargaining Forum 

SOCPEN  Social Pension  

SONA   State of the Nation Address 

SOP    Standard Operating Procedures 

SRD    Social Relief of Distress 

SUI    Single User Interface 

WAN   Wide Area Network 

ACRONYMS & ABBREVIATIONS 
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In his State of the Nation address, President Zuma   

declared 2011 as the year of action. This signified a 

deep-seated commitment to delivering on the 5 key   

priorities that government had adopted. 

 

This declaration by our President came during a period 

when the world was feeling the effects of the recession 

which brought about previously unimagined levels of 

poverty on a global scale. South Africa was no           

exception and experienced high levels of poverty    

characterised by shrinking household incomes which 

were inversely proportional to the steep increase in the 

number of social grant beneficiaries. 

 

The ―Diagnostic Overview‖ (December 2010) issued by 

the National Planning Commission explicitly states that 

deep poverty is widespread and constrains human    

development and economic progress. Per capita income 

and employment fell by about 4% and 1 million formal 

and informal jobs were lost between the last quarter of 

2008 and 2009.  

 

The results of numerous studies on the social and    

economic impact of the social security system provides 

evidence that the household impact of social grants are 

developmental in nature. The government’s social    

assistance programme is a vital mechanism of poverty 

alleviation. It is also one of the largest redistributive   

programmes of the government. This is evidenced by 

the fact that the proportion of people living below the 

poverty line was about 53% in 1995 and fell to 48% in 

2008. Notably the distribution of social grants was the 

most important contributor to falling income poverty from 

2000. 

 

I am pleased to note that there are approximately         

14 935 832 million social grant benefits in payment. In 

2006/07 the number of benefits in payment was             

12 015 059 and in 2010/11 it grew to 14 935 832. The 

growth in the number of benefits grew by 36.10 % since 

the establishment of the Agency. Especially pleasing 

was the growth in child support grants by 46.6% since     

establishment. In 2006/07 CSG stood at 7 863 841 and 

presently there are 10 371 950 benefits in payment. The  

OAG grew from 2 195 018 in 2006/07 to 2 678 554 

grants in payment in 2010/11, representing a 22% 

FOREWORD BY THE MINISTER                                                  
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 growth. All of these statistics seek to confirm my view 

that the Agency is fulfilling its mandate to a large extent 

and making a difference in the lives of the poorest of the 

poor. The implementation of social security reforms 

such as the extension of the child support grant to      

children over the age of 14 and equalizing the age of 

eligibility for the old age grant, have no doubt            

contributed to the increase in the grants uptake as 

agreed to by the Polokwane Conference of the Ruling 

Party. 

It is also pleasing to note that the Agency has received 

an unqualified audit report which is a vast improvement 

on its previous audit. It is evident that plans that were 

put in motion to correct previous shortcomings proved 

fruitful.  

 

However, there are still many challenges to be          

addressed by the Agency. Chief among these is the 

management and administration of grants. Throughout 

the value chain from application to beneficiary      

maintenance special attention must be afforded to the 

quality of service delivery. I am referring to a customer 

centric approach in service delivery and a zero          

tolerance to fraud and corruption. This calls for a cadre 

of workers that are ethical and who uphold the principles 

of Batho Pele. The challenge is to improve performance 

within the limited financial resources at the Agency’s 

disposal. The Agency has to learn to do more with less. 

I believe that this Annual Report for 2010/11 fairly       

represents the work of the Agency for the year under 

review. I acknowledge also the contribution of each and 

every individual towards ensuring that the Agency fulfills 

its mandate. 

 

MS B.O.DLAMINI, MP 

Minister of Social Development 

Date: 01/09/2011 
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Overview by the Chief Executive Officer  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The 2010/2011 financial year marked the fifth year 

since the establishment of the Agency. Since its     

inception, the focus has been on the establishment 

and the  strengthening of the Agency’s core business 

and supporting operational systems.  

 

Five years on, the Agency continues to be the beacon 

of hope for almost 10.1 million impoverished people 

who rely mainly on social assistance to survive. 

Through the Agency, Government has made          

considerable strides in preventing extreme poverty 

and improving the lives of the many needy South              

Africans. Of note, the Agency has managed to pay 14 

935 832 social grants benefits by the end of the          

financial year.   

 

Highlights of the Year under Review 

For this reporting period, the priorities of the Agency 

continued to be the following: 

 Customer- care centred benefits administration 

and management system; 

 Improved organisational capacity; and 

 Increased Access to Social Security Services. 

The above mentioned priorities were informed by a 

thorough situational analysis on the state of the        

organisation. These are significant as they              

demonstrate that the Agency cares about its            

beneficiaries.  

 

The mandate of the Agency is to ensure effective and 

efficient administration, management and payment of 

social assistance. The Agency disburses the following 

grant types: Older Persons Grant; War Veteran Grant; 

Disability Grant; Grant-in-Aid; Care Dependency 

Grant; Foster Child Grant and Child Support Grant. 

 

 On 01
 
April 2006, there were only 10 974 076 social 

grants in payment and by March 2011, this number 

increased to almost 15 million grants in payment. A 

notable achievement was the increase on child       

support grants with 10,3 million benefits in payment by 

March 2011 as compared to 7 million in March 2006. 

In addition, there were 512 874 Foster Child Grants 

payments administered by the end of the financial 

year. 
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The Agency has worked tirelessly in improving the 

quality of services to beneficiaries. This has been 

achieved by amongst others, shortening the          

turnaround time in grants administration from          

application to approval of grants, improving access 

for eligible beneficiaries and conditions of payments 

as well as improving beneficiary liaison. Despite 

challenges such as inadequate Information            

Communication Infrastructure (ICT) and office 

space, the Agency has achieved an average           

turnaround time of nine days which is an             

improvement from the previous 21 days for the           

processing of new social grant applications. In         

improving the systems integrity and response time 

on the capturing and verification of grant              

applications, the Agency has also embarked on a 

process of rolling out the new MIS system in eight 

regions with the exception of the Eastern Cape 

which requires proper infrastructure in implementing 

the system. 

 

In effecting efficiencies in the grant payment            

system, the Agency has embarked on a focussed 

drive to reduce costs incurred in the payments of 

grants. By end of March 2011, a total of 4 298 979               

beneficiaries were receiving their benefits through 

the ACBs or banks. This reflects a 22.33% increase 

over the projected annual target of 25%. The cost of 

administering social assistance grants through the 

cash payment contractors has also been reduced to 

R30.53 from R33.52. A saving of almost 9% was 

realised in this regard.  

 

 On human capital, the moratorium on the filling of 

posts and its subsequent implications on service 

delivery had to be balanced against the Agency’s 

commitment to improve access and deliver quality 

services. The Agency had to also contend with the 

high attrition rates which might have compromised 

service delivery levels during the period under        

review. 

 

 A significant development on the labour relations 

front was the launch of the Agency National       

Bargaining Forum (SNBF). This signifies a        

commitment for all parties to work together in a 

formalised relationship in compliance with             

provisions of the Labour Relations Act of 1995. 

 

The Agency’s continued commitment in relentlessly 

uprooting fraud and corruption in the administration 

and payment of grants has yielded positive              

outcomes. Since its inception, the Agency’s           

collaboration with the Special Investigating Unit 

(SIU) has brought dramatic changes in the reduction 

of fraud and corruption. From 2006, the SIU was 

able to prosecute 17 477 people for fraud and        

corruption relating to grants. This includes 2 828 

people prosecuted in the 2010/2011 financial year.  

The KwaZulu-Natal province had the highest           

prosecutions of 5 134. 

 

Over the five year period, the SIU recovered a total 

amount of R84 904 156 with R25 675 420           

recovered during the 2010/2011 financial year.          

During this process, 6,368 people signed            

Acknowledgment of Debts (AODs) valued at       
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  R56, 7 million in repayment of fraudulent grants. 

 

 In reducing fraud and corruption, the Agency            

continues to participate in anti-corruption forums 

driven by the Department of Home Affairs. This        

affords the Agency, an opportunity to be kept 

abreast on anti-corruption efforts including sharing 

its experiences and challenges with other              

stakeholders. The Agency has also successfully      

implemented its integrity model which serves to  

address and monitor irregular practices by both its 

employees and the public. The model focuses on 

validating the eligibility of beneficiaries for social 

grants through life verifications. To this end, a total 

of 132 603 beneficiaries have been verified for        

eligibility and existence and 7 133 were found to be 

fraudulent.  

 

In addressing the plight of vulnerable people who in 

some provinces were mostly affected by floods, the 

Agency implemented a social relief programme 

(Social Relief of Distress) aimed at alleviating          

suffering. 

 

The Agency strives at all times to live up to its       

slogan  ―Paying the right social grant, to the right 

person, at the right time and place - NJALO‖.          

Existing beneficiaries were reviewed to ensure that 

they continue to qualify for the grants that they are 

receiving. This has resulted in 2.06 million              

beneficiaries being notified on reviews, life               

certification and administrative action notices. The 

review process assisted the Agency in identifying 

non- qualifying beneficiaries whose grants have 

been terminated. Investigations are being           

conducted to recover the monies paid in error. 

 

During the year under review, significant progress 

has been made in improving financial management 

and ensuring good corporate governance. The    

financial health of the Agency is on its way to      

recovery. The implementation of the financial      

turnaround and cash stabilisation strategy have   

resulted in the Agency receiving an unqualified   

opinion from the Auditor-General of South Africa 

(AGSA), albeit with emphasis of matters. This is a 

significant improvement given that the Agency     

received a disclaimer of opinion from the AGSA in 

the previous financial year. In addition, the          

turnaround strategy has resulted in the annual     

saving of R463m which effectively reduced the    

accumulated deficit in the financial year. 

 

The Year Ahead 

 

The Social Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No. 13 of 

2004) makes provision for some checks and       

balances to be implemented in ensuring that only 

eligible children  benefit from the programme. This 

is especially relevant to foster child grants as foster 

parents still experience problems in obtaining     

documents confirming that a child is in their care. 

Fortunately, the Agency has since obtained a      

directive to continue with the payments whilst      

resolving the administrative issues.   

Whilst the Agency recognises the challenges related 
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 to the automated core business processes, it cannot 

overlook the importance of a business solution. The 

automated core business project is critical in providing 

a seamless approach to aligning social security           

enrolment, registration, verification and approvals that 

will be credible and accurate. Due to budgetary           

constraints, the implementation process of the            

automated core business has however, been deferred 

to the 2011/2012 financial year.  

 

Over the Medium- Term Expenditure Framework 

(MTEF), the Agency aims to review the current         

payment system and develop a new payment           

strategy. The new payment model must ensure that 

ownership of all payment data and processes is     

maintained. The new system envisaged will reduce            

excessive handling costs, and move beneficiaries from 

the current cash payment system to an effective       

electronic payment system.  

 

Regarding good governance and sound financial    

management, continued efforts will be made to ensure 

that financial management prescripts are strictly     

complied with, including the principles espoused in the 

King III Report on Corporate Governance. The        

implementation of the revised service delivery model 

would also act as a significant milestone in the quest 

for improved service delivery destined to deliver      

efficiency in the overall management of the Agency. 

In conclusion, I wish to thank the Minister and         

Deputy Minister of Social Development for their       

political leadership and support. My thanks also to the    

acting CEO for improving the financial controls and 

business processes of the Agency during his tenure. 

My gratitude also goes to management and staff of the 

Agency for their unwavering support and contribution 

to improved performance for the year under review. 

 

 

 

Ms V Petersen 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date: 28/07/2011 
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The Hon Ms. Bathabile O. Dlamini (MP) 

Minister of Social Development 

Private Bag X 855 

PRETORIA 

0001 

 

Honourable Minister 

 

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 

MARCH 2011 

 

I have the honour in submitting the Annual Report of the 

South African Social Security Agency for the period 

01 April 2010 to 31 March 2011. 

 

 

 

Ms V. Petersen 

Chief Executive Officer 

Date: 28/07/2011 
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 Mandate 

The mandate of the Agency is to ensure the provision 

of comprehensive social security services against       

vulnerability and poverty within the constitutional and 

legislative framework. 

 

Vision 

A comprehensive social security service that assists 

people in being self-sufficient and supporting those in 

need. 

 

Mission 

To manage quality social security services, to eligible 

and potential beneficiaries, effectively and efficiently.  

 

Values 

The Agency, as a public entity, subscribes to values 

that promote democracy and a culture of respect for 

human rights. 

 

 (a) Social Cohesion 

The Agency is committed to building unity and good 

relations amongst its internal and external               

stakeholders.  This will be achieved through the         

promotion of a shared vision, shared values, the           

pursuance of common goals, and management of        

diversity.   

 

(b) Transparency 

As a public institution, the Agency will keep           

stakeholders informed of its decisions and operations. 

It is in this regard  the Agency provides for the right of 

stakeholders and the public to know what is taking 

place with regard to relevant governance matters. The 

Agency also allows diverse views and multiple              

perspectives to influence its policy decisions. 

 

(c) Equity 

The Agency is committed to the fair and impartial      

treatment of all its stakeholders and business partners. 

Equity encompasses the justness of actions that are 

free of favouritism, self-interest, bias or deception.   

  

(d) Integrity 

Integrity refers to basing one’s actions on an internally 

consistent framework of principles.  It implies honesty, 

as well as fair dealings with regards to operations,        

finances and other business of the Agency.  Acting 

with integrity is vital to maintaining public trust. 

 

(e) Confidentiality 

Confidentiality implies ensuring that information is         

accessible only to those authorised to have access to 

it. Confidentiality is based on the principle that certain 

information is privileged and may not be discussed 

with, or divulged to third parties. 
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(f) Customer-care centred approach  

A customer-centred approach to service delivery takes 

the needs of customers into consideration by            

developing user-friendly and high-quality products and 

services. The Agency commits itself to designing social 

security solutions based on customer needs, both       

internally and externally. 

 

Slogan 

The Agency’s slogan is, ―Paying the right social grant, 

to the right person, at the right time and place. 

NJALO!‖ 
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Legislative Mandate 

 

The Agency functions within a legislative mandate 

which governs the way it manages and conducts its 

operations. The following Legislative Acts inform the 

mandate of the Agency: 

 

(a) The Constitution of the Republic of South            

Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996), as amended 

Act No. 108 of 1996 contained in the Constitution of 

the Republic of South Africa, as amended, makes          

provision for everyone to have the right to access          

social security. This includes those who are unable to 

support themselves and their dependants, appropriate 

social assistance. The Act obliges the State to take            

reasonable legislative and other measures, within its 

available resources, to achieve the progressive           

realisation of these rights. 

 

(b) Social Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No.13 of 2004) 

The Social Assistance Act, 2004 provides for the          

rendering of social assistance transfers to qualifying 

persons, a mechanism for the rendering of such         

assistance and the establishment of an inspectorate for 

social assistance. 

 

(c) South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 

(Act No. 9 of 2004) 

The South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 

provides for the establishment of the South African  

Social Security Agency as an agent for the                 

administration and payment of social assistance          

transfers. The Act makes provision for the                

administration and payment of social security by the 

Agency, and the provision of services related and           

connected thereto. 

 

(d) Children’s Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005) 

The Children’s Act, 2005 seeks to promote the            

preservation and strengthening of families to give due 

effect to the constitutional rights of children, such as 

family, parental or appropriate alternative care when 

removed from the family environment; social services; 

protection from maltreatment, neglect, abuse or           

degradation; and ensuring that the best interests of 

children are a primary concern in all relevant matters. 

 

(e) Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 

(Act No. 3 of 2000) 

The Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 

gives effect to the public’s right to administrative action 

that is lawful, reasonable and procedurally fair, and to 

the right to written reasons for administrative action as 

contemplated in Section 33 of the Constitution of the 

Republic of South Africa. The Act also aims to promote 

a good code of administration. 

 

(f) Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 

(Act No. 2 of 2000) 

The Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000             

provides for the constitutional right to access to             

information held by any public or private body that is 

required for the exercise or protection of any rights. 

The Act details the procedures to be followed when 
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making such a request for information held by either a 

public or private body. 

 

(g) Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 

of 1999) as amended 

The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 and its 

amendments make provision for the regulation of         

national and provincial governments’ financial           

management to ensure effective and efficient            

administration of revenue, expenditure, assets and  

liabilities and to secure transparency, accountability 

and sound management. 

 

Other legislation 

Other legislation that regulates the Agency’s activities 

is mentioned below. Owing to its generic nature, i.e. 

being applicable to all government institutions and 

agencies, it is not described in much detail. 

 

(a) Public Service Act, 1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994) 

as amended 

The Public Service Act, 1994 as amended, provides for 

the organisation and administration of the public           

service of the Republic as well as the regulation of the 

conditions of employment, terms of office, discipline, 

retirement and discharge of members of the            

public service. 

 

(b) Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act 

No.75 of 1997) 

The Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 applies 

to all employers and workers. It regulates leave,         

working hours, employment contracts, deductions, pay 

slips and terminations. 

 

(c) Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 

1998) 

The Employment Equity Act, 1998 makes provision for 

the redress of past inequalities in favour of previously 

disadvantaged individuals. It also aims to enhance  

representation in terms of race, gender and disability in 

the work place. 

 

(d) Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995) 

as amended 

The Labour Relations Act, 1995 applies to all workers 

and employers and aims to advance economic          

development, social justice, labour peace and          

democracy in the workplace. 

 

(e) Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 

No. 85 of 1993) 

The Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 aims to 

provide and regulate health and safety at the               

workplace for all workers. 

 

(f) Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 

1998) 

The Skills Development Act, 1998 aims to develop and 

improve the skill levels within the South African           

workforce. 
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(g) Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No. 9 

of 1999) 

The Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 prescribes 

employers’ contributions to the National Skills Fund. 

 

(h) Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act, 

2002 (Act No. 4 of 2002) 

The Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act, 2002 

prescribes how employers are to contribute to the UIF. 



18 

 

 
  



19 

 

 

Part 2 
Information on Predetermined               

Objectives 



20 

 

 
  
2.  INFORMATION ON PREDETERMINED         

 OBJECTIVES 

 

2.1 Overall Performance 

2.1.2 Aim of Appropriation 

The aim of the appropriation is to reduce poverty 

and vulnerability through social security transfers to 

the poorest of the poor. 

  

2.1.3 Summary of Branches 

The Agency organisational structure comprises the 

office of the CEO and seven branches. In addition 

there are nine regional offices established to      

manage social security and provide support to    

service  delivery units. A description of each branch 

is as  follows; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Branch 1: Chief Operations Management 

This branch is responsible for:  

 Providing strategic support to the CEO and 

regional operations. Due to financial         

constraints, the branch has not been fully  

operational during the year under review. 

 

Branch 2: Internal Audit and Risk Management 

This branch is responsible for: 

 Providing internal  audit and risk management 

services. 

Branch 3: Corporate Services 

This branch is responsible for: 

 Effective and efficient management and     

Appropriation Main  

Appropriation 

R000s 

Adjusted  

Appropriation 

R000s 

Actual 
Amount 

Spent 

R000s 

Over/Under  

Expenditure 

R000s  

SASSA 5 631 387 - 5  153 206 462 737 

Responsible Minister Minister for Social Development 

Administering Agency South African Social Security Agency 

Accounting Authority Chief Executive Officer of the South African Social Security Agency 

Table1: Appropriated funds 

2.1.1  Appropriated funds 

The table below details the total revenue and  operating expenditure including finance costs to the Agency 
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 development of human capital; 

 Auxiliary support services; 

 Legal and contract management services; 

and 

 Strategic communication and marketing       

services. 

 

Branch 4: Finance 

This branch is responsible for:  

 Providing financial management services. 

 

Branch 5: Information and Communication 

Technology (ICT) 

This branch is responsible for providing information 

and communication technology services through: 

 Management of special Information and  

Communication Technology (ICT) projects; 

 Managing information for planning,            

operational and management purposes; 

 Developing business solutions to support  

operations in line with the Agency’s             

development standards and principles; 

 Developing and implementing a governance 

model and Information Management System 

and Technology (IMST) architecture; 

 Achieving Operational Excellence in          

optimising ICT systems and processes       

required by business; and 

 Ensuring high availability and high integrity of 

information and systems. 

 

 Branch 6: Grants Management 

This branch is responsible for:  

 Providing a grants administration service and 

ensures operations are integrated within the 

Agency. 

 

Branch 7: Strategy and Business Development 

This branch is responsible for: 

 Developing, researching, supporting and 

providing strategic advice on innovative        

strategies, programmes and mechanisms to 

improve social security administration, service 

delivery and institutional  performance. 

 

2.1.4 Strategic Objective 

The Agency’s main strategic objective is to build a 

high-performance institution by complying with good 

governance principles whilst striving for operational 

excellence through continued and improved service 

delivery to beneficiaries. 

 

2.1.5 Overview of Service Delivery Environment 

2010/11 

In terms of the Social Assistance Act of 2005, the 

mandate of the Agency is to ensure effective and 

efficient administration, management and payment 

of social assistance. The Agency disburses the        

following grant types: Older Persons Grant; War 

Veteran Grant; Disability Grant; Grant-in-Aid; Care 

Dependency Grant; Foster Child Grant and Child 

Support Grant.  
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On
 

01 April 2006, social grants benefits were 

10 974 076 and by March 2011 there were 

14 935 832 benefits in payment. The Agency,        

similar to any other institution, has had to contend 

with a number of eventualities that threatened its 

ability to effectively fulfill its mandate.  

  

The Social Assistance Act, 2004 (Act No. 13 of 

2004), makes provision for some checks and        

balances to be implemented in ensuring that only 

eligible children benefit from the programme. One of 

the critical control measures is ensuring that a court 

order by the Department of Justice is issued to   

confirm that the child is indeed in foster care before 

processing a grant payment. However the Agency 

experienced administrative challenges with respect 

to payment of foster child grant. The difficulty for the 

Agency was obtaining Foster Child Grant             

extension orders where these had expired. This   

emanated from the implementation of the new   

Children’s Act which  requires that these extension 

orders be issued by the Department of Justice.    

Previously, the extension orders were issued by the 

Department of Social  Development in accordance 

with the previous Child Care Act.   

 

The inability of foster parents to obtain correct       

documents resulted in the deferred payment of   

approximately 123 236 of Foster Child Grants.     

The Agency has since obtained a directive to     

continue the payments whilst the administrative  

issues were being resolved.   

 

South Africa experienced heavy rains over the past 

year which caused flooding in some of the           

provinces. The Agency was then identified as one of 

the Government institutions that had to respond to 

the needs of the affected people. This resulted in a 

significant increase in spending on social relief of 

distress. The original allocation for this initiative was 

R143 million and an additional R35 813 600 was   

further allocated to assist with disaster relief. A total 

of R178 813 600 was eventually spent over the 

course of the year resulting in a 98.9% spend. 

 

The Agency strives to ensure payment of the correct 

social grant to the right person, which can only be 

realised through the application of checks and         

balances prescribed by the law. These include     

reviewing existing beneficiaries to ensure that they 

continue to qualify for the grants they are receiving.  

 

 In pursuit of this, the Agency notified 2.06 million 

beneficiaries with regards to reviews, life             

certification and administrative action notices.         

Although the process was successful, some             

beneficiaries did not receive their notification nor did 

they present themselves for a review.  

This unfortunately resulted in the cancellation of 

some grants, which were later re-instated after the             

completion of the verification process on             

compliance. The review process assisted the           

Agency in identifying non- qualifying beneficiaries 

whose grants were terminated. Investigations are 

being conducted to recover the monies paid in error.   

 

Whilst the review and life certificate targets set for 
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2010/11 were achieved, this has not as yet completely 

eliminated larger issues of backlogs and poor records 

keeping. With the implementation of the audit action 

plan, progress has been made and results were          

available in advance to determine the successes and 

failures. This assisted the Agency to put corrective 

measures in place for an efficient and effective              

administration services. 

 

The unfavourable audit report for the 2009/10 financial 

year led to the Agency developing and implementing a 

comprehensive audit action plan. The audit action plan 

was one of the most useful instruments that was        

developed to guide the operations of the Agency from 

skirting on the borders of abstraction and idealism to 

the centeredness of operational efficiency and realism.  

 

The action plan further assisted the Agency in the    

conceptualisation of efficient business and work flow 

processes and implementing quality assurance and 

accountability systems. It began to generate a culture 

of value for money. Both managers and officials began 

taking responsibility and accountability for poor         

performance. It improved monitoring and evaluation 

efforts. Performance became more results based.  

 In its strategic plan 2010/11-2012/13, the Agency  

identified the following three    important Medium-Term 

Expenditure Framework (MTEF) priorities: 

 Customer Care-centered Benefits Administration 

and Management System; 

 Improved Systems Integrity; and 

 Increased Access to Social Security. 

Customer Care-centered Benefits Administration 

and Management System 

Some of the key projects identified under Customer 

Care-Centered Benefits Administration and             

Management System included: 

 Continued implementation of policies on social 

assistance. 

 Improved Grant Application Process; 

 The Agency’s  payment system; 

 Automated core business system; and 

 Disability management. 

Continued Implementation of Policies on Social 

Assistance 

The implementation of the new policy reforms with  

regards to the extension of Child Support Grant (CSG), 

Age Equalisation for Older Persons Grant, Regulation 

11(1) and internal grant reviews are all geared towards 

expanding the Agency’s reach to the most vulnerable 

groups in our society.  

 

The number of social assistance benefits increased 

from 14 057 365 in 2009/10 financial year to               

14 935 832 in 2010/11 financial year. This constitutes 

an increase of 6.2% over the previous financial year. 

The implementation of Regulation 11(1) that allows 

alternative identity application resulted in 9 907 social 

grants being paid out in the 2010/11 financial year. 

The accessibility of CSG is set to improve during the 

next Medium-Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) in 

line with the commitment made by the President,         

during the State of the Nation Address (SONA), 2011. 
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The commitment by the President was to  phase in 

the extension of the CSG to cover eligible children 

under the age of 18 years.  

 

 



25 

 

 

Grant type/

Period 

2005/06  2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 

Old Age 2 146 344 2 195 018 2 229 550 2 390 543 2 546 657 2 678 554 

War Veteran 2 817 2 340 1 924 1 500 1 216 958 

Disability 1 315 143 1 422 808 1 408 456 1 286 883 1 264 477 1 200 898 

Grant-in-Aid 26 960 31 918 37 343 46 069 53 237 58 413 

Foster Child 317 434 400 503 454 199 474 759 510 760 512 874 

Care       

Dependency 

90 112 98 631 102 292 107 065 110 731 112 185 

Child      

Support 

7 075 266 7 863 841 8 189 975 8 765 354 9 570 287 10 371 950 

Total 10 974 076 12 015 059 12 423 739 13 072 173 14 057 365 14 935 832 

Annual 

Growth 

  9% 3.40% 5.20% 7.50% 6.20% 

Table 2: Number of grant benefits and percentage growth over a five year period by grant type  

Social Grants Trends 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 2 indicates that in 2006/7 financial year; social 

grants increased by 9%, then 3.4% in 2007/08, 

5.2% in 2008/09, 7.5% in 2009/10 and 6.2% in 

2010/11.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The number of Child Support Grant benefits was   

10 371 950 in March 2011 compared to 7 075 266 

in March 2006. Old Age Grant increased steadily 

over the years, whilst the Disability Grant has been             

decreasing since 2008/09 financial year as a result 

of reviews. 
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Table 3 shows that all grants benefits uptake has      

increased with the exception of War Veteran Grant 

which decreased by 21.2%, and the Disability Grant 

which decreased by 5.0% over the period under review.  

 

 

The Child Support Grant increased by 8.4%, Old Age 

Grant by 5.2% and Care Dependency Grant increased 

by 1.3%. Foster Child Grant had the lowest growth of 

0.4%. 

Grant type/Period 2009/10 2010/11 Difference % growth 

Old Age 2 546 657 2 678 554 131 897 5.2% 

War Veteran 1 216 958 -258 -21.2% 

Disability 1 264 477 1 200 898 -63 579 -5.0% 

Grant in Aid 53 237 58 413 5 176 9.7% 

Foster Child 510 760 512 874 2 114 0.4% 

Care Dependency 110 731 112 185 1 454 1.3% 

Child Support 9 570 287 10 371 950 801 663 8.4% 

Total 14 057 365 14 935 832 878 467 6.2% 

Table 3: Number of grant benefits and growth rates (2009/10 vs 2010/11) 
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The Agency’s Payment System 

Grant payments are still largely cash-based. Effective 

and efficient alternative payment channels are being 

explored. Joint ventures will be entered into with        

National Treasury to conduct a detailed analysis in  

identifying preferred payment options. This process will 

result in the possibility of exploring short term cash        

payment contracts whilst the medium and longer term 

options are being considered. 

 

The Agency has continued to make notable service  

delivery improvements in its administration and        

management of social grants. During the period under 

review, the Agency has ensured regular payment on all 

benefits. This was achieved with a reduced cost of         

distribution of benefits by about five hundred million 

rand (R500m) as compared to the previous costs        

incurred by the Agency. 

 

Over the MTEF period, the Agency aims to review the 

current payment system and develop a new payment 

strategy. In the long-term, the Agency envisages a          

payment model that will ensure that ownership is       

retained on all payment data and processes.  Payment 

channels will include among others, the formal financial 

services infrastructure, cell phone banking, points of 

sale (PoS) systems and pre-paid smart cards. The        

payment systems envisaged will reduce the excessive 

handling costs, and at the same time move beneficiaries 

Table 4: Number of grant benefits by grant type and region as at 31 March 2011 

Region/

Grant type 

OAG WVG DG GIA FCG CDG CSG Total 

EC 487 067 129 194 224 7 418 108 389 18 417 1 769 949 2 585 593 

FS 161 848 21 95 863 941 43 764 4 925 583 524 890 886 

GP 350 881 219 124 150 1 006 59 477 13 649 1 276 109 1 825 491 

KZN 560 787 140 331 637 25 687 134 181 34 377 2 623 772 3 710 581 

LP 404 739 79 98 715 6 885 54 701 12 650 1 584 855 2 162 624 

MP 183 288 41 72 267 1 487 27 366 6 050 806 581 1 097 080 

NW 229 320 33 86 540 2 782 41 405 8 668 752 026 1 120 774 

NC 70 458 41 47 756 3 739 14 999 4 094 246 233 387 320 

WC 230 166 255 149 746 8 468 28 592 9 355 728 901 1 155 483 

Total 2 678 554 958 1 200 898 58 413 512 874 112 185 10 371 950 14 935 832 

Table 4 shows that KwaZulu-Natal had the highest      

number of grant benefits (3 710 581), followed by         

Eastern Cape (2 585 593), and Limpopo (2 162 624). 

Northern Cape had the lowest number of grant           

benefits at 387 320.  

CSG accounts for the largest number of grant benefits 

at 10 371 950, followed by Old Age Grant at 2 678 554 

and Disability Grant at 1 200 898 benefits. War         

Veteran Grant at 958 represented the lowest number 

of grant  benefits. 
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  from the current cash payment system to an effective 

electronic payment system.  

 

Significant progress was made on migration of           

beneficiaries from cash payment to Automated Clearing 

Bureau (ACB). In the year under review, a total of 

47.33% of payments were made through ACBs or 

banks  translating into a 16.08% increase. The cost of           

administering social assistance grants through the cash 

payment contractors was reduced to R30.53 from 

R33.52 resulting in a saving of almost 9%. 

 

Automated Core Business System 

Improved Grant Application Process (IGAP) 

A key initiative in improving service delivery was the 

implementation of an Improved Grant Application        

Process (IGAP) intended to reduce the turnaround time 

of social grant applications. The ultimate goal is to         

reduce the turnaround time to one day which was        

realised in one of the districts in the Free State.  

 

Despite the challenges on inadequate Information  

Communication Infrastructure (ICT) and office space, 

the Agency has achieved on average a turnaround time 

of nine days, which is an improvement from the        

previous 21 days for processing of new social grant  

applications.  

 

This was made possible by the implementation of a 

three step model comprising of immediate capturing and 

verification of applications on-site, followed by the        

issuing of a letter on the outcome to the applicant before 

leaving the Agency offices. KwaZulu-Natal and Gauteng 

regions recorded the highest number of social grants 

applications processed within 30 days whilst the        

Northern Cape recorded the lowest number of          

applications processed within the same period. In the 

2011/12 financial period, an analysis will be conducted 

on the existing system and processes will be put in 

place to identify areas for improvement in service       

delivery. 

 

Disability Management 

The Disability Management Model was developed with 

the aim of standardising the medical assessment        

processes in all the regions. The Agency sets to 

achieve its target by implementing six prioritised        

elements of the Disability Assessment Model in three 

regions. These include; 

 Gate keeping and a national booking procedure; 

 Medical assessment processes; 

 Medical form management; 

 Claims management; 

 Contract management; and 

 Training and development. 

 

The Agency has implemented gate-keeping measures 

to enforce the three month waiting period for                

reassessment in line with the validity period of a      

completed medical assessment report. In ensuring 

speedy and appropriate assessment of applicants, the 

Agency entered into Service Level Agreements (SLAs) 

with independent doctors and  management companies 
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to conduct disability assessments in all the regions. The 

Agency has also entered into Memorandum of         

Understandings (MOUs) with some of the Provincial 

Health Departments for assistance in conducting      

disability assessments.  

 

During the 2010/11 financial year, the Agency managed 

to undertake 112 363 medical review assessments 

against a target of 298 752 over the MTEF. All doctors 

contracted to the Agency were trained and accredited 

by the Agency to conduct disability medical                  

assessments. In addition, the Agency implemented the 

standardised medical assessment forms in all regions, 

excluding the Eastern Cape as the serialised medical 

forms were not in sync with the MIS workflow medical 

form issuance system. The Agency continues to moni-

tor and evaluate the effectiveness of the prioritised        

elements of the disability management model.  

 

Improved Systems Integrity 

This priority is intended to transform the Agency’s     

culture and enhance people capabilities. The key        

projects under this priority were the following: 

 

 Change Management (Organisational Culture 

Reform); 

 Institutional Configuration; 

 Integrity Model; and 

 Human Capital Management Reform.  

 

Change Management (Organisational Culture         

Reform) 

The Agency’s focus for the year under review was to 

perfect the services it renders to its beneficiaries. This 

requires improved skills, competencies and improved 

professional conduct.  A number of initiatives were then 

introduced in an endeavour to improve the attitude of 

staff members towards their work and clients.  

 

The ethics audit conducted within the Agency revealed 

a significant decrease in the number of grievances        

relating to job descriptions and performance            

management including staff development. The Agency 

has made progress in inculcating the understanding 

between performance expectation and actual             

performance. In addition, the ethics training was also 

provided to 3 165 staff members across the regions. 

The training served to communicate the vision, mission 

and expected conduct as well as the responsibility of 

staff members to report incidents of breach of the Code 

of Conduct and Ethics.   

      

Integrity Model implemented 

The nature of the Agency’s business which involves 

cash payment to beneficiaries, positions it as a possible 

target for fraud and corruption. The Agency has        

realised that proactive measures are the best way to 

fight fraud and corruption in the  process of grants     

administration. The integrity model therefore seeks to 

address weaknesses that lead to the Agency being 

susceptible to irregular practices by both its employees 

and the public.  
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 This model introduces a paradigm shift, from focusing 

on detection and investigations to validation of the     

eligibility of beneficiaries for social grants including life 

verification and to confirm the existence of the            

beneficiaries. To this end, a total of 132 603              

beneficiaries were verified for eligibility and existence, 

with a total of 7 133 found to be fraudulent.  

 

The Agency, through the Special Investigations Unit 

(SIU) continued with investigating and prosecuting           

persons found to have defrauded the system. A total of 

2 828 persons were brought before the courts in the 

year under review bringing the total conviction to 17 477 

since the inception of the project in June 2005. In     

addition, 6 368 people have signed AODs valued at 

R56. 7m in repayment of fraudulent grants. 

 

 The collaboration between the Agency and the        

Department of Home Affairs including law enforcement 

agencies has been instrumental in identifying            

fraudulent grants and ensuring that perpetrators face 

the consequences of their actions. 

 

The Agency has acknowledged the importance of         

identifying threats that may have an impact on its ability 

to achieve set strategic goals. The Agency’s priority was 

to develop alternative plans should its services be          

interrupted. Subsequently, the plans on the information 

communication and technology projects including the 

facilities disaster recovery and business continuity plans 

have been approved. The integrated business continuity 

plan that addresses all other critical service continuity 

elements will be developed in the next financial year.  

Legal Services Model Implemented  

The Agency has through the implementation of the         

Legal Services Model drafted and vetted 101 contracts 

and Service Level Agreements in accordance with         

processes contained in the Framework for Contract 

Management. In addition, the Agency has managed to 

reduce the number of litigation matters from 2 735 to    

1 944 during the 2010/11 financial year.  Liability costs 

on litigation matters was also reduced from                        

R 43 254 321.12 to R 12 164 381.08 in the reporting 

period. 

 

However, there are still some challenges that need to 

be addressed. These include the lack of human          

capacity in the Contract Management Unit to advise on 

proper management of contracts, giving rise to poorly 

managed contracts. There are also pending grant           

litigation matters emanating from non-compliance in 

particular with the Promotion of Administrative Justice 

Act, 2000 (Act No 3 of 2000) that still needs to be       

resolved. Delayed referral on letters of demands and 

lack of information on the latter prevent the Agency from 

timeously addressing the legal demands launched 

against it. 
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Table 5 depicts a drop in the total number of litigation 

cases per annum from 61 498 to 1 944, a reduction of 

59 544 litigation cases over the four years (2006/07 – 

2010/11).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This represents a 96.8% reduction in litigation cases. 

KZN had the most number of litigation cases (53 004) 

followed by EC (18 915) over the five year period.  

OFFICE/ YEAR 2006/07 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 Total 

 

Agency’s HO - 12 9 16 37 

EC 17 061 1 133 537 184 18 915 

FS 1 144 702 702 1 2 549 

GP 54 61 - - 115 

KZN 39 539 11 693 886 886 53 004 

LP 1 098 1 255 232 474 3 059 

MP 25 122 122 91 360 

NC 389 - 1 46 436 

NW 2 188 245 195 50 2 678 

WC - 1 60 196 257 

Total no of litigation cases per 

annum 

61 498 15 224 2 744 1 944 81 410 

Table 5: Total number of litigation cases per annum 
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  Human Capital Reforms 

 

Leadership 

The AGSA report for 2009/10, reported weaknesses in 

leadership within the Agency, which contributed to a        

disclaimer audit opinion. Subsequently, the Agency    

focused on providing targeted skills development           

initiatives to enhance the leadership skills in different  

employee categories. This entailed the implementation of 

various leadership programmes which included the 

Emerging Management Development Programme (levels 

1-8), Advanced Management Development Programme 

(levels 9-12), and the Executive Leadership Development 

Programme (levels 13-14).  

 

Performance Management 

The Agency has enhanced its Performance Management 

and Development System (PMDS) in order to improve 

individual performance. A system to review achievement 

against the strategic plan on a quarterly basis was also 

implemented.  

 

Skills Development 

 A staffing analysis on the posts within the Grants            

Administration Value Chain has been conducted. This 

represents 70% of the total employee capacity within the 

entire Agency. The staffing analysis identified service 

delivery requirements and capacity gaps.  

An Integrated Talent Management Strategy focusing  

primarily on workforce optimisation has also been          

developed to serve as an integral part of a broader         

organisational enhancement strategy. 

Increased Access to Social Security 

To increase access and ensure equity to social            

assistance services especially in rural and semi-rural       

areas, the Integrated Community Registration Outreach 

Programme (ICROP) was identified as the key project 

that will assist in the achievement of this objective.  

 

In implementing the ICROP, a total number of  675          

outreach programmes were conducted in 121               

municipalities across the country during the period under 

review. The implemented programmes resulted in the 

registration of 72 425 new beneficiaries through ICROP. 

With such initiatives, there have been an overall gradual 

increase year-on-year in the total number of grants          

applications received.  

 

The implementation of ICROP has not only increased the 

accessibility of social grants but also led to a significant 

increase in SRD assistance to poor households.   

An estimated 3 766 households that experienced undue 

hardships were issued with temporary relief measures in 

form of vouchers, food parcels and assistance with other 

material needs.  

 

The success of ICROP can be attributed to effective  

partnership for integrated service delivery. Regions such 

as the North West also established 11 satellite offices in 

an effort to improve access to the Agency’s  services.    

Despite these achievements, some regions have not   

performed satisfactorily, as the ICROP was not budgeted 

for during the period under review. The regions depended 

on their other operational budgets for the implementation 

of ICROP. 
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 2.1.6 Overview of the Organisational  

         Environment 2010/11 

The 2010/11 financial year marked the fifth year since 

the establishment of the Agency. Since then, the focus 

has been on the consolidation and the strengthening of 

the Agency’s core and supporting operational systems.  

 

The year under review saw changes in the Executive 

Authority responsible for the Social Development         

Portfolio. Minister Molewa was succeeded by Minister 

Dlamini. Both Ministers brought to the Agency diverse 

experiences and expertise which have shaped the    

vision and mission of the Agency.   

 

During the 2010/11 financial year, the Agency was able 

to implement policy changes and legislative          

amendments which included Age Equalisation with   

respect to the Older Persons Grant as well as the     

extension of the Child Support Grant to children up to 

18 years.  

 

In improving the systems integrity and response time on 

the capturing and verification of grant applications, the 

Agency has embarked on a process of rolling out the 

new MIS system in eight regions with the exception of 

the Eastern Cape which requires proper infrastructure in 

implementing the system. The analysis of information 

on MIS in the Eastern Cape is currently a challenge as 

the data is not reliable and tends to change frequently. 

The MIS is not functioning at optimum levels because of 

system related challenges which create pressure by 

increasing backlogs in file capturing. Furthermore, as a 

result of contractual impediments and constraints      

between the State Information Technology Agency 

(SITA) and its supplier, the completion of the MIS     

enhancements before the financial year end were not 

achieved.  

 

The Agency has inherited various Service Level        

Agreements (SLAs) with cash payment contractors from 

the Social Development provincial departments, which 

posed a challenge to the Agency towards              

standardising service delivery. Standardisation of the 

SLAs has eventually been addressed as the Agency 

has managed to sign standardised SLAs with payment   

contractors. These SLAs are expected to bring         

improvements in the grants payment systems.  

 

The Agency has recognised the need to develop a        

payment system focusing on improving efficiencies   

within it. One of the main reasons in the establishment 

of the Agency was to effect cost saving mechanisms in 

the management and administration of the grant       

payments. A payment solution addressing challenges 

on the current cash payment was therefore necessary in 

order to enhance the overall quality of  service rendered 

to the beneficiaries, resulting in cost efficiencies on    

varied expenditure incurred in delivering the service. 

The Agency is in the process of reviewing the current 

payment system.  

Whilst the Agency recognises the challenges related to 

the automated core business process, it cannot         

overlook the importance of the business solution.The 

automated core business project is critical in providing a 

seamless approach to aligning social security               

enrolment, registration, verification and approvals that 
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are credible and accurate. Due to budgetary constraints, 

the implementation process of the automated core   

business has been deferred to the 2011/12 financial 

year.  

 

The implementation of austerity measures also had a 

bearing on the new envisaged innovations and projects. 

The moratorium on the filling of posts still remains a 

major challenge on human resource capacity. This        

consequently had an effect on the performance of the 

Agency. Although the Agency has a staff turnover rate 

of 3.5% which is below the international norm of 5%, 

this situation poses a threat to the functioning of the 

Agency taking into consideration that the vacant posts 

cannot be automatically filled due to further               

organisational reprioritisation and funding challenges. 

 

It is to be noted that the Agency still has a vacancy rate 

of 57.9% as a result of posts not being fully funded. This 

was exacerbated by the lack of notable increase on the 

cost of employee's budget over a period of four financial 

years.  

 

Another interesting development in the year under        

review was the recognition of the Agency’s Bargaining 

Forum as per Resolution 1 of 2006.  

 

As the Agency paves its way into the sixth year of its            

operations, it is expected to continue to uphold its            

constitutional mandate of providing a comprehensive 

social security services against vulnerability and                

poverty. In realising this, the Agency continues to reflect  

and draw experiences from its successes and           

challenges in order to improve its efficiency in the          

overall management, administration and payment of 

social grants. The Agency continues to value the       

integrity of its beneficiaries and still pledges to uproot 

any fraud and corruption relating to administration and 

payment of grants.  

 

2.1.7 Key Policy Developments and Legislative  

changes 

On 16 September 2010, the Social Assistance     

Amendment Act No 5 of 2010 came into effect. This 

was to enable applicants and beneficiaries who        

disagreed with the decision of the Agency to request it 

to reconsider its decision. 

 

An amendment to the Regulations of the Social        

Assistance Act, 2004 was published in the Government     

Gazette No. 34120 No.R232 dated 15 March 2011,  

applicable retrospectively from 01 December 2010. This 

amendment deals with the eligibility of Social Relief of 

Distress to a person who has been affected by a        

disaster as defined in the                                            

Fund-raising Act, 1978 (Act No.107 of 1978) or the                                            

Disaster Management Act, 2002 (Act No.57 of 2002). 

 

2.1.8 The Agency’s Revenue  

 

Collection of the Agency’s Revenue 

The Agency’s revenue is derived from administrative 

costs, sales, user charges, interest and previous year’s 

revenue collected. Over the past three years, collection 

of revenue has steadily increased.  However, the set 

target for 2010/11 was lower than the actual revenue 

collected. This is specifically reflected on the entity   
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 revenue line item. Although the Agency was expecting 

revenue from the skills levy fund, it has however over 

collected on commission on insurance and parking fees. 
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Table 6: Sources of Revenue  

  2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2010/11 % deviation 

 from target 

R Thousand Actual Actual Actual Target Actual   

Revenue             

Tax revenue  -  -  -  -     

Entity revenue 6 661 11 053 13 133 8 369 2 494 -70% 

Sale of goods and services other 

 than capital assets 

1 743  -  - 2460  - -100% 

Of which:             

Admin fees 1 743  -  - 656   -100% 

Commission on insurance 1 743  -  - 651 410 -37% 

Parking fees  -  -  - 5 10 100% 

Sale of waste paper  -  -  -  - 8   

Sale of tender documents             

Sales by market establishments  -  -  -  -     

Other sales  -  -  - 1 804   -100% 

Of which:             

User charges  -  -  - 1 800 6 -100% 

Sales other than user charges  -  -  - 4   -100% 

Entity revenue other than sales 4 918 11 053 13 133 5 909 2 060 -65% 

Fines penalties and forfeits  -  -  -  -     

Gains from  -  -  -  -     

Sales of fixed assets  -  -  -  -     

Adjustments to Fair value of 

financial assets 

 -  -  -  -     

Other  -  -  -  - 6   

Interest, dividends and rent on                
——land 

125 351 277 216   -100% 

Interest 125 351 277 216 121 -44% 

Dividends  -  -  -  -     

Rent on land  -  -  -  -     

Unclassified revenue 4 793 10 702 12 856 5 693   -100% 

Realisation of Deferred               
———-income other than transfers 

 -  -  -  -     

Other non tax revenue 4 793 10 144 12 856 5 670 1 933 -66% 

Other Income  - 558  - 23   -100% 
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 2.1.9 The Agency’s Expenditure 

The Agency’s total revenue for the period under  

review which is mainly transfers from Department of 

Social Development including its own revenue, 

amounted to R5, 6 billion while total expenditure 

amounted to R5, 2 billion or 91 % of the budget. 

This leaves a total budget savings of R462,7 million. 

 

The bulk of the administration budget is allocated to 

cash contractors’ fees and this is were the majority 

of the saving is derived. In this regard, the Agency 

during the period under review realised a reduction 

on the expenditure related to the payment of cash 

payment contractors fees. This was as a result of 

negotiations  between the Agency and the           

contractors on fees paid to them for the                

disbursement of grants to    beneficiaries. 

 

At the beginning of the period under review, the 

Agency had an accumulated budget deficit of R884 

million. This results from the budgetary                

constraints experienced by the Agency since the 

2007/08 financial year. In an effort to deal effectively 

with budget constraints, the Agency had to put in 

place measures that ensured efficient spending 

such as scaling down on unnecessary expenditure. 

This was done by continuing to implement cost               

containment measures as part of the broader cash 

stabilisation strategy. This strategy comprises the 

following pillars which are briefly explained          

hereunder: 

 

(i) Implementation of Austerity measures across 

the Agency 

Although cost containment measures were        

implemented, the positive impact and gains that 

would have been derived from implementing the 

measures was negatively impacted upon by          

budget adjustments or funds shifts to items which 

were targeted to derive savings or incur less                 

expenditure such as communication, travel and 

subsistence. Travel and subsistence expenses 

were incurred mainly due to extensive travel arising 

from audit activities. However, it must be noted that 

at the time of allocating the budget to various    

functions and projects within the Agency  careful 

consideration was given to the reality of the scarce 

financial resources which are far outweighed by the 

unlimited needs. Austerity measured played a   

major role in and underpinned  the approach to the 

allocation process. 

 

(ii) Migration of beneficiaries to banks 

with a view to reduce exorbitant          

disbursement fees charged by Cash   

Payment Contractors 

The Agency initiated the process of accelerating 

efficiencies in its operations in particular with the 

disbursement of social grants by encouraging      

beneficiaries to shift to other cost saving payment 

methods.  

In the year under review, a total of 47,33%          

payments were made through ACBs or banks   

whereas during 2009, 31.25% was paid through the 
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  ACBs or banks. This translated into a 16.08 % increase. 

This number is envisaged to increase as beneficiaries, 

especially those residing in urban  areas, are becoming 

more aware of the better option on transacting through 

the banks. The banking infrastructure in rural areas is 

also improving and expanding. 

 

(iii) Recovery of grants monies paid into dormant 

beneficiary accounts 

The aim of this pillar is to recover grant monies from 

beneficiaries who were found ineligible to receive the 

grant. The Agency collaborated with law enforcement 

agencies in ensuring that authority is granted to       

recover these monies. An amount of R106 896.52 was     

recovered from dormant beneficiaries’ accounts. First 

National Bank and Postbank are still to provide data on 

the recoveries. A total of 2000 deceased beneficiaries 

with dormant accounts were identified as being      

overpaid and a process has been initiated to recover 

these  overpayments. 

 

(iv) Business Process Re-engineering 

A tender was issued to source the services of a           

consulting company to assist with this process. It was 

subsequently cancelled due to limitations in the Terms 

of Reference which posed a challenge on the evaluation 

and adjudication process. A new tender will be          

advertised in due course. 

Programmes Appropriated 
for 2010/11 

R000s 

Roll-over 
and           
adjustments 

R000s 

Virement 
R000s 

Total               
Appropriated 

R000s 

Actual      
Expenditure 

R000s 

Variance 

R000s 

Programme1: 
South African    
Social Securi-
ty Agency 

  
  
  
5 631 387 

  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
- 

  
  
  
5 631 387 

  
  
  
5 153 206 

 

 

462 737 

Total 5 631 387 - - 5 631 387 5 153 206 462 737 

Table 7: Expenditure  
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  Deviations from the strategic plan 2010/11 

 iModules not implemented due to financial constraints; 

 IGAP not implemented due to unfinished negotiations with organised labour and budgetary constraints; 

 Integrity policy not approved due to delay in the launch of the bargaining forum; 

 Climate Culture survey not conducted due to budgetary constraints; and 

 Case Management guidelines were not implemented. An executive decision was taken due to resource                

—   constraints case management will be done by DSD and the SASSA will support DSD through provision of data 

Table 12: Key challenges and actions taken/responses 

Key Challenges Action/Response 

 Designing the most appropriate structure for the SASSA  Implement BPR 

  

 Improving Service Delivery  Implement SDM 

 Optimise the SASSA’s Business          
Processes 

 Standardising Grant Payment Systems 

 Improve on cost efficiencies  Development of new Payment Model 
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Report of the Audit Committee 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2011. 

 

Audit Committee Members and Attendance: 

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and meets four times per annum as per its approved 

terms of reference. During the 2010/2011 five Audit Committee meetings were held. 

 

Name of Member Number of Meetings Attended 

Mr. B Mahlangu (Chairperson)  4    

Dr. D P van der Nest 4   

Ms. J Joni 4 

Mr. V Twala 5 

Prof. J. Kleynhans 2 

 

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51(1)(a) of the PFMA 

and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  

The Audit Committee also reports that it has revised and adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit 

committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities 

as contained therein. 

 

The effectiveness of internal control   

The system of internal control was not entirely effective for the year under review, as compliance with prescribed        

policies and procedures were lacking in certain instances.  From the various reports of the Internal Auditors,               

non-compliance was identified that resulted from a breakdown in the functioning of key controls, the most critical           

being in the area of grants administration.  

The Financial Misconduct Board (the committee established to deal with financial irregularities) is functioning. There 

has been a decline in cases of irregular expenditure reported during 2010/2011.The resolution of cases of irregular 

expenditure relating to the 2008/2009 financial year, which is a matter of concern for the committee is being                

addressed and the investigations and recommendations relating thereto are being finalised.   
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The quality of in year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the         

Division of Revenue Act.  

The Audit Committee is of the view that the contents of the monthly and quarterly reports of the Agency are satisfactory.  

However, the quality of reports in terms of reporting non- achievement of certain targets needs to be improved. The  

reasons for non-achievement and actions taken to address non-achievement must be clearly outlined in performance 

reports. Furthermore the Audit Committee has noted with concern that the Auditor-General South Africa concluded that 

sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be provided for the target dealing with grant beneficiaries on SOCPEN. 

Grants beneficiaries were audited by the Auditor-General South Africa based on a statistical sample which revealed a 

projected error of R 891,039,788.09, and this resulted in a qualified audit opinion of the Department of Social             

Development.  Social assistance transfers to households are allocated in the Department of Social Development’s vote; 

however the processes for determining who qualifies for payment and the actual transfer process are managed by  

SASSA.  The Audit Committee will review management feedback on a quarterly basis on the progress made in locating 

all missing beneficiary files and documentation during the 2011/2012 financial year. 

 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the annual financial statements to be included in the annual report 

with the Auditor-General South Africa’s report and the Accounting Authority for submission to the Auditor-General South 

Africa. The Audit Committee has noted the number of adjustments made in respect of prior year figures due to errors 

and omissions made during compiling of the 2009/2010 annual financial statements.   

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s management report and management responses 

thereto as well as the adjustments resulting from the audit. It is encouraging to note that the Auditor-General South         

Africa has issued an unqualified opinion on the annual financial statements of the Agency. However the Audit            

Committee has noted with concern that SASSA is relying on an external service provider to ensure the reasonableness 

of the annual financial statements, due to capacity challenges within the Branch: Finance. A structured plan to ensure 

the up-skilling of internal capacity should be prioritised to address this challenge. The Audit Committee concurs with and 

accepts the Auditor-General South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011. 

The Committee is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements should be accepted and read together 

with the report of the Auditor-General South Africa.  

 

………………………………………… 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

3 August 2010 
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1. GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS  

 

1.1 Key Strategic Priorities: 

 

 Customer Care-centered Benefits Administration and Management System; 

 Improved Systems Integrity; and  

 Increased access to Social Security Services.  

 

1.2 The following projects were undertaken during the 2010-2011 Financial Year, in line with the SASSA           

priorities:  

 

 Continued implementation of policies on social assistance. 

 Migration of beneficiaries from Cash payment to ACBs. 

 Disability Management Model implemented.  

 Management of Beneficiary Files Project. 

 Social Relief of Distress (SRD).  

 The development of the Service Delivery Model. 

 Integrated Community Registration Outreach Programme (ICROP) aimed at improving access to       

services by rural and peri-urban beneficiaries.  

 Review of costing and implementation of the payment arrangements in respect of the new payment    

contractors.  

 Reviews and Life Certification Project. 

 Updated web-based financial projecting module and reporting tool for social assistance. 

 

1.3 During the period under review, the SASSA recorded  the following key achievement  in line with the        

priorities;  

 

 The policy changes on Old Age equalization and extension of the Child Support Grant were successfully    

implemented. A total of 50 085 men aged 60 years are now in receipt of grants for older persons and 841 357 

children aged 15 to 18 are in receipt of the Child support grant.  

 There has been an overall gradual increase in the number of grant benefits over the years. The total number 

of grant benefits increased from 10 974 076 at the end of March 2006 to 14 935 832 by the 31
st
 March 2011, 

indicating a total increase of 36% over the five years period. 

 The turnaround time for processing of new social grant applications has achieved an average turnaround time 

of 9 days, which is an improvement from the previous 21 days. 

 In excess of 1.1million reviews were completed and 600 thousand lapsing of grants concluded. 
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 The SASSA has ensured regular payment of all benefits. The direct cost of the administration of grant        

payments was reduced by approximately R150 million in comparison to the previous financial year.  

 Significant progress was made on migration of beneficiaries from cash payment to ACBs. 47,33% of           

beneficiaries received their grants through the banks and post office. This has recorded a 16,08% increase in 

the number of beneficiaries receiving their grants through the banks and post office. The cost of administering 

social assistance grants through the cash payment contractors was subsequently reduced to R30.53 from 

R33.52, resulting in a saving of almost 9%. 

 Beneficiary bank accounts which had no activity over three consecutive months were identified. Beneficiaries 

were reviewed and a recovery of R9, 596 million is projected.  

 Internal financial controls, procedures, policies and delegations of authority were  reviewed and implemented 

in line with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards to ensure full compliance with 

the legislative frameworks and related prescripts.  

 112 363 medical review assessments conducted against a target of 298 752 over the MTEF. All doctors    

contracted by the SASSA were trained and accredited to conduct disability medical assessments. 

 In terms of systems integrity and response time in the capturing and verification of grant applications, the 

SASSA embarked on a process of rolling out the new MIS system to eight regions. 

 The Integrity Model introduced a paradigm shift from focusing on detection and investigations to validation of 

the eligibility of beneficiaries for social grants to life verification to confirm their existence. A total of 132 603 

beneficiaries were verified for eligibility and existence, and 7 133 of these were found to be fraudulent.  

 A total of 2 828 persons were prosecuted in the year under review bringing the total number to 17 477 since 

the inception of the project in June 2005.  A total of 6 368 people also signed Acknowledgment of Debts 

(AODs) valued at R56,7 million to repay the fraudulently received grants. 

 The annual Internal Audit Coverage Plan for 2010/11 was developed, approved and implemented in the         

period under review.  

 The numbers of litigation matters were reduced from 2 744 (2009/10) to 1 944 during the 2010/11 Financial 

Year. The Cost of liability for litigation matters was reduced from R43 254 321.12 to R12  164 381.08 during 

the 2010/11 financial year. 

 A total of six hundred and seventy five (675) ICROPs were conducted. As a result 72 425 new beneficiaries 

were registered through ICROP. 

 The SASSA recognised the need to develop a payment system focusing on improving efficiencies. The         

SASSA is currently reviewing the current payment system.  

 A Service Delivery Model which provides a framework for the improvement of services was developed and 

approved during the period under review. The Service Delivery Model implementation will enhance the quality 

of the SASSA’s services, improve the business processes, ensure a progressive shift from manual processes 

to automation, and focus on re-skilling staff to optimise productivity and ensure a customer-centric approach 

to service delivery.   
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1.4 Revenue and expenditure  

 

The SASSAs total revenue for the period under review, the bulk of which are transfers from Department of Social 

Development,  amounted to R5, 6 billion while total expenditure amounted to R5,1 billion.  This translates into a 

total saving on budget of R500 million. The saving will have a positive impact on the accumulated deficit which the 

SASSA plans to fund over the MTEF period.  

 

The main contributing factor to the saving was a reduction on the expenditure related to the payment towards cash 

payment contractors. This was as a result of negotiations between the SASSA and the contractors on fees paid to 

them for the disbursement of grants to beneficiaries. 

Since its establishment the SASSA experienced financial and service delivery challenges over the past years           

resulting in the accumulated deficit currently facing it.  

 

The key contributing factors are the following:    

 

(i) Establishment costs  

 

The main aspects remaining on establishment is the existing and continued need for infrastructure and staff        

capacity.  Expansion at both regional, district and local office level also necessitates the enhancement of systems 

to support service delivery improvement.  All of these require significant funding and they have not been optimally 

funded over the past years.  

 

(ii) Shared Services  

 

Some offices, especially at district and local level, still share resources with the Provincial Departments of Social 

Development (PDSD). The shared resources include office accommodation, telephones, office equipment,   

cleaning and security services, etc. This means there is a continued need for the SASSA to pay for these shared 

services.  As the separation process continues, the shared services costs will decrease but the ―establishment‖ 

cost will increase.  
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(iii) Personnel costs  

Although the approved post establishment at the SASSA’s inception was based on a ―norms and standards‖           

exercise which used the grant application to approval process as a basis, it was agreed that only the social         

security (core business) staff were to be ring-fenced and transferred to the SASSA. This agreement did not  

factor in other support functions forming part of the entire value chain. Ultimately, a total of 6 258 staff members 

were transferred to the SASSA with effect from 1 April 2006. This in effect means that additional 2 258 staff 

members, who were not funded in the initial baseline allocation, were transferred.  The result was that the   

baseline allocation could not accommodate costs related to these additional personnel.  

 

(iv) Legal costs  

When the social assistance functions were transferred to the SASSA all assets, liabilities and associated risks 

were also transferred with the function. The liabilities included cumulative legal costs incurred by the PDSD. The 

SASSA inherited 61 498 litigation matters from the PDSD as part of the liabilities. The legal cost liability amounted 

to R125 million at the time. The SASSA had managed to address the backlogs and reduced the number of         

litigation to 1 944 in 2010/11 with a cost liability of R44 million of which R32 million was carried forward from the 

previous financial years (2008/09 – 2009/10). 

In order to effectively deal with the financial challenges and minimise the budget deficit the SASSA continued with 

the cash stabilization strategy implemented in prior year, based on the following pillars: 

 

(a) Implementation of Austerity Measures.  

Implementation of these measures was aimed at curbing unnecessary expenditure and to achieve efficiency in 

our spending. To a greater extent the measures were taken as a guiding principle during the budget                   

apportionment process to an extent that the baseline allocation on certain targeted expenditure items was kept to 

the minimum. However, in certain instances the benefits of implementing austerity measures were negated by 

increased service delivery demands which resulted in further budget pressures. This included an increase in         

travel expenditure resulting from activities related to audits which increased travel to and from regions.            

That notwithstanding, these measures have also contributed positively to the overall budget savings which have 

been realised.  

  

(b) Migration of beneficiaries to banks with a view to reduce exorbitant disbursement fees charged 

by Cash Payment Contractors. 

The bulk of the SASSA’s expenditure on the administration budget goes towards the payments to cash payment          

contractors. This is one area where the SASSA is of the view that significant savings could be realised by         
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encouraging beneficiaries to utilise other cost-effective means of transacting, for example the post banks and    

other banks. In this regard grant beneficiaries were encouraged to follow this route.   

Significant progress was made on migration of beneficiaries from cash payment to ACBs. In the year under      

review, a total of 47,33% of payments were made through ACBs or banks. During the 2009 period, a total of 

31,25%  was paid through ACBs or banks. The latter translating into a 16,08% increase over the previous year. 

This     number is envisaged to increase as beneficiaries, particularly those residing in urban areas, are becoming 

more aware of the better option of transacting through the banks, and also that the banking infrastructure in rural 

areas is improving and expanding. 

Another initiative aimed at realising the much-needed savings is the new payment model to be implemented over 

the next five years. In the meantime a new tender for the payment of grants will be awarded in the new financial 

year. The strategic objective of this tender is to reduce payment costs by, amongst others, promoting electronic 

cash transfer mechanisms. 

 

(c) Recovery of grants monies paid into dormant beneficiary accounts 

The aim of this pillar is to recover the grant moneys where a beneficiary was found to be ineligible. There is      

collaboration with law enforcement agencies with an aim of ensuring that authority is granted to recover these 

monies.  

An amount of R106 896.52 was recovered from dormant beneficiary accounts. A total of 2 000 deceased        

beneficiaries with dormant accounts were identified as being overpaid. 

 

1.5  Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

1.5.1 Irregular Expenditure 

The SASSA recorded irregular expenditure to the amount of R2.5 million in the previous financial year. For the 

period under review an amount R1.5m was reported as irregular expenditure. The total irregular expenditure         

condoned in 2010/11 amounted to R8.8 million, of which R7.5 million relates to prior years from 2007 to 2010.  

 

1.5.2  Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure  

A comprehensive internal investigation under the guidance of the Financial Misconduct Board was commissioned 

to determine the cause and liability for the (R1, 2 million) fruitless and wasteful expenditure on Mobile Trucks in 

the prior year.  The recommendation by the investigating team was approved by the Financial Misconduct Board 

and is in the process of being implemented. In the current year fruitless and wasteful expenditure has been      

reduced to R148 thousand.  
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1.6 RDP Funds  

The RDP funds emanated from Service Level Agreements entered into between respective provinces and            

Payment Contractors. At that time, prior to establishment of the SASSA, the source of the funds were with        

respective Provincial Treasuries.  

The State Law Advisor advised that these funds should be regarded as public funds and also be accounted for in 

accordance with the requirements of the PFMA. However, the legal advice that the SASSA received indicates 

that these are private funds. This is corroborated by the service providers who have always accounted for these 

funds in their books as their own. The discussions with the National Treasury are ongoing to find a common        

solution to this dilemma. 

 

2. SERVICES RENDERED BY THE SASSA  

The SASSA was established in terms of the South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 with the primary 

purpose of being the sole entity responsible for the payment of social grants to over 10 million beneficiaries 

throughout the country for the different grant types, namely;  

- Old Age Grant;  

- War Veterans Grant;  

- Child Support Grant;  

- Care Dependency Grant ;  

- Foster Child Grant;  

- Disability Grant; and  

- Grant-in-Aid;  

 

In addition to the above grant types, the Agency also administers the SRD programme, an intervention aimed at 

providing temporary relief to a family which faces undue hardship. 

 

3. INVENTORIES  

The closing balance for the current year’s inventory is R13, 7 million. The closing balance of inventory for the 

prior year was restated from R24 million to R14 million in line with GRAP 3 – Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors. The SASSA continued to apply the FIFO method of valuing inventory, in line 

with the Accounting Policy. 
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4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS  

The SASSA continued its efforts to enhance good governance as a key to effective and efficient service delivery 

to its beneficiaries. The various internal control processes implemented resulted in the reduction of irregular         

expenditure from R2.6 million in the previous financial year to R1.5 million.  Notwithstanding all the checks and 

balances implemented to ensure a smooth transition from the Government’s legacy systems to the enterprise        

resource planning (ERP) system, challenges were experienced with the implementation of the new system.          

These challenges seriously undermined the SASSA’s intention to ensure smooth migration and maintenance of 

clean accounting performance.    

 

4.1 Shareholder’s Compact (Performance Agreement)  

The Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 requires the Chief           

Executive Officer (CEO) to annually agree with the Executive Authority on the key performance objectives,            

performance indicators as well as targets. In this regard the Minister reviewed and approved the Strategic Plan of 

the SASSA, which outlined the key deliverables and targets for the year and used quarterly reports to monitor 

performance against those targets.  

 

4.2 Internal Audit and the Audit Committee  

The Audit Committee continued to independently provide advice on risk management, internal control and           

governance processes. The effectiveness of the Committee demonstrated through its independent and objective 

state of mind was instrumental in monitoring and providing valuable advice to the SASSA. The internal audit          

reports serve as valuable basis for the Audit Committee to provide appropriate advice. The internal audit function 

was very instrumental in the process of verifying social grants, which consequently identified a significant number 

of fraudulent grants.  This project proved the internal audit function to be a value-adding function that goes beyond 

auditing documents.  

 

4.3 Risk Management  

Risk Management at the SASSA is a process utilised to identify emerging risks that may impact on achievement of 

objectives. The strategic risk assessment was conducted as a norm to identify and confirm strategic and high level 

operational risks. In addition, a risk identification of all strategic projects was conducted to ensure that mitigating 

controls are factored into the project plan. The Risk Management Committee continued its role of ensuring that a 

risk management strategy is developed. To this end, the disaster recovery and business continuity plans were  

developed to ensure continuity of services in the event of a disaster occurring.  The implementation of these plans, 

however, revealed a number of shortcomings and thus need to be revised.  
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4.4 Compliance and Fraud Management  

The social assistance cash transfers to beneficiaries continued to render the SASSA vulnerable to fraud and            

corruption. The reactive approach adopted by the SASSA in its fight against fraud and corruption over the years, 

has proven not to be effective. The strategy predominantly focused on external factors i.e. fraud committed by 

beneficiaries without linking the fraudulent activities to the SASSA’s personnel. To address the challenge of            

personnel involvement in social grants fraud and corruption, the SASSA conducted an ethics audit and ethics        

survey to understand the prevailing culture. The results of the audit and survey were used to develop an ethics        

programme, which outlines the critical interventions necessary to regulate the conduct of personnel.  

 

The SASSA changed its approach towards social grants fraud to a more proactive fraud detection approach. A 

mass verification process was undertaken to verify the validity of grants as well as the existence of social grants 

beneficiaries. The project proved to be more effective as it enabled the SASSA to identify fraudulent grants that 

would never have been identified through the data interrogation detection approach. This resulted in a preventative 

saving of millions of rands if the SASSA had continued to pay those grants. The process also enabled the SASSA 

to link the fraudulent grants to its own employees, who were subsequently dismissed. 

 

4.5 Code of Conduct and Ethics  

The SASSA, during the reporting period, undertook a review of its Code of Conduct and Ethics to determine its 

effectiveness in regulating the behaviour of staff. The review revealed a number of weaknesses that might prevent 

the SASSA from achieving the objectives of the Code. Consequently, the Integrity Policy was developed as a   

stop-gap mechanism to address all weaknesses identified in all the other policies that aim to regulate the conduct 

of staff. These include, the Financial Disclosure Framework, the Gift Policy etc. 

 

4.6 Delegations of authority  

The SASSA revised and approved its delegation of authority to empower management to execute its              

management functions. The delegations deal with, amongst others, approvals for budgets and payments,         

appointment of staff, and the acquisition of goods and services. They also define the different authorisation levels 

in relation to organisational positions. Relevant internal controls were also implemented to ensure compliance 

with the delegations.  

 

4.7 Employee participation and representation  

The SASSA in line with its values, strived to enhance employee participation in decisions that affect its            
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workforce. To this end, the SASSAs Bargaining Forum was established and launched to create a platform for 

engagement on labour relation matters. The agreement was signed with all labour representatives to agree on 

rules of engagement.    

 

4.8 Governance structures  

Regular dialogue is important to share ideas, communicate plans as well as account for agreed upon targets. To 

facilitate this, a formal structure was established between the Ministry of Social Development, the Department of 

Social Development (DSD), the National Development Agency (NDA) and the SASSA. The meetings were held at 

least quarterly to facilitate information sharing, identification of areas of cooperation and accounting for agreed  

upon targets.  

 

The SASSA has established formal governance structures to facilitate communication and informed decision-

making. The Executive Management Committee (EXCO) is the highest decision making structure, whose primary 

responsibility is to make policy pronunciations on all matters of the SASSA. The SASSA recognised the            

importance of consultation on issues relating to implementation of policy. Another structure, referred to as the 

Management Committee (MANCO) was therefore established to consult on policy implementation matters. A  

number of other structures were also operational to facilitate communication between head office and the              

SASSAs regional offices.  

 

5. DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES OR ACTIVITIES TO BE DISCONTINUED  

No significant portion of the SASSA’s operations was discontinued during the year under review. 

 

 

6. ASSET MANAGEMENT  

The asset management policy was reviewed to comply with GRAP standards. The value of Intangible assets   

increased in the current year due to a reassessment of the capitalised costs of intangible assets, the cost has 

been increased by an estimated 67 %, from R41 million to R105 million which was recorded for the prior year   

expenditure. 

Newly acquired assets were added in the fixed asset register. The SASSA has implemented the GRAP standards 

to ensure that assets are maintained to a desired level of service. The internal controls in compliance with the  

asset management policy for the period under review were  implemented.  The SASSA embarked on a massive 

half year and annual asset verification project for the period under review. Lost and stolen assets were retired 

from the system in the period in which the loss occurred or over to the correct accounting period. 
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            The valuation of the Limpopo land and buildings has been completed and the values as per valuer’s report are as    

—          follows: 

    

  

      The SASSA is in the process of obtaining title deeds for the land, since the land in which the buildings were made        

      belonged to tribal authorities and were donated by tribal leaders. 

 

7. SOCIAL RELIEF DISTRESS (SRD)  

Expenditure on social relief of distress for the 2010/11 financial year amounted to R178 813 600 million, which  

constituted 98,9% of the budget.  The original budget of R143 million was increased by R35,8 million to assist 

with the disaster relief and flood victims, bringing the total budget to R178 million.  A total amount of R24 million 

was spent specifically on disaster relief. Condonement was obtained from the Director General, National         

Department of Social Development for the Western Cape to provide immediate relief in times of disaster.        

Approximately 161  647 people benefited from SRD and disaster relief during the 2010/11 financial year. 

OFFICE NAME LAND BUILDING TOTAL VALUE 

Nkiditlana Service Point 188 000.00 4 306 547.00 4 494 547.00 

Leeuwfontein Service Point 45 450.00 4 507 263.00 4 552 713.00 

Musina Local Office 42 000.00 4 893 765.00 4 935 765.00 

Makwarela Gov complex 100 000.00 12 792 766.00 12 892 766.00 

Maraba Local Office 300 000.00 4 800 307.00 5 100 307.00 

Waterberg District Office  500 000.00 13 604 157.00 14 104 157.00 

Manganeng Service Point 445 000.00 4 259 495.00 4 704 495.00 

Mopani District Office 520 000.00 15 581 015.00 16 101 015.00 

Vhembe District Office 144 000.00 11 292 494.00 11 436 494.00 

Thabazimbi Sub-District           

Office  

165 000.00 12 646 616.00 12 811 616.00 

Makhudu Thamaga 4 853 453.00 242 000.00 5 095 453.00 

SUBTOTAL 88 926 425.00  7 302 903.00 96 229 328.00        
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8. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION  

The SASSA is currently using a manual system for collating and compiling performance reports. The Corporate 

Strategic and Operational Planning Department is responsible for the production of the SASSAs quarterly        

performance reports that are submitted to the Minister.  

Performance information for the year ended 31 March 2011 was compiled through consolidating information       

contained in a variety of reports produced on a quarterly basis by different branches. The quarterly performance 

reports are reviewed, analysed and quality assured before the content can be used for compiling the SASSAs  

report. Verification of achievements is done with individual branch managers.  

 

9. SCOPA RESOLUTIONS  

None.  

 

10. EXEMPTIONS RECEIVED FROM THE NATIONAL TREASURY  

None.  

 

11. APPROVAL  

The Annual Financial Statements set out on page 83 to 112 have been approved by the Accounting Authority  

 

 

Ms. V. Petersen 

Chief Executive Officer 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY 

Date: 28/07/2011 

 



 

 

80 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE SOUTH AFRICAN SOCIAL SECURITY AGENCY 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Introduction 

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South African Social Security Agency, which comprise 

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the statement of financial performance, statement of 

changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 84 to 112.  

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in  

accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) 

and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and the 

South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 (Act No. 9 of 2004), and for such internal control as management 

determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-General’s responsibility  

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and,     

section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010    

issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical   

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement. 

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial          

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the        

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by                      

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

7. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the South     

African Social Security Agency as at 31 March 2011, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 

ended in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of 

South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and the South African Social Security Agency Act, 2004 (Act No. 9 of 2004). 

Emphasis of matters  

8. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters: 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

9. As disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, the Agency has restated various financial statement items due to 

a correction of prior period errors. 

Material impairments 

10. As disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements material impairment of debtors to the amount of R3 774 287 

(2009/10 - R63 922 862) were incurred as a result of a write off of irrecoverable departmental debtors.  The prior year 

impairment was done as part of the restatement of corresponding figures as per paragraph 9 above. 

 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

11. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 

December 2010, I include below my findings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 39 to 61 and        

material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the South African Social Security Agency. 

Predetermined objectives  

 

Reliability of information 

12. The following criterion was used to assess reliability: 

 Validity: Actual reported performance has occurred and pertains to the entity. 

 

13. The following audit finding relates to the above criteria: 
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 For the reported target: grant beneficiaries on SOCPEN, that were material by nature and amount, the validity of the 

reported target could not be established as sufficient appropriate audit evidence and/or relevant source                

documentation could not be provided. Grants beneficiaries were audited based on a statistical sample and it could 

not be confirmed for 1.52% of the sample audited that the beneficiary qualified for the grant.  

 

Compliance with laws and regulations  

14. There are no findings concerning material non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the public entity.  

 

INTERNAL CONTROL 

15. In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 

December 2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 

on the effectiveness of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the significant deficiencies that   

resulted in the finding on the annual performance report and the finding on compliance with laws and regulations  

included in this report. 

 

Financial and performance management 

16. Management did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and         

accurate information is accessible and available to support financial and performance reporting. 

 

 

 

 Pretoria 

31 July 2011 
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Prepayments 
Cash and cash equivalents 

3 
4 
5 
6 

 13,703,212 
 29,632,448 
  5,013,337 
199,042,877 

14,869,401 
17,278,148 
 2,995,918 
 9,320,743 

247,391,874 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 

7 
8 

361,029,997 
 89,546,372 

44,464,210 

407,977,454 
100,186,620 

450,576,369 

Non-Current Assets 
Current Assets 

450,576,369 
247,391,874 

508,164,074 

508,164,074 
 44,464,210 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 
Operating lease liability 
Payables from exchange transactions 
Provisions 
Bank overdraft 

 9 
10 
11 
12 
 6 

697,968,243 552,628,284 

    431,407 
 55,590,986 
455,504,026 
321,876,665 
          - 

  1,424,022 
 57,201,406 
434,618,757 
346,562,087 
310,837,678 

833,403,084   1,150,643,950 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

9 2,102,382 

  2,102,382 
833,403,084 

2,258,410 

     2,258,410 
 1,150,643,950 

Total Liabilities 

Assets 
Liabilities 

835,505,466    1,152,902,360 

 697,968,243        552,628,284 
(835,505,466)     (1,152,902,360) 

Net Assets 

Net Assets 
Accumulated surplus 

(137,537,223)     (600,274,076) 

(137,537,223)  (600,274,076) 
Total Net Assets (137,537,223)     (600,274,076) 
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Figures in Rand Note(s) 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

Revenue 
Government grants & subsidies 
Miscellaneous revenue 
Interest received 

Total Revenue 

13 & 14 
13 & 15 
  17 

5,631,387,000 
    7,441,359 
      228,172 

5,639,056,531 

5,168,896,000 
   12,983,027 
      277,484 

5,182,156,511 

Expenditure 
Personnel 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Finance costs 
Debt impairment 
Repairs and maintenance 
Administrative expenses 

Total Expenditure 

Loss on disposal of assets 
Revenue 
Expenditure 

Surplus (deficit) for the year 

 18 
7&8 
 19 
 20 

(1,623,468,002)    (1,563,502,006) 
   (59,441,213)       (51,535,373) 
    (1,799,360)        (2,151,477) 
    (3,774,287)       (63,922,862) 
   (71,332,267)       (74,012,831) 
(3,393,390,422)    (3,710,148,990) 

(5,153,205,551)    (5,465,273,539) 

   (23,114,127)           (186,218) 
 5,639,056,531      5,182,156,511 
(5,153,205,551)     (5,465,273,539) 

462,736,853 (283,303,246) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Figures in Rand 

Balance at 01 April 2009 
Changes in net assets 
Deficit for the year 

Total changes 

Opening balance as previously reported 
Prior year restatement 

Accumulated 
  surplus 

Total net 
 assets 

(393,303,204)   (393,303,204) 

(490,877,935) 

(490,877,935) 

(884,181,139) 
 283,907,063 

(490,877,935) 

(490,877,935) 

(884,181,139) 
 283,907,063 

Balance at 01 April 2010 as restated 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

Total changes 

(600,274,076)   (600,274,076) 

462,736,853 

462,736,853 

462,736,853 

462,736,853 

Balance at 31 March 2011 (137,537,223)   (137,537,223) 
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Cash Flow Statement 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 
Cash receipts 5,626,474,059 5,133,798,095 

Payments 
Cash paid to suppliers and employees 

Total receipts 
Total payments 
Net cash flows from operating activities 

(5,100,017,631)    (5,044,807,115) 

 5,626,474,059     5,133,798,095 
(5,100,017,631)    (5,044,807,115) 
   526,456,428        88,990,980 

23 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of intangible assets 
Proceeds from sale of assets 
Interest Income 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

7 
7 
8 

(23,317,782) 
          - 
          - 
    140,997 
    228,172 

(22,948,613) 

(16,305,788) 
  1,125,938 
(63,271,124) 
          - 
    277,484 

(78,173,490) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance lease payments 
Finance costs 

Net cash flows from financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 

(1,148,643) 
(1,799,360) 

(2,948,003) 

 500,559,812 
(301,516,935) 

199,042,877 

   337,568 
(2,151,477) 

(1,813,909) 

   9,003,581 
(310,520,516) 

(301,516,935) 
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Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board. 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with the 
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year, unless stated otherwise. 

Comparative information 

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period comparative 
amounts are restated. Where accounting errors have been identified in the current year, the correction is made 
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a 
change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior 
year comparatives are restated accordingly. Details of changes in accounting policy and errors have been provided in the 
notes. 

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

Loans and Receivables 

The agency assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the agency's management makes judgements as to whether there is 
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. 

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and 
industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the 
portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence 
period. 

Provisions 

Provisions are raised and management determined estimates are based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 12. Provisions are measured at management's best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is 
material. 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 

Useful lives and residual values 

The agency re-assesses the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on an annual basis. In re- 
assessing the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment management considers the condition and use 
of the individual assets, to determine the remaining period over which the asset can and will be used. 
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the agency; 
          and 

 the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value and is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 
Land 
Buildings 
Finance lease assets 
Machinery and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor Vehicles 
Office equipment 
IT equipment 
Communication equipment 

Expected useful life 
Indefinite 
20 - 50 years 
Over the lease agreement term 
2 - 15 years 
5 - 15 years 
6 - 10 years 
5 - 15 years 
5 - 15 years 
2 - 15 years 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 

 is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 
           either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or 

 arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate 
           from the agency or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
          flow to the agency; and 

 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

Intangible assets that are acquired at no or nominal cost, are recognised at their fair value as at the date of acquisition, which is 
deemed to be cost. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 

 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 

 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 

 there is an ability to use or sell it. 

 it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential. 

 there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the 
asset. 

 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 
 
 
 
 

 

 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not 
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item 
Application software 
Development costs 

Useful life 
3 - 10 years 
3 - 10 years 
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1.4 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the agency becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

The agency classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 

Inter-departmental claims payable or receivable represent amounts owing in respect of employee transfers between 
government departments. 

Receivables - subsequent measurement 

Receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 

Payables 

Payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate 
method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that 
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially 
and subsequently recorded at fair value and are classified as loans and receivables. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or 
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the agency’s accounting policy for 
borrowing costs. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance 
of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Operating leases - lessor 

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
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1.5 Leases (continued) 
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue. 

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.  

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, then 
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 

 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 

 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

Current replacement cost is the cost the agency incurs to acquire inventories on the reporting date. 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the agency. 

1.7 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly 
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be 
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 
classification. 

Non-current assets held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell. 

A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held for sale, or while it is part of a disposal group 
classified as held for sale. 

Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are recognised in surplus 
or deficit. 
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1.8 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the agency with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. 
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial 
return. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 

 the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the agency; or 

 the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the agency. 
1.9 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the 
service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the agency’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

1.10 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 

 the agency has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
          settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 
to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the agency 
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does 
not exceed the amount of the provision. 
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1.10 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
          - the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
          - the principal locations affected; 
          - the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
           terminated; 
          - the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
          - when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
          plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 

 necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

 not associated with the ongoing activities of the agency 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 25. 

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the agency receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of agency assets yielding interest is recognised when: 

 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the agency, 
          and 

 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 
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1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm’s length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Government grants 

Government grants are recognised as revenue when: 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the agency, 

 the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and 

 to the extent that there has been compliance with any conditions associated with the grant. 
 
The agency assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the basis 
of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of funds. 
Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated 
with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be available for 
qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed program may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of the flow. Revenue 
is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available. 

Conditions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there is no 
condition on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier. 

1.13 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are capitalised to the cost of acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they relate. 

1.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.15 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance 
with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

All expenditure relating to irregular expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the 
year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.16 Budget information 

The financial statements and budget are not presented on the same basis as the financial statements are prepared on accrual 
basis and the budget on cash basis of accounting. A reconciliation between the surplus/(deficit) for the period as per Statement 
of Financial Performance and budgeted surplus/(deficit) is included in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual 
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1.16 Budget information (continued) 
Amounts. 

1.17 Related parties 

The Agency operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the Agency. The agency regards all individuals from the level of Chief Executive Officer and Executive Managers as 
key management per the definition of the financial reporting standard. 

Close family members of key management personnel are considered to be those family members who may be expected to 
influence, or be influenced by key management individuals, in their dealings with the Agency. 

Related party disclosures for transactions between government entities that took place on terms and conditions that are 
considered 'at arms-length' and 'in the ordinary course of business' are not disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 20 - 'Related 
Party Disclosures'. 
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2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards issued but not yet effective 

The following approved Standards of GRAP have been approved and issued by the Accounting Standards Board, but only 
become effective in the future or have not been given an effective date by the Minister of Finance. The Agency has not 
early-adopted any new Standards but has in some cases referred to them for guidance in developing appropriate 
accounting policies in accordance with the requirements of Directive 5: Determining the GRAP Reporting Framework: 

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

This standard becomes effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and will only be formally adopted on that date. 
It determines the requirements and provides additional guidance on how to account for revenue from non-exchange 
transactions. In particular, it requires the entity to recognise revenue from grants received, to the extent that there are no 
further conditions attached to the grant that give rise to an obligation to repay. The key principles established by this 
standard have already been utilised to develop appropriate accounting policies for accounting for non-exchange revenue 
and therefore it is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements when it becomes effective. 

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial Statements 

This standard becomes effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2012. It determines the specific requirements and 
provides additional guidance on how to present a comparison between budgeted and actual amounts in the financial 
statements, as required by GRAP 1. This is expected to add significantly to the level of disclosures currently being provided 
in terms of the interim guidance on minimum budget information from the Accountant General’s Office. 

GRAP 103: Heritage Assets 

This standard becomes effective for periods beginning on or after 1 April 2010 and has not been early adopted. It 
determines requirements for accounting for heritage assets. Heritage assets are defined as assets that have a cultural, 
environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of 
present and future generations. The Agency does not presently hold any such assets and has accounted for all property, 
plant and equipment in accordance with GRAP 17. 

GRAP 21: Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

This standard becomes effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and will only be formally adopted on that date. 
It determines the requirements and provides additional guidance on how to impair non-cash generating assets, being 
assets that are not held to generate any sort of commercial benefit. In particular, it provides guidance on how to determine 
an asset’s recoverable service amount in the absence of any future cash flows. 

The Agency has considered the principles set by this standard in developing its general asset impairment policy and 
therefore does not expect any significant changes in how assets will be accounted for or disclosed when the standard 
becomes effective. 

GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets 

This standard becomes effective for years beginning on or after 1 April 2012 and will not be early adopted. It determines the 
requirements and provides additional guidance on how to impair cash generating assets, being assets that are expected to 
generate a commercial benefit. The standard requires a similar treatment to that currently required by IAS 36, the principles 
of which have already been incorporated into the accounting policies of the Agency in the prior year. As a result, the impact 
of this standard becoming effective is expected to be limited. 

Grap 105: Transfer of Function Between Entities Under common Control 

This standard provides the accounting treatment for transfers of functions between entities under common control and has 
already been referred to for guidance where necessary in developing appropriate accounting policies for the treatment of 
the assets transferred to the Agency from the Department. The standard is only expected to have an impact on the Agency 
in respect of any future transfers of functions. This standard does not yet have an effective date. 
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

GRAP 106: Transfer of Function Between Entities Not Under common Control 

This standard deals with other transfers of functions (i.e. between entities not under common control) and requires the entity 
to measure transferred assets and liabilities at fair value. It is unlikely that the Agency will enter into any such transactions 
in the foreseeable future. This standard does not yet have an effective date. 

GRAP 107: Mergers 

This standard deals with requirements for accounting for a merger between two or more entities, and is unlikely to have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Agency in the foreseeable future. This standard does not yet have an effective 
date. 

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 

Requires additional disclosures on the various segments of the business in a manner that is consistent with the information 
reported internally to management of the entity. The precise impact of this on the financial statements of the Agency is still 
being assessed, but it is expected that this will only result on additional disclosures without affecting the underlying 
accounting. This standard does not yet have an effective date. 

GRAP 25: Employee benefits 

This standard prescribes similar requirements to those in terms of IAS 19: Employee Benefits. Since IAS 19 has been 
applied in developing the current accounting policy, and since there are no post employment benefits, no significant impact 
on the financial statements of the Agency is expected. This standard does not yet have an effective date. 

GRAP 104: Financial Instruments 

This standard will introduce some relatively significant changes when compared to IAS 39, especially in the way financial 
assets are classified and treated. However, the impact on the Agency financial statements is not expected to be significant 
due to the relatively simple types of financial instruments held by the Agency. The precise impact is still being assessed but 
as this standard does not yet have an effective date, there is no intention to early adopt it in the foreseeable future. 

2.2 The following interpretations have also been issued and are expected to have an insignificant impact on the financial 
statements, since they generally reflect the interpretations and principles already established under IFRS Apart from the 
interpretations relating to leases, it is unlikely that the Agency will encounter any of these issues in the normal course of its 
business. 

Preface to Interpretations of the Standards of GRAP 
IGRAP1: Applying the Probability Test on Initial Recognition of Exchange Revenue. 
IGRAP2: Changes in Existing Decommissioning Restoration and Similar Liabilities. 
IGRAP3: Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease. 
IGRAP4: Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds. 
IGRAP5: Applying the Restatement Approach under the Standard of GRAP on Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 
Economies. 
IGRAP6: Loyalty Programmes. 
IGRAP7:The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction. 
IGRAP8: Agreements for the Construction of Assets from Exchange Transactions. 
IGRAP9: Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners. 
IGRAP10: Assets Received from Customers. 
IGRAP11: Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities. 
IGRAP12: Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. 
IGRAP13: Operating Leases – Incentives. 
IGRAP14: Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease IGRAP15 - Revenue - Barter 
Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 
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Figures in Rand 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

3. Inventories 

13,703,212 14,869,401 Stationery and consumables 

4. Receivables from exchange transactions 

Staff debtors 
Payroll third party overpayments 
Inter-departmental claims 
Other debtors 

 7,000,877 
 3,774,287 
15,203,544 
 3,653,740 

29,632,448 

7,346,107 
7,746,613 
1,845,088 
  340,340 

17,278,148 

Receivables pledged as security 

Receivables were not pledged as security for any financial liability. 

Credit quality of receivables 

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to 
historical information about counterparty default rates. 

Fair value of receivables 

Receivables 

The fair value of receivables approximates the carrying amount due to their short term nature. 

5. Prepayments 

 2,995,918 
(2,995,918) 
 5,013,337 

5,013,337 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

        - 
        - 
2,995,918 

2,995,918 

29,632,448 17,278,148 

Prepaid annual consulting, support and subscription fees 
Opening balance 
Amount realised as an expense 
Increase for the year 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Petty Cash 
Bank balances 
Bank overdraft 

     53,668 
198,989,209 
          - 

199,042,877 

Current assets 
Current liabilities 

199,042,877 
          - 

199,042,877 

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand 

The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can 
be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates. 

      50,686 
   9,270,057 
(310,837,678) 

(301,516,935) 

   9,320,743 
(310,837,678) 

(301,516,935) 
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Figures in Rand 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

7. Property, plant and equipment 

2011 

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 
depreciation 

          - 
 (4,387,358) 
(31,162,693) 
(29,349,885) 
 (3,817,581) 
(89,522,549) 
   (408,921) 
(12,771,737) 
 (6,146,940) 

(177,567,664) 

  2,691,450 
 85,523,268 
 83,116,196 
 50,678,716 
  6,018,308 
102,818,674 
  1,296,941 
 20,474,630 
  8,411,814 

361,029,997 

 Cost / 
Valuation 

  2,691,450 
 89,009,859 
121,072,348 
 81,850,985 
 17,480,537 
197,714,282 
  9,309,519 
 25,734,994 
 16,070,632 

560,934,606 

2010 

Accumulated Carrying value 
depreciation 

          - 
 (2,643,761) 
(25,733,398) 
(22,004,211) 
 (6,033,780) 
(76,071,592) 
 (7,078,140) 
 (7,637,824) 
 (5,754,446) 

(152,957,152) 

  2,691,450 
 86,366,098 
 95,338,950 
 59,846,774 
 11,446,757 
121,642,690 
  2,231,379 
 18,097,170 
 10,316,186 

407,977,454 

Land 
Buildings 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
IT equipment 
Finance lease assets 
Machinery and equipment 
Communication equipment 

Total 

  2,691,450 
 89,910,626 
114,278,889 
 80,028,601 
  9,835,889 
192,341,223 
  1,705,862 
 33,246,367 
 14,558,754 

538,597,661 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2011 

 Opening 
 balance 
  2,691,450 
 86,366,098 
 95,338,950 
 59,846,774 
 11,446,757 
121,642,690 
  2,231,379 
 18,097,170 
 10,316,186 

407,977,454 

Pledged as security 

Finance lease assets are pledged as security. 

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 

Finance lease assets 
Communication equipment 

1,296,941 
    4,278 

1,301,219 

Reclassification of categories 
Certain categories of Property Plant and Equipment have been reclassified to enhance fair presentation, none of the 
reclassifications are considered material to warrant individual disclosure of the amounts concerned. 

2,231,379 
   66,482 

2,297,861 

Additions 

         - 
   567,998 
 4,003,323 
         - 
 2,552,905 
10,691,059 
 2,368,303 
 2,025,667 
 1,108,527 

23,317,782 

Disposals                  Re -        Depreciation 
            classification 
         -                -                 - 
         -          417,334      (1,828,162) 
(5,560,310)     (1,846,402)      (8,819,365) 
(1,303,520)        (56,315)      (7,808,223) 
(1,498,451)     (6,474,492)          (8,411) 
(5,885,171)        390,478     (24,020,382) 
(1,547,111)      (343,837)       (1,411,793) 
(2,690,461)      7,995,391       (4,953,137) 
(2,894,398)       (82,157)           (36,344) 

- (48,885,817) 

Total 

  2,691,450 
 85,523,268 
 83,116,196 
 50,678,716 
  6,018,308 
102,818,674 
  1,296,941 
 20,474,630 
  8,411,814 

361,029,997 

Land 
Buildings 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
IT equipment 
Finance lease assets 
Machinery and equipment 
Communication equipment 

(21,379,422) 
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8. Intangible assets 

2011 

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated   Carrying value 
amortisation 

(17,068,725) 89,546,372 

 Cost / 
Valuation 

106,615,097 

2010 

Accumulated   Carrying value 
amortisation 

(6,428,477) 100,186,620 Computer software, internally 
generated 

106,615,097 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2011 

 Opening        Re –          Amortisation 
 Balance     classification 
100,186,620         (84,852)       (10,555,396) 

Total 

89,546,372 Computer software, internally generated 

Pledged as security 

No intangible assets are pledged as security. 

9. Finance lease obligation 

1,878,762 
3,901,753 

 5,780,515 
(3,246,726) 

2,533,789 

3,201,868 
5,461,914 

 8,663,782 
(4,981,350) 

3,682,432 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 

less: future finance charges 

Present value of minimum lease payments 

Present value of minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 

  431,407 
2,102,382 

2,533,789 

1,424,022 
2,258,410 

3,682,432 

2,258,410 
1,424,022 

3,682,432 

Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

2,102,382 
  431,407 

2,533,789 

The average lease term is between 2-5 years and the average effective borrowing rate is linked to the prime rate. Interest rates 
are fixed at the contract date. Some leases have fixed payment terms and other escalate between 8% and 15% per annum. No 
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent. Obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor's title to 
the leased asset. 

The agency did not default on any interest or capital portions on any of the finance leases. 

Finance lease assets are pledged as security. 

10. Operating lease liability (accrual) 

Current liabilities (55,590,986) (57,201,406) 
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11. Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables 
Inter-departmental claims 
Payroll debt 
Accrued expenses 
Other creditors 

266,415,264 
    410,090 
  3,474,927 
185,166,910 
     36,835 

455,504,026 

Fair value of trade and other payables 

Trade payables 
Inter-departmental claims 
Payroll debt 
Accrued expenses 
Other creditors 

266,415,263 
    410,090 
  3,474,927 
185,166,910 
     36,835 

455,504,025 

The fair value of payables approximate the carrying amount due to their short term nature. 

12. Provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions - 2011 

Opening 
Balance 

Provision for service bonus 
Provisions for shared services and legal fees 
Provision for leave pay 
Provision for performance bonus 

 42,766,875 
 83,113,860 
198,273,352 
 22,408,000 

346,562,087 

Additions 

 3,677,153 
31,440,532 
11,993,488 
   670,794 

47,781,967 

 Utilised 
during the 
   year 
          - 
(72,467,389) 
          - 
          - 

(72,467,389) 

Total 

 46,444,028 
 42,087,003 
210,266,840 
 23,078,794 

321,876,665 

248,442,360 
135,798,323 
  4,193,716 
 46,005,358 
    179,000 

434,618,757 

248,442,360 
135,798,323 
  4,193,716 
 46,005,358 
    179,000 

434,618,757 

The provision for service and performance bonuses represents the estimated liability in respect of performance and service 
bonuses to be paid out. 

The provision for leave pay includes both capped and uncapped leave entitlement to employees. The agency policy rate used 
in the calculation for the provision for leave pay is the same for both capped and uncapped entitled leave. 

The provision for shared services and legal fees represents shared services and legal fees incurred by the agency during the 
current year, still outstanding at year end. 

The provisions for contractors is made up of grant services received that is expected to be settled after year end. 
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13. Revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 
Miscellaneous revenue 

5,631,387,000     5,168,896,000 
    7,441,359        12,983,027 

5,638,828,359    5,181,879,027 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows: 
Miscellaneous revenue 

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows: 
Government grants & subsidies 

14. Government grants and subsidies 

Government grant 5,631,387,000    5,168,896,000 

7,441,359 12,983,027 

5,631,387,000    5,168,896,000 

No amount of government grants received during the year was conditional, resulting in the full amount received being 
recognised as revenue. 

15. Miscellaneous revenue 

Miscellaneous revenue consists of various ancillary sources of exchange revenue such as sale of waste paper, sale of tender 
documents and parking receipts (amongst others). 

16. Operating surplus (deficit) 

Operating surplus (deficit) for the year is stated after accounting for the following material items: 

Operating lease charges 
Premises 
Motor vehicles 
Equipment 

173,292,046 
  2,489,958 
  6,310,712 

182,092,716 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation on intangible assets 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Computer expenses 
Consulting and professional fees 
Lease rentals on operating leases 
Security 
Telephone and fax 
Travel - local 
Handling fees 

17. Interest revenue 

Bank interest received 
Interest on other receivables 

  6,961 
221,211 

228,172 

 20,346 
257,138 

277,484 

207,213,463 
(21,811,236) 
  4,933,677 

190,335,904 

  (23,114,127)         (186,218) 
   10,555,396         5,289,537 
   48,885,817       46,245,836 
  254,450,833      273,994,344 
   12,031,082       61,341,047 
  182,092,716      190,335,904 
  102,675,717       96,197,186 
   50,714,296       76,812,989 
   85,062,763       51,175,709 
2,356,584,375    2,682,904,550 

103 



South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 2011   2010 
(Restated) 

18. Employee related costs 

Basic 
Bonus 
Medical aid - company contributions 
UIF 
Leave pay provision charge 
Bursaries 
Bargain council 
Post-employment benefits - Pension - Defined contribution plan 
Overtime payments 
Housing benefits and allowances 
Serviced based remuneration 
Circumstantial compensation 
Capital remuneration 
Non pensionable allowance 

1,122,447,500   1,074,615,792 
  107,469,578     102,116,468 
  102,432,899      89,677,468 

-            654 
   13,206,832      63,992,845 
    2,682,770        1,836,259 
      224,464          228,730 
  139,588,063     131,895,082 
    4,268,612        4,910,445 
   44,009,577      34,470,886 
    1,456,105       1,414,463 
    5,956,444       2,807,321 
    2,152,179       3,335,468 
   77,572,979      52,200,125 

1,623,468,002   1,563,502,006 

19. Finance costs 

Finance charge incurred on finance leases 

20. Debt impairment 

Bad debt expense 

21. Taxation 

No provision has been made for 2011 tax as the Agency is exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA)(i)of the Tax 
Act, 1962. 

22. Auditors' remuneration 

Fees for audit services rendered 

23. Cash generated from operations 

Surplus (deficit) 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss on disposal of assets 
Finance costs - Finance leases 
Interest income 
Debt impairment 
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 
Movements in provisions 
Other non-cash items 
Changes in working capital: 
Inventories 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Prepayments 
Payables from exchange transactions 

462,736,853 

 59,441,213 
 23,114,127 
  1,799,360 
   (228,172) 
  3,774,287 
 (1,610,420) 
(24,685,422) 
 (5,565,138) 

  1,166,189 
(12,354,300) 
 (2,017,419) 
 20,885,270 

526,456,428 

(283,303,246) 

 51,535,373 
    186,218 
  2,151,477 
   (277,484) 
 63,922,862 
 12,362,914 
197,819,237 
 (1,556,366) 

 (8,655,283) 
(46,502,081) 
    980,313 
100,327,046 

88,990,980 

13,574,911 7,463,829 

3,774,287 63,922,862 

1,799,360 2,151,477 
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24. Commitments 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 
- later than five years 

159,393,828 
276,342,493 
 45,968,876 

481,705,197 

172,016,892 
369,090,548 
 86,225,056 

627,332,496 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the agency for certain of its office properties and equipment. Leases 
are negotiated for periods ranging from 12 months to 120 months. The leases escalate on average between 5% and 11%. The 
operating lease liability at the end of the period is R55,590,986 (2010: R57,201,406). 

The agency has capital commitments of R2,014,965 for the forthcoming year and other commitments relating to orders for 
which no goods or services have been received of R146,438,230. 

25. Contingencies 

The Agency has contingencies and the reason for these contingent liabilities are as follows: 

Head Office: 

 Choice Technologies (Pty) Ltd 
         Claim for capital amount resulting from the terms of the contract (IT services) between SASSA and Choice in respect 
          of unpaid services 

Limpopo Province: 

 Diputswa and Disabled Organisation of South Africa 
         Claim for capital amount resulting from the direct deductions effected on members of DDOSA allegedly without their 
        consent 

Northern Cape: 

 J.A Venter (in his personal capacity) 
         Claim for a capital amount resulting from a motor vehicle accident (vicarious liability) 

Total of all contingent liabilities is R452 119 746. 

26. Related parties 

Due to the agency being a National Public Entity, all other entities within the national sphere of government are deemed to be 
related parties. Most notably, the agency is related to the Department of Social Development, the Minister being the agency's 
Executive Authority. 
The agency receives from, and is dependent on the Department of Social Development for funding, and this has been 
disclosed as grant revenue received in note 14. In accordance with IPSAS 20: Related Parties, disclosure of related party 
transactions and balances are only required where these took place on terms that are not usual in the sector or generally 
available to the broader public. 
Inter-departmental claims are generally based on arms length transactions. 
Refer to note 27 for key management emoluments. 
The agency has made provision for services received from other related parties as part of its general accruals and 
consequently considers these transactions to be at arms length. 
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27. Key management emoluments 

An amount of R1,381,882 (2010: R651,871) was paid to the acting CEO for the period 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011. The 
amount relates to a claim received from the Department of Social Development as a secondment to act as CEO of SASSA. 

Executive 

2011 

MJ Mofokeng 
TJ Chauke (Acting REM) 
L Keyise 
SB Links (Acting REM) 
BB Maqetuka 
MM Mogane 
EZ Mvulane 
GT Rees 
GL Roberts 
MT Sibanyoni 
W Terblanche 
SP Yawa 
NCE Ngidi 
ED Dunkerley (Acting REM) 

Emoluments 

668,143 
480,504 
685,027 
487,710 
638,954 
638,954 
593,113 
593,113 
593,113 
593,113 
593,113 
593,113 
103,623 
432,433 

7,694,026 

2010 

EB Makiwane 
MJ Mofokeng 
TJ Chauke (Acting REM) 
L Keyise 
SB Links (Acting REM) 
BB Maqetuka 
MM Mogane 
EZ Mvulane 
NVE Ngidi 
GT Rees 
GL Roberts 
MT Sibanyoni 
W Terblanche 
SP Yawa 

Emoluments 

738,254 
626,366 
452,186 
628,416 
478,946 
603,701 
597,525 
566,807 
483,010 
558,159 
558,159 
558,159 
558,159 
568,487 

7,976,334 

Total Key management emoluments 
Basic Salary 
Bonus and performance 
Travel allowance 
Other benefits 

 Bonus and 
performance 
 payments 

 
      54,991 
      39,548 
      56,381 
      40,141 
      55,218 
      52,589 
      48,816 
      48,816 
      51,257 
      48,816 
      48,816 
      51,257 
      51,812 
      44,734 

693,192 

 Bonus and 
performance 
 payments 
           - 
      51,879 
      37,309 
      53,189 
      37,309 
      52,559 
      49,612 
      23,089 
           - 
      46,053 
      48,486 
      46,053 
      46,053 
      46,053 

537,644 

   Travel      Other benefits 
allowances 

132,000 
 92,000 
 96,000 
 99,228 
239,640 
203,997 
108,000 
 30,000 
  4,166 
 75,996 
 30,000 
178,476 
 40,600 
103,650 

1,433,753 

  Travel 
allowance 

150,000 
132,000 
 96,000 
 96,000 
 99,228 
239,640 
248,052 
 99,000 
203,000 
127,333 
 49,992 
 75,996 
 30,000 
178,476 

1,824,717 

257,750 
375,975 
303,599 
360,941 
133,083 
168,726 
237,982 
315,982 
341,816 
269,986 
315,982 
167,506 
 19,847 
232,978 

3,502,153 

Other benefits 

241,557 
132,493 
 98,006 
182,091 
 46,384 
  4,058 
  4,058 
146,285 
 22,573 
104,653 
184,103 
 70,001 
204,725 
 75,809 

1,516,796 

Total 

1,112,884 
  988,027 
1,141,007 
  988,020 
1,066,895 
1,064,266 
  987,911 
  987,911 
  990,352 
  987,911 
  987,911 
  990,352 
  215,882 
  813,795 

13,323,124 

Total 

1,129,811 
  942,738 
  683,501 
  959,696 
  661,867 
  899,958 
  899,247 
  835,181 
  708,583 
  836,198 
  840,740 
  750,209 
  838,937 
  868,825 

11,855,491 

7,694,026 
  693,192 
1,433,753 
3,502,153 

13,323,124 

7,976,334 
  537,644 
1,824,717 
1,516,796 

11,855,491 

28. Comparative figures 

Certain comparative figures have been restated due to prior period errors. Refer to note 35. 
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29. Risk management 

Liquidity risk 

The agency’s liquidity risk is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The agency manages liquidity risk 
through an ongoing review of future commitments. 

All the payable balances reflected at year end are payable within 30 days. 

Credit risk 

The agency does not sell any goods or charge money for any of its services. Debtors relate to employees that have loans with 
the agency. Management evaluates credit risk relating to debtors on an ongoing basis. 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits and cash equivalents. 

Foreign exchange risk 

The Agency does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. The Agency does not have any foreign account receivables, foreign 
accounts payables or derivative market instruments. 

Price risk 

Due to the nature and extent of the Agency's activities, the Agency is not exposed to price risks. 

30. Going concern 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. Refer to accounting authority 
letter for details. The Agency is established in terms of the South African Social Security Agency Act, No. 9 of 2004 and 
depends on grants from the Department of Social Development. 

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – opening balance 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year 
Transfer to receivables for recovery 

1,923,480 
  148,155 
   (3,033) 

2,068,602 

  694,630 
1,228,850 
        - 

1,923,480 

The committee recommended that all cases will be paid by the agency and recover the money from the responsible officials. 
Reported but not deliberated by Financial Misconduct and Labour Committee. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred by various regional offices and consists mainly of fines, late payment fees and 
cancellation fees. Details of all incidents are recorded in the agency's fruitless and wasteful expenditure register. 

32. Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 
Less: Amounts condoned 

 7,550,849 
 1,550,972 
(8,803,115) 

298,706 

5,031,279 
2,519,570 
        - 

7,550,849 

Irregular expenditure relates mainly to non adherence to procurement and supply chain management policies by various 
regional office's. Examples of non compliance include leasing of office buildings and machinery. Matters of irregular 
expenditure have either been brought forward to the Labour Relations and or the Financial Misconduct board for various steps 
to be taken against the officials involved, and to attempt to recover the money where such expenditure was not subsequently 
condoned. 
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32. Irregular expenditure (continued) 

Details of all incidents are recorded in the agency's irregular expenditure register. 

33. Financial assets by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

2011 

 Loans and 
receivables 
  29,632,448 
 199,042,877 
   5,013,337 

233,688,662 

2010 

 Loans and 
receivables 
  17,278,148 
   9,320,743 
   2,995,918 

29,594,809 

34. Financial liabilities by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

2011 

  Financial 
liabilities at 
 amortised 
    cost 
 455,504,025 
      431,407 

455,935,432 

2010 

  Financial 
liabilities at 
 amortised 
     cost 
 434,618,757 
 310,837,678 
    1,424,022 

746,880,457 

Total 

Total 

Total 

17,278,148 
 9,320,743 
 2,995,918 

29,594,809 

Total 
 29,632,448 
199,042,877 
  5,013,337 

233,688,662 

Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Prepayments 

Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Prepayments 

Payables 
Finance lease obligation 

455,504,025 
    431,407 

455,935,432 

Payables 
Bank overdraft 
Finance lease obligation 

434,618,757 
310,837,678 
  1,424,022 

746,880,457 
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35. Change in accounting policy, correction of prior period errors and restatements 

Note 

Statement of Financial Performance 
for the year ended 31 March 2011 
Revenue 
Operating expenses 
Operating surplus / (deficit) 
Interest received 
Finance costs 
Loss on disposal of assets 

Balance as 
previously 
 reported 

1 
2 
- 
3 
4 
5 

 5,181,751,977 
(5,634,949,482) 
  (453,197,505) 
       277,484 
   (37,957,914) 
             - 

Change in 
accounting 
 policies 

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Prior period 
    error 

Restated 
balance 

    127,050      5,181,879,027 
171,827,420     (5,463,122,062) 
171,954,470      (281,243,035) 

-      277,484 
 35,806,437         (2,151,477) 
   (186,218)           (186,218) 

Surplus / (deficit) 
Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2011 
Assets 
Current assets 
Inventory 
Receivables 
Prepayments 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Total assets 
Liabilities 

- (490,877,935) - 207,574,689 (283,303,246) 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
 - 

24,589,860 
86,506,106 
 8,492,259 
 9,246,678 

399,273,145 
 32,792,984 

- 
- 
- 
- 

- 
- 
- 

 (9,720,459) 
(69,227,958) 
 (5,496,341) 
     74,065 
 8,704,309 
67,393,636 

14,869,401 
17,278,148 
 2,995,918 
 9,320,743 

407,977,454 
100,186,620 

560,901,032 

  1,541,382 
 51,935,121 
159,292,543 
885,363,720 
345,581,090 

(8,272,748) 

    (117,360) 
   5,266,285 
 187,269,544 
(450,744,963) 
 (34,743,412) 

890,095 

552,628,284 

  1,424,022 
 57,201,406 
346,562,087 
434,618,757 
310,837,678 

2,258,410 

Current liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 
Operating lease obligation 
Provisions 
Payables 
Bank overdraft 

Non-current liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

- 
- 
- 
- 

Total liabilities 
Net assets 
Net assets 
Accumulated surplus 

12        1,368,315 
 -  1,445,082,171 
 -  (884,181,139) 

17 
 - 

(884,181,139) 

- 
- 

- 

(292,179,811)   1,152,902,360 
 283,907,063    (600,274,076) 

283,907,063 (600,274,076) 
Total net assets (884,181,139) - 283,907,063 (600,274,076) 

1. Revenue 
Revenue has been restated by R127k due to reclassification of accounts previously classified as expenditure accounts. 

2. Operating expenses 
Operating Expenditure has been restated from R5.6 billion to R5.4 billion, mainly due to reversal of incorrect accruals in the prior year and 
release of certain balance sheet amounts to the income statement such as prepayments. 

3. Interest received 
No restatement of this amount was found to be necessary. 

4. Finance Costs 
Finance costs have been restated from R37 million to R2million, due to recalculation of lease interest and reclassifications between operating 
and finance leases. The recalculation revealed a significant error in the calculation of interest in the prior year. 

5. Loss on disposal of assets 
These losses were incorrectly not recognised in the prior year and were raised accordingly. 

6. Inventory 
Inventories have been restated from R24 million to R14.8 million due to errors in the inventory clearing account in the prior year, the error was 
also due to discrepancies between the inventory count and the inventory clearing account. 

7. Receivables 
Receivables has been restated form R86 million to R17 million, mainly due to impairment of interdepartmental debtors in the prior year. These 
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inter-departmental debtors were never assessed for impairment in the prior year. 

8. Prepayments 
Prepayments have been restated from R8.4 million to R2.9 million due to releasing of prepayments to the income statement in the prior year 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 
This relates to a reclassification of amounts incorrectly mapped to the bank overdraft in the prior year. 

10. Property, plant and equipment 
Property plant and equipment has been restated from R399 million to R407 million due to capitalisation of certain assets which were 
unrecorded in the prior year 

11. Intangible assets 
Intangible assets have been restated from R32.7 million to R100 million due to capitalisation of certain software development costs which were 
omitted in the prior year. These include the ORACLE ERP system and MIS. 

12. Finance lease obligation 
Finance lease obligations were restated due to incomplete recording of finance leases and incorrect classification between operating and 
finance leases. 

13. Operating lease obligation 
Operating lease obligations have been restated form R51.9 million to R57.2 million due straight lining of operating leases and reclassification 
between finance and operating leases. 

14. Provisions 
Provisions have been restated from R159 million to R347 million due to additional provisions for leave pay and shared services that were not 
correctly recorded in the prior year. 

15. Payables 
Payables have been restated from R885 million to R435 million due to duplication of accruals in the prior year. 

16. Bank overdraft 
The Bank overdraft has been restated from R345 million to R310 million due to reallocation of R35 million back to trade payables and other 
expenses. These had been included in the bank clearing account as outstanding payments, which was an error. 

17. Accumulated surplus 
This relates to the net effect of all of the above restatements. 
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36. Reconciliation between budget and actual amounts in Statement of Financial Performance 

Budget on Cash Basis 
Net deficit per Statement of Financial Performance 
Adjusted for: 
Fair value adjustments 
Profit/loss on sale of assets 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Provisions 
Accruals and other 
Variance between budget and actual 
Advertising 
Audit fees 
Bad debts written off 
Bank charges 
Bursaries (employees) 
Catering:departmental activities 
Communication 
Compensation of employees 
Consultants & special services 
Contractors 
Copy cost: photocopier machine 
Courier and delivery services 
Equipment < R5000 
External computer services 
Facilities: property expenses 
Finance charges 
Fruitless expenditure: department vote 
Government motor transport 
Interest paid:overdue accounts 
Invoice price variance 
Legal fees 
Maintenance & repairs 
Operating leases 
Other employee costs 
Other supplies 
Other operating expenses 
SASSA administration fees 
Stationery 
Thefts and losses 
Training and staff development 
Transfer and subsidies 
Travel and subsistence 

Net surplus per revised budget (excluding capital expenditure) 

37. World cup expenditure 

462,736,854 
          - 
          - 
 23,114,127 
 59,441,213 
(24,685,422) 
139,161,552 
          - 
  1,837,565 
    900,184 
 (3,774,287) 
    241,489 
  4,817,660 
  1,781,126 
 (1,766,045) 
 62,305,831 
 13,502,310 
 23,197,103 
    701,928 
  2,218,986 
  5,379,565 
 25,164,155 
    797,935 
 (1,799,360) 
    (11,218) 
    119,324 
        (22) 
 (1,958,761) 
  5,618,076 
 11,037,574 
 29,971,744 
     76,239 
  1,321,260 
  4,767,068 
375,769,008 
 19,815,425 
 (9,200,529) 
  3,345,388 
   (548,508) 
 12,731,757 

1,248,128,294 

For the year ending 31 March 2010, the agency did not incur any World Cup 2010 related expenditure. 

111 



 

South African Social Security Agency 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

38. Statement of gifts, donations and sponsorships received 

Note(s) 
In cash 
W. Samaai 
Various donors 
In Kind 
Client/ staff 
ALLPAY 
Other private organisations 
Social development 
LaFarge Industries South Africa 
 TSS Managed Services 
 Mangalane Du Toit NC 
Various donors 

2011 

      
     - 
     - 
 2,420 
 4,800 
 1,214 
   780 
51,617 
 1,320 
   350 
     - 

62,501 

Note 1 
Food, clothing, toiletries - token of appreciation 

Note 2 
World cup tickets 

Note 3 
Stationery, sweets and nappies 

Note 4 
Gift packs 

Note 5 
31 Wheelchairs 

Note 6 
240 x 340ml drinks 

Note 7 
Christmas Hamper from CPS Social Development Branded Shirt and Beanie 

2010 

      
    50 
30,000 
     - 
     - 
     - 
     - 
     - 
     - 
     - 
30,533 

60,583 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 

112 



 

 

113 



 

 

114 

Part 5 
Human Resource  

Management 



 

 

115 

M
a
in

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

 
A

c
tu

a
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

rs
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

A
c
tu

a
l 

A
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
  
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 g

ra
n
ts

  
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
re

lie
f 

o
f 

d
is

tr
e
s
s
 

          

A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s
 –

 
a
g
e
d

, 
d

is
a
b
le

d
, 

w
a
r 

v
e
te

ra
n
s
, 

c
a
re

 d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

  
 

fo
s
te

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
c
h
ild

re
n
 f

ro
m

 p
o
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 

            

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 r
e
a
c
h
 t

h
e
ir

 6
0

th
 b

ir
th

d
a

y
; 

n
e

w
 c

h
ild

re
n
 b

o
rn

 i
n
to

 p
o

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
; 
  
  

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n
 f

o
s
te

r 
c
a
re

; 
a
d

u
lt
s
 w

h
o
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 a

 
re

s
u
lt
; 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 w

h
o
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
 s

e
v
e
re

 
h
a
rd

s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 a

re
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 p

e
ri
o

d
 

        

T
u
rn

-a
ro

u
n

d
 t
im

e
 o

f 
le

s
s
 t
h
a

n
 3

0
 d

a
y
s

 
1
 3

1
4
 8

5
8
 a

p
p
lic

a
-

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 f
in

a
liz

e
d
 

w
it
h

in
 a

 p
e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

3
0
 

d
a

y
s

 

1
0
0
%

 u
ti
liz

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

lie
f 

o
f 

  
  
 

d
is

tr
e
s
s
 f

u
n
d
s

 

9
9
%

 o
f 

th
e

 a
v
a

ila
b
le

 
a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

R
1
7
8
 8

1
3
 

6
0
0
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
  
 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
  
  
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
z
e
d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
  
  

le
g

is
la

te
d
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 

A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
0
0
,0

0
0
 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 7

8
6
 3

5
6
 

lif
e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 w

e
re

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

2
0
1
0

/1
1
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

T
a
b

le
 1

3
.2

 –
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
tu

a
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
tu

a
l 

A
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s

 
B

e
n

e
fi
c
ia

ri
e
s
 a

t 
p

a
y
 p

o
in

ts
 

A
p
p

lic
a

n
ts

 f
o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

 
w

h
o
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

to
 l
o
d
g

e
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
s

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
a

y
 p

o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

t 

3
 6

3
9
 p

a
y
p

o
in

ts
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 A
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
 3

0
7
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 s
e
rv

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
s
e

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s

 

E
n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 I

z
im

b
iz

o
’s

 a
n

d
 M

in
is

te
ri
a
l 
F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 a

r-
e
a
 w

h
e
re

 I
z
im

b
iz

o
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 
A

ll 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
m

-
b
e
rs

 
6
7
5
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

2
1
 

m
u
n
ic

ip
a
lit

ie
s
 w

it
h
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

7
2
 4

2
5
 n

e
w

 a
p
p

li-
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
. 



 

 

116 

T
a
b

le
 1

3
.3

 –
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
li
v

e
ry

 a
c
c

e
s
s

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 

A
c

c
e

s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

 
A

c
tu

a
l 

A
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
fo

o
tp

ri
n
t 

o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
o
in

ts
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 2

2
1
 l
o
c
a

l 
o
ff

ic
e
s
, 
9
2
3
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 9

 3
2
8

 p
a

y
 p

o
in

ts
 

IC
R

O
P

 
6
7
5
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

2
1
 m

u
n
ic

ip
a

lit
ie

s
 w

it
h
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

7
2
 4

2
5

 n
e

w
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
s
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 –

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 S

A
B

C
 

S
A

S
S

A
/S

A
B

C
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
s
ig

n
e
d

 

B
e
n

e
fi
c
ia

ry
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

T
a
b

le
 1

3
.4

 –
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

o
l 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 T
o

o
l 

A
c
tu

a
l 

A
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

S
o
c
p
e

n
 a

n
d
 M

IS
 

S
o
c
p
e

n
 a

n
d
 M

IS
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l 

M
e
d

ia
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
re

n
d
s

 

T
a
b

le
 1

3
.5

 –
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 

C
o

m
p

la
in

t 
M

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

 
A

c
tu

a
l 

A
c
h

ie
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

C
a
ll 

c
e
n
tr

e
 

6
3
  
7

2
8
 e

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 S
A

S
S

A
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 



 

 

117 

B
ra

n
c
h

 
T

o
ta

l 
V

o
te

d
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
i-

tu
re

 (
R

'0
0
0
) 

C
o

m
p

e
n

s
a
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

T
ra

in
in

g
 E

x
-

p
e
n

d
it

u
re

 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

P
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a
l 

a
n

d
 S

p
e

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

C
o

m
p

e
n

s
a
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

a
s
 p

e
rc

e
n

t 
o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
i-

tu
re

 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
m

-
p

e
n

s
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

E
m

-

p
lo

y
e
e
 (

R
'0

0
0
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
6
6
3
,2

4
7

 
1
4
8
, 

7
9
1

 
1
0
, 
1

8
9

 
1
0
9

 
3
%

 
 7

4
 6

9
9

 
 2

0
2

 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
2
5
7
,4

3
8

 
1
6
1
, 

4
5
6

 
5
8

 
- 

3
%

 
 8

0
 7

6
0

 
 2

1
 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
2
,5

5
2
,3

5
9

 
1
9
6
, 

2
1
4

 
3
6
5

 
- 

4
%

 
 9

9
 0

1
3

 
 6

0
4

 

G
ra

n
ts

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 
1
, 
2
2

4
, 
4

5
8

 
1
,0

3
3
,0

2
8

 
4
1

 
1
0
, 
8

2
9

 
2
0

%
 

 5
1
7
 3

8
0

 
 5

7
7

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
-

ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

3
4
7
,3

9
6

 
4
6
,4

6
5

 
2
2
7

 
- 

1
%

 
 2

3
 2

9
1

 
 3

9
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
8
5
,8

4
0

 
2
0
,8

2
0

 
- 

5
4
, 
6

1
8

 
0
%

 
 1

9
 5

2
9

 
 6

 0
7

9
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 D

e
-

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
2
2
,4

6
8

 
1
6
,6

9
4

 
3
6
2

 
2
, 
9
4

1
 

0
%

 
 8

 3
9

5
 

 3
2

 

T
o

ta
l 

5
,1

5
3
,2

0
6

 
1
,6

2
3
,4

6
8

 
1
1
,2

4
2

 
6
8
,4

9
7

 
3
1
,5

%
 

8
1
5
 5

1
1

 
7
5
5
4

 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
s
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 f

in
a
l 

a
u
d

it
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 (
T

a
b
le

 1
4
.1

) 
a

n
d
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n
d
s
 (

T
a
b
le

 1
4
.2

).
 I

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 i

t 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i

n
d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
s
p
e
n
t 

o
n
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

r 
s
a
la

ry
 b

a
n
d
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 S

A
S

S
A

. 

 T
A

B
L

E
 1

4
.1

 –
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

c
o

s
ts

 b
y
 b

ra
n

c
h

, 
2
0
1

0
/1

1
 



 

 

118 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

4
.2

 –
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

c
o

s
ts

 b
y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
, 
2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
s

 
C

o
m

p
e
n

s
a
-

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
e
e
s

 C
o

s
t 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
P

e
rs

o
n

-
n

e
l 
C

o
s
t 

fo
r 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
m

-
p

e
n

s
a
ti

o
n

 C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

(R
) 

T
o

ta
l 
P

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

C
o

s
t 

fo
r 

D
e
p

a
rt

-
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

G
o

o
d

s
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
-

fe
rs

 (
R

'0
0

0
) 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

  1
,2

5
0

 

 0
,%

 
6
4
3

  
  

3
5

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

  6
1
7
,9

4
7

 

 3
8
,%

 
3
1
1
,2

0
1

  
  

4
,4

5
4

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

  4
2
0
,7

4
1

 

 2
6
%

 
2
1
1
,2

6
6

  
  

1
,7

9
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

  4
0
7
,9

5
8

 

 2
5
%

 
2
0
4
,3

7
5

  
  

7
9
1

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-1

6
) 

  1
5
1
,4

7
3

 

 9
%

 
7
5
,8

1
1

  
  

1
4
9

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

) 
  6
2
1

 

 0
%

 
  

  
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

) 
  1
3
,4

8
5

 

 1
%

 
  

  
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

) 
  1
,3

0
5

 

 0
%

 
  

  
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

  7
,5

0
0

 

 0
%

 
  

  
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
) 

  1
,1

8
8

 

 0
%

 
  

  
 

P
e
ri

o
d
ic

a
l 
R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

  
  

  
  

 

A
b
n

o
rm

a
l 
A

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 

  
  

  
  

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
,6

2
3
,4

6
8

  
1
0
0

%
  

  
  

7
,2

1
9

 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 p
e
r 

b
ra

n
c
h
 (

T
a
b
le

 1
4

.3
) 

a
n
d
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n
d

s
 (

T
a
b
le

 1
4
.4

),
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
s
a

la
ri
e
s
, 

o
v
e
rt

im
e
, 

h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 
In

 e
a

c
h
 c

a
s
e
, 
th

e
 t
a
b

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 i
n
d

ic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l 
b

u
d
g

e
t 
th

a
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e

d
 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 i
te

m
s
. 

 



 

 

119 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

4
.3

 –
 S

a
la

ri
e

s
, 
O

v
e
rt

im
e
, 
H

o
m

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

 A
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
is

ta
n

c
e
 b

y
 b

ra
n

c
h

, 
2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

B
ra

n
c
h

 
S

a
la

ri
e

s
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

S
a
la

ri
e

s
 

a
s
 %

 o
f 

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

C
o

s
t 

O
v

e
r-

ti
m

e
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

O
v

e
rt

im
e
 

a
s
 %

 o
f 

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

C
o

s
t 

H
O

A
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

H
O

A
 a

s
 %

 
o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

-

n
e
l 
C

o
s
t 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
. 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
. 

a
s
 %

 
o

f 
P

e
r-

s
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

s
t 

T
o

ta
l 
P

e
r-

s
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

P
ro

-
g

ra
m

m
e
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
 9

3
,1

3
5

 
6
%

 
 6

9
4

 
0
%

 
 1

,8
7

0
 

0
%

 
 5

,8
4

6
 

0
%

 
 1

0
1
,5

4
5

 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 3

3
,5

8
0

 
2
%

 
 1

,4
8

5
 

0
%

 
 3

5
1

 
0
%

 
 1

,1
1

5
 

0
%

 
 3

6
,5

3
1

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 
 8

0
,0

6
3

 
5
%

 
 8

8
3

 
0
%

 
 1

,6
8

3
 

0
%

 
 4

,2
6

9
 

0
%

 
 8

6
,8

9
8

 

G
ra

n
ts

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 
 8

6
7
,1

9
8

 
5
3

%
 

 1
,1

8
2

 
0
%

 
 3

9
,7

2
9

 
2
%

 
 8

9
,2

4
1

 
5
%

 
 9

9
7
,3

5
0

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
i-

c
a
ti

o
n

 T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 

 3
1
,5

5
7

 
2
%

 
 2

5
 

0
%

 
 2

8
8

 
0
%

 
 1

,4
2

2
 

0
%

 
 3

3
,2

9
2

 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
 6

,0
7

3
 

0
%

 
 -

 
0
%

 
 3

1
 

0
%

 
 2

4
7

 
0
%

 
 6

,3
5

1
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 &

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
  
  

D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 1

0
,8

4
1

 
1
%

 
 -

 
0
%

 
 5

8
 

0
%

 
 2

9
3

 
0
%

 
 1

1
,1

9
2

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
,1

2
2
,4

4
7

 
6
9

%
 

4
,2

6
9

 
0
%

 
4
4
,0

1
0

 
0
%

 
1
0
2
,4

3
3

 
0
%

 
1
,2

7
3
,1

5
9

 



 

 

120 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

4
.4

 –
 S

a
la

ri
e

s
, 
O

v
e
rt

im
e
, 
H

o
m

e
 O

w
n

e
rs

 A
ll

o
w

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
is

ta
n

c
e
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
, 

2
0
1
0

/1
1

 

S
a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s

 
S

a
la

ri
e

s
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

S
a
la

ri
e

s
 a

s
 

%
 o

f 
P

e
r-

s
o

n
n

e
l 

C
o

s
t 

O
v

e
r-

ti
m

e
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

O
v

e
r-

ti
m

e
 a

s
 

%
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

-

n
e
l 
C

o
s
t 

H
O

A
 

(R
'0

0

0
) 

H
O

A
 a

s
 

%
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

-

n
e
l 
C

o
s
t 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
. 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 

A
s

s
. 

a
s
 %

 
o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n

-

n
e
l 
C

o
s
t 

T
o

ta
l 
P

e
rs

o
n

-
n

e
l 
C

o
s
t 

p
e

r 
S

a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

  8
6
8

 

 0
%

 
  9

 

 0
%

 
  6
9

 

 0
%

 
  7
0

 

0
 %

 
 1

,0
1

7
 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

  4
2
9
,9

6
4

 

 2
6
%

 
  1
,1

8
5

 

 0
%

 
  2
9
,0

7
2

 

 2
%

 
  6
1
,9

5
3

 

 4
%

 
 5

2
2
,1

7
4

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

2
9
9
,5

4
9

 
0
%

 
 9

9
6

 
 0

%
 

  1
2
,6

5
2

 

 1
%

 
  2
6
,8

6
4

 

 2
%

 
 3

4
0
,0

6
1

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 
9
-1

2
) 

  2
9
1
,0

3
9

 

 1
8
%

 
  5
7
1

 

 0
%

 
  2
,9

1
8

 

 0
%

 
  1
2
,8

7
5

 

 1
%

 
 3

0
7
,4

0
3

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-

1
6
) 

  9
0
,0

9
1

 

 6
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

  3
,1

7
7

 

 0
%

 
  2
,6

7
9

 

 0
%

 
 9

5
,9

4
7

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

) 
  4
5
3

 

 0
%

 
  

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
%

 
 4

5
3

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

) 
  9
,8

0
3

 

1
%

 
  

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
%

 
 9

,8
0

3
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

) 
  8
8
0

 

 0
%

 
  2
8

 

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
%

 
 9

0
8

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

  5
,2

5
6

 

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 5
,2

5
6

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
) 

  6
9
5

 

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 0
 

 0
%

 
 0

 
 0

%
 

 6
9
5

 

P
e
ri

o
d
ic

a
l 
R

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
  

  

A
b
n

o
rm

a
l 
A

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
O

T
A

L
 

  
 5

1
%

 
  

 0
%

 
  

 3
%

 
  

 6
%

 
 1

,2
8

3
,7

1
7

 



 

 

121 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

5
.1

 –
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
, 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

V
a
c

a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
F

il
le

d
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
to

 

th
e
 E

s
ta

b
li

s
h

m
e
n

t 

S
o
u
th

 A
fr

ic
a
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri

ty
 A

g
e

n
c
y
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
8
5
9

3
 

7
8
3
3

 
5
7
.9

 
1
6
8

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
5
9

3
 

7
8
3
3

 
5
7
.9

 
1
6
8

 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

5
.2

 –
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
, 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

V
a
c

a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
F

il
le

d
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
to

 

th
e
 E

s
ta

b
li

s
h

m
e
n

t 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
4

 
1
5

 
5
5
.9

 
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
0
5
4

8
 

4
6
4
3

 
5
6

 
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
4
5
7

 
1
5
2
4

 
7
2
.1

 
0

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
2
2
7

 
9
5
8

 
5
7

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-1

6
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
2
7

 
2
0
9

 
3
6
.1

 
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

4
1

 
0

 
3
6

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

4
2
8

 
0

 
1
2
4

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

3
 

0
 

2
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

1
0

 
0

 
4

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
),

 P
e

rm
a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

2
 

0
 

2
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
5
9

3
 

7
8
3
3

 
5
7
.9

 
1
6
8

 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

5
.3

 –
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

a
c
a
n

c
ie

s
 b

y
 c

ri
ti

c
a
l 
o

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

, 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

C
ri

ti
c
a

l 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

V
a
c

a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

to
 t

h
e
 E

s
ta

b
-

li
s
h

m
e
n

t 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

A
u
x
ili

a
ry

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
2

 
5

 
7
7
.3

 
0

 

C
iv

il 
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
ia

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
le

a
n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 e
tc

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4

 
1
0

 
2
8
.6

 
0

 

C
lie

n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
 

5
 

3
7
.5

 
0

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
ts

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
0
9

 
2
0
8

 
4
9
.1

 
0

 



 

 

122 

C
ri

ti
c
a

l 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

V
a
c

a
n

c
y
 R

a
te

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 F
il
le

d
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

to
 t

h
e
 E

s
ta

b
-

li
s
h

m
e
n

t 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
le

rk
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
8
5

 
1
2
0

 
5
7
.9

 
5

 

F
o
o
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

id
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
it
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
a
n
d

y
m

e
n

 
1

 
1

 
0

 
0

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t/
c
h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

1
0
0

 
0

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

 &
 r

e
la

te
 p

ro
f,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

7
 

3
 

5
7
.1

 
0

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
5
4

 
8
3

 
6
7
.3

 
0

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
e
g
a

l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
a
il 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

7
0
9

 
3
4
6

 
5
1
.2

 
1

 

L
o
g

is
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
rs

o
n
n
e

l,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
5
9

 
1
4
0

 
6
1

 
2

 

M
a
te

ri
a
l-

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
5
0

 
9
6

 
6
1
.6

 
1

 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

M
e
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
2

 
8
7
.5

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
4
7

 
9
0

 
7
4
.1

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
0

 
3
3

 
5
8
.8

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
9

 
9

 
0

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

0
 

1
0
0

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
4
3

 
1
5
7

 
6
4
.6

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5
5

 
6
1

 
6
0
.6

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
L
e

g
a
l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
6

 
1
6

 
5
5
.6

 
1

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
7
7
2

 
1
5
8
4

 
6
6
.8

 
1

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
t 

&
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n

is
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
1
4
0

 
1
6
8

 
8
5
.3

 
1
5

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
6
2

 
3
6

 
9
2
.2

 
0

 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
9

 
1
5

 
4
8
.3

 
0

 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
8

 
3
9

 
6
0
.2

 
0

 

S
e
c
re

ta
ri

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
b
o
a

rd
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
3
7

 
1
0
7

 
5
4
.9

 
1

 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
9

 
1
0

 
8
9
.9

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
9
1

 
1
9
6

 
3
2
.6

 
1

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
0
0
9

 
4
2
6
1

 
4
6
.8

 
1
1
3

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
0

 
5

 
7
5

 
0

 

T
ra

d
e
 L

a
b
o

u
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

2
8

 
2
7

 
3
.6

 
2
7

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
5
9

3
 

7
8
3
3

 
5
7
.9

 
1
6
8

 



 

 

123 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

6
.1

 –
 J

o
b

 E
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 
N

u
m

-
b

e
r 

o
f 

J
o

b
s
 

E
v

a
lu

-

a
te

d
 

%
 o

f 
P

o
s
ts

 

E
v

a
lu

a
te

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 U
p

-

g
ra

d
e
d

 

%
 o

f 
U

p
g

ra
d

-
e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 

E
v

a
lu

a
te

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
o

s
ts

 D
o

w
n

-

g
ra

d
e
d

 

%
 o

f 
D

o
w

n
-

g
ra

d
e
d

 P
o

s
ts

 

E
v

a
lu

a
te

d
 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

3
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

1
0
5
4

8
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

5
4
5
7

 
9
6

 
1
.8

 
0

 
0

 
5
3

 
5
5
.2

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

2
2
2
7

 
7

 
0
.3

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
1
4
.3

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 A

 
2
5
3

 
4

 
1
.6

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 B

 
5
7

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 C

 
1
6

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 D

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
5
9

3
 

1
0
7

 
0
.6

 
0

 
0

 
5
4

 
0

 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

h
o
s
e

 s
a

la
ry

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 u
p

g
ra

d
e
d
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
s
ts

 b
e

in
g
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
  

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 m

ig
h
t 

d
if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
ts

 u
p
g
ra

d
e

d
 s

in
c
e
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

re
 a

u
to

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

 a
b
s
o
rb

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 p
o
s
ts

 a
n
d

 s
o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
s
ts

 u
p
g
ra

d
e
d
 c

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 v

a
c
a

n
t.

 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
A

s
ia

n
 

C
o

lo
u

re
d

 
W

h
it

e
 

T
o

ta
l 

F
e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

T
o
ta

l 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

6
.3

 –
 E

m
p

lo
y
e
e

s
 w

h
o

s
e
 s

a
la

ry
 l
e
v

e
l 
e

x
c

e
e

d
 t

h
e
 g

ra
d

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 j
o

b
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

, 
1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 (

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
P

S
R

 

1
.V

.C
.3

) 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
J
o

b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
e
v

ia
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 i
n

 D
e
p

t 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

A
u
x
ili

a
ry

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

2
 

3
 

R
e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

2
2

 

C
iv

il 
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
ia

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

C
le

a
n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 e
tc

.,
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

2
 

4
 

R
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
  
  

  
  
  

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

 
1
4

 

C
lie

n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
8

 



 

 

124 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
J
o

b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
e
v

ia
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 i
n

 D
e
p

t 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
  
  

  
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
ts

.,
  

  
  
  

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

7
 

9
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

4
0
9

 

1
 

8
 

1
0

 
R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

6
1

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

2
7

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
le

rk
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
, 
  
  

  
  
  
  

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
 

5
 

6
 

R
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
  
  

  
  
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

 
2
8
5

 

F
o
o
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

id
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
it
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

H
a
n
d

y
m

e
n

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
  

1
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 S

A
S

S
A

/c
h

ie
f 

e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

  
  
  
  

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
1

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

 &
  
  
  

  
re

la
te

 p
ro

f,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

7
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

5
 

8
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

2
5
4

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

L
e
g
a

l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
a
il 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
5

 
6

 
R

a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
  
  

  
  
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

 
7
0
9

 

1
 

5
 

7
 

S
a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 

1
 

5
 

8
 

S
a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 

2
 

7
 

8
 

S
a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 



 

 

125 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
J
o

b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
e
v

ia
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 i
n

 D
e
p

t 

L
o
g

is
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
rs

o
n
n
e

l,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
9

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

3
5
9

 

2
4

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

M
a
te

ri
a
l-

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

9
 

5
 

6
 

R
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
 p

ro
m

o
-

ti
o
n

 
2
5
0

 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 

M
e
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
1
6

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

8
 

1
0

 
R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

3
4
7

 

2
3

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

6
0

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

r-
m

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

9
 

1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

8
0

 

9
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

t-
e
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

9
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
3

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
7

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

4
4
3

 

1
 

9
 

1
1

 
R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

2
9

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

t-
e
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

1
5
5

 

1
 

9
 

1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
1

0
 

3
4

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
L
e

g
a
l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

7
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

3
6

 



 

 

126 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
J
o

b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
e
v

ia
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 i
n

 D
e
p

t 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 R

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

5
 

6
 

S
a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 
4
7
7
2

 

9
 

7
 

8
 

R
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
 p

ro
m

o
-

ti
o
n

 

1
 

8
 

9
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

2
3
0

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

3
 

9
 

1
2

 
R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

2
6
6

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

1
 

1
1

 
1
3

 
P

o
s
t 
n

o
t 
jo

b
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 

b
e
fo

re
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
u
m

b
e
n
t 

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e

d
 i
n
 

p
o
s
t 
fr

o
m

 a
n
o
th

e
r 

B
ra

n
c
h

 

 

2
 

5
 

8
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

 
 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

7
 

8
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

4
6
2

 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

9
 

1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

2
9

 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

1
5

 
9

 
1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

9
8

 

1
3

 
1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

S
e
c
re

ta
ri

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
b
o
a

rd
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

le
rk

s
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

8
 

9
 

R
e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

2
3
7

 

1
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

9
 

1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

9
9

 

1
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
N

o
tc

h
 

2
9
1

 

1
 

1
5

 
1
6

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
0

 



 

 

127 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
J
o

b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

L
e
v

e
l 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

D
e
v

ia
ti

o
n

 
N

o
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 i
n

 D
e
p

t 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

3
0
1

 
5

 
6

 
R

a
n
k
 a

n
d
 L

e
g
 p

ro
m

o
-

ti
o
n

 
8
0
0
9

 

4
4

 
5

 
7

 
S

a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 

7
 

5
 

8
 

S
a
la

ry
 R

e
g

u
la

ri
s
a
ti
o
n

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

3
 

9
 

1
0

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

2
0

 

1
 

1
1

 
1
2

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

2
0
0

9
 

T
ra

d
e
 L

a
b
o

u
re

rs
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  
2
8

 

T
o

ta
l 

1
3
5
3

 
 

 
  

1
8
5
9

3
 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
7
.2

8
 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

6
.4

 –
 P

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s

 w
h

o
s
e
 s

a
la

ry
 l

e
v

e
l 
e
x
c

e
e
d

 t
h

e
 g

ra
d

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 j
o

b
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 (
in

 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
P

S
R

 1
.V

.C
.3

) 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
A

s
ia

n
 

C
o

lo
u

re
d

 
W

h
it

e
 

T
o

ta
l 

F
e
m

a
le

 
4
3
8

 
3
8

 
6
9

 
9
4

 
6
3
9

 

M
a
le

 
5
3
8

 
4
6

 
8
0

 
5
0

 
7
1
4

 

T
o

ta
l 

9
7
6

 
8
4

 
1
4
9

 
1
4
4

 
1
3
5
3

 
E

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
6

 
0

 
0

 
4

 
1
0

 



 

 

128 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

7
.1

 –
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
tu

rn
o

v
e
r 

ra
te

s
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 
o

f 
P

e
ri

o
d

 

(A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0
) 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

T
e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e
r 

R
a
te

 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
2

 
0

 
1

 
8
.3

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
2
6
9

 
6
1

 
8
6

 
2

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
9
0
1

 
1
3

 
5
6

 
2
.9

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
7
0

 
8

 
3
1

 
3
.2

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 A

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
7
0

 
1

 
7

 
4
.1

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 B

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
2

 
0

 
2

 
4
.8

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 C

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

a
n
d
 D

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

1
 

5
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
4

 
3
5

 
2
8

 
5
1
.9

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

6
7

 
3
7
2

 
4
6

 
6
8
.7

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

1
 

5
 

2
5
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
 

2
 

2
 

2
2
.2

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(B

a
n

d
 A

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

1
 

5
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(B

a
n

d
 B

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

7
5
1
0

 
4
9
4

 
2
6
6

 
3
.5

 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

7
.2

 –
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
tu

rn
o

v
e
r 

ra
te

s
 b

y
 c

ri
ti

c
a
l 
o

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

  

P
e
ri

o
d

 (
A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
0
) 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

T
e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e
r 

R
a
te

 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

A
u
x
ili

a
ry

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

1
 

5
 

2
5
0

 

C
iv

il 
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
ia

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
le

a
n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 e
tc

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4

 
0

 
1

 
7
.1

 

C
lie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
 c

le
rk

s
(s

w
it
c
h
b

 r
e
c
e
p
t 
in

fo
rm

 c
le

rk
s
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
5

 
1

 
0

 
0

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
rs

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
1
8

 
4

 
1
1

 
5

 



 

 

129 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

  

P
e
ri

o
d

 (
A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
0
) 

A
p

p
o

in
tm

e
n

ts
 

T
e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

s
 

T
u

rn
o

v
e
r 

R
a
te

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
le

rk
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
1
3

 
2
0

 
1
0

 
8
.8

 

F
o
o
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

id
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
it
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
a
n
d

y
m

e
n

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t/
c
h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

1
 

1
0
0

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

 &
 r

e
la

te
 p

ro
f,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

7
4

 
9

 
7

 
9
.5

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
a
n
g

u
a
g

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 i
n
te

rp
re

te
rs

 &
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
e
g
a

l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
a
il 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
2
1

 
4
2

 
2
0

 
6
.2

 

L
o
g

is
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
rs

o
n
n
e

l,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4
3

 
5

 
7

 
4
.9

 

M
a
te

ri
a
l-

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
4

 
1
4

 
6

 
6
.4

 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
e
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
6

 
1

 
2

 
2
.1

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

3
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5
7

 
3

 
2

 
1
.3

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
9

 
1

 
2

 
3
.4

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
L
e

g
a
l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
2

 
1

 
6
.3

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5
6
0

 
4

 
4
7

 
3

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 &

 r
e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n

is
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
7
4

 
2
1
9

 
3
8

 
2
1
.8

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
6

 
2

 
1

 
2
.8

 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

O
th

e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
1

 
0

 
4

 
9
.8

 

S
e
c
re

ta
ri

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
b
o
a

rd
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
0
0

 
8

 
5

 
5

 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
2
4

 
2

 
1
0

 
4
.5

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
9
7
6

 
1
3
1

 
8
6

 
2
.2

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
ia

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
ra

d
e
 L

a
b
o

u
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 

0
 

2
5

 
0

 
0

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

7
5
1
0

 
4
9
4

 
2
6
6

 
3
.5

 



 

 

130 

T
a
b

le
 1

7
.3

 –
 R

e
a
s
o

n
s
 w

h
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 l
e

a
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 S

A
S

S
A

 

T
e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

 T
y
p

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
  
  
  
  
  

R
e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n

s
 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o

ta
l 
  
  
  
  
  
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

D
e
a
th

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
2

 
1
5
.8

 
0

 
4
2

 
0

 

R
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
3
5

 
5
0
.8

 
0

 
1
3
5

 
0

 

E
x
p
ir

y
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
3

 
1
9
.9

 
0

 
5
3

 
0

 

D
is

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o

 i
ll 

h
e
a

lt
h

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
 

1
.5

 
0

 
4

 
0

 

D
is

m
is

s
a
l-
m

is
c
o
n
d
u
c
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
 

3
 

0
 

8
 

0
 

R
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
4

 
9

 
0

 
2
4

 
0

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
6
6

 
1
0
0

 
3
.4

 
2
6
6

 
7
8
3
3

 

R
e
s
ig

n
a
ti

o
n

s
 a

s
 %

 o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
1
.3

3
 

T
a
b

le
 1

7
.4

 –
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 c

ri
ti

c
a
l 
o

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 
o

f 
P

e
ri

o
d

 

(A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0
) 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

S
a
la

ry
 

L
e
v

e
l 

S
a
la

ry
 L

e
v

e
l 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
s
 

to
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

N
o

tc
h

 w
it

h
in

 

S
a
la

ry
 L

e
v

e
l 

N
o

tc
h

  
  
p

ro
-

g
re

s
s

io
n

s
 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

A
u
x
ili

a
ry

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
iv

il 
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
ia

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
le

a
n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 e
tc

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4

 
0

 
0

 
6

 
4
2
.9

 

C
lie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
 c

le
rk

s
(s

w
it
c
h
b

o
a
rd

 r
e
c
e
p

ti
o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
 c

le
rk

s
),

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
rs

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
1
8

 
6

 
2
.8

 
1
5
9

 
7
2
.9

 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
le

rk
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
1
3

 
0

 
0

 
6
2

 
5
4
.9

 

F
o
o
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

id
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
it
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
a
n
d

y
m

e
n

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
1
0
0

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t/
c
h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

 &
 r

e
la

te
 p

ro
f,

 P
e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

3
3
.3

 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

7
4

 
0

 
0

 
4
6

 
6
2
.2

 



 

 

131 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 
o

f 
P

e
ri

o
d

 

(A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0
) 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

S
a
la

ry
 

L
e
v

e
l 

S
a
la

ry
 L

e
v

e
l 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
s
 

to
 a

n
o

th
e
r 

N
o

tc
h

 w
it

h
in

 

S
a
la

ry
 L

e
v

e
l 

N
o

tc
h

 p
ro

-
g

re
s
s

io
n

s
 a

s
 

a
 %

 o
f 

  
  
  

  
  
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
e
g
a

l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
a
il 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
2
1

 
4

 
1
.2

 
1
6
3

 
5
0
.8

 

L
o
g

is
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
rs

o
n
n
e

l,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4
3

 
4

 
2
.8

 
9
9

 
6
9
.2

 

M
a
te

ri
a
l-

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
4

 
1

 
1
.1

 
4
6

 
4
8
.9

 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
e
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

1
0
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
6

 
2

 
2
.1

 
7
1

 
7
4

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
4

 
0

 
0

 
2
0

 
5
8
.8

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
9

 
0

 
0

 
7

 
7
7
.8

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5
7

 
1

 
0
.6

 
1
2
4

 
7
9

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
-

5
9

 
0

 
0

 
4
7

 
7
9
.7

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
L
e

g
a
l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
1
6

 
1
0
0

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5
6
0

 
5
8

 
3
.7

 
1
1
7
9

 
7
5
.6

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 &

 r
e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n

is
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

1
7
4

 
1

 
0
.6

 
8
7

 
5
0

 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
6

 
0

 
0

 
3
0

 
8
3
.3

 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
1
0

 
6
2
.5

 

O
th

e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
1

 
0

 
0

 
2
4

 
5
8
.5

 

S
e
c
re

ta
ri

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
b
o
a

rd
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
0
0

 
6

 
6

 
6
3

 
6
3

 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
1
0

 
6
2
.5

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
2
4

 
3

 
1
.3

 
2
0
7

 
9
2
.4

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
9
7
6

 
3

 
0
.1

 
3
1
3
3

 
7
8
.8

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
 

0
 

0
 

5
 

1
0
0

 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
ia

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

7
5
1
0

 
8
9

 
1
.2

 
5
6
1
8

 
7
4
.8

 



 

 

132 

T
a
b

le
 1

7
.5

 –
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

s
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 
o

f 
P

e
ri

o
d

 

(A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0
) 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

S
a
la

ry
 

L
e
v

e
l 

S
a
la

ry
 L

e
v

e
l 

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 

a
 %

 o
f 

E
m

-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

N
o

tc
h

 
w

it
h

in
 S

a
la

ry
 

L
e
v

e
l 

N
o

tc
h

 p
ro

-
g

re
s
s

io
n

s
 a

s
 a

 
%

 o
f 

  
  
  
  
  

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
2

 
0

 
0

 
6

 
5
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
2
6
9

 
3

 
0
.1

 
3
3
1
7

 
7
7
.7

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
9
0
1

 
6
3

 
3
.3

 
1
3
2
9

 
6
9
.9

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
7
0

 
2
0

 
2
.1

 
7
3
5

 
7
5
.8

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-1

6
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
2
4

 
3

 
1
.3

 
2
2
6

 
1
0
0
.9

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

6
7

 
0

 
0

 
3

 
4
.5

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

),
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

1
1
.1

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
),

 P
e

rm
a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

5
0

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

7
5
1
0

 
8
9

 
1
.2

 
5
6
1
8

 
7
4
.8

 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
e

q
u

it
y
 

1
8
.1

 –
 T

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
) 

in
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 o

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
c
a
te

g
o

ri
e
s

 a
s
 o

n
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

M
a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
M

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
M

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
m

a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
T

o
ta

l 
N

U
M

-

B
E

R
 

F
E

-

M
A

L
E

S
 

L
e
g

is
la

to
rs

, 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
-

9
1
9

 
1
0
8

 
5
2

 
1
0
7
9

 
5
8

 
8
2
1

 
7
9

 
3
2

 
9
3
2

 
7
7

 
2
1
4
6

 
2
1
4
6

 
4
7
.0

2
%

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
1

 
8

 
5

 
1
0
4

 
6

 
9
3

 
1
3

 
1

 
1
0
7

 
1
4

 
2
3
1

 
2
3
1

 
5
2
.3

8
%

 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
 p

ro
-

9
6

 
1
0

 
2

 
1
0
8

 
6

 
8
9

 
8

 
2

 
9
9

 
2

 
2
1
5

 
2
1
5

 
4
6
.9

8
%

 

C
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
9
4

 
2
3

 
3

 
3
2
0

 
2

 
5
2
0

 
4
7

 
5

 
5
7
2

 
3
1

 
9
2
5

 
9
2
5

 
6
5
.1

9
%

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
le

s
 w

o
rk

-
1
3
3
6

 
1
9
2

 
2
7

 
1
5
5
5

 
2
7

 
2
3
2
0

 
2
6
7

 
3
7

 
2
6
2
4

 
7
0

 
4
2
7
6

 
4
2
7
6

 
6
3
.0

0
%

 

E
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 o

c
c
u
p
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

2
2

 
2

 
0

 
2
4

 
0

 
1
5

 
0

 
0

 
1
5

 
0

 
3
9

 
3
9

 
3
8
.4

6
%

 

P
la

n
t 
a

n
d
 M

a
c
h

in
e
 O

p
e
ra

-
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
1

 
0
.0

0
%

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
7
5
9

 
3
4
3

 
8
9

 
3
1
9
1

 
9
9

 
3
8
5
8

 
4
1
4

 
7
7

 
4
3
4
9

 
1
9
4

 
7
8
3
3

 
7
8
3
3

 
5
8
.0

0
%

 



 

 

133 

 
M

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
M

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 
M

a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
  

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

C
o

lo
u

re
d

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
T

o
ta

l 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

it
h
  
  
  

  
 

5
1

 
4

 
2

 
5
7

 
4

 
4
6

 
6

 
1

 
5
3

 
7

 
1
2
1

 

1
8
.2

 –
 T

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
) 

in
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 o

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
b

a
n

d
s
 a

s
 o

n
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
B

a
n

d
s

 
M

a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

M
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 
In

-

d
ia

n
 

M
a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 
B

la
c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, W
h

it

e
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
A

f-

ri
c
a
n

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 
B

la
c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

N
U

M
-

B
E

R
 

F
E

-

M
A

L
E

S
 

L
k
//
T

o
p
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
 

0
 

0
 

5
 

3
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

0
 

1
0

 
1
0

 
2
0
.0

0
%

 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

9
3

 
1
2

 
6

 
1
1
1

 
7

 
6
3

 
4

 
6

 
7
3

 
8

 
1
9
9

 
1
9
9

 
4
0
.7

0
%

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
d
 s

p
e
-

c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 m

id
-

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

4
5
0

 
4
3

 
2
4

 
5
1
7

 
3
5

 
3
2
7

 
2
9

 
1
2

 
3
6
8

 
3
8

 
9
5
8

 
9
5
8

 
4
2
.3

8
%

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
a
lly

 q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 

w
o
rk

e
rs

, 
ju

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t,
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

, 
fo

re
-

m
e
n
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
7
6

 
7
0

 
2
9

 
6
7
5

 
2
6

 
6
8
0

 
7
4

 
1
8

 
7
7
2

 
5
1

 
1
5
2
4

 
1
5
2
4

 
5
4
.0

0
%

 

S
e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
re

-
ti
o
n

a
ry

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4
5
6

 
2
0
0

 
3
0

 
1
6
8
6

 
2
8

 
2
5
1
2

 
2
8
0

 
4
1

 
2
8
3
3

 
9
6

 
4
6
4
3

 
4
6
4
3

 
6
3
.0

8
%

 

U
n
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n

e
d
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

4
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

1
1

 
0

 
0

 
1
1

 
0

 
1
5

 
1
5

 
7
3
.3

3
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
-

a
g
e
m

e
n
t)

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

2
 

2
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
lly

 
q
u
a

lif
ie

d
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

6
 

0
 

0
 

6
 

0
 

1
0

 
1
0

 
6
0
.0

0
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

k
ill

e
d

 t
e
c
h
-

n
ic

a
l)
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

3
 

3
 

1
0
0
.0

0
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4
6

 
1
6

 
0

 
1
6
2

 
0

 
2
3
9

 
2
7

 
0

 
2
6
6

 
0

 
4
2
8

 
4
2
8

 
6
2
.1

5
%

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(U

n
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
5

 
2

 
0

 
2
7

 
0

 
1
4

 
0

 
0

 
1
4

 
0

 
4
1

 
4
1

 
3
4
.1

5
%

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
7
5
9

 
3
4
3

 
8
9

 
3
1
9
1

 
9
9

 
3
8
5
8

 
4
1
4

 
7
7

 
4
3
4
9

 
1
9
4

 
7
8
3
3

 
7
8
3
3

 
5
8
.0

0
%

 



 

 

134 

1
8
.3

 –
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
B

a
n

d
s

 
M

a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

M
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
M

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
-

m
a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o
p
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri
-

e
n
c
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 m

id
-

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

3
 

1
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

8
 

S
k
ill

e
d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

a
lly

 
q
u
a

lif
ie

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
ju

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t,
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

, 
fo

re
m

e
n
, 
P

e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

3
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

0
 

9
 

1
 

0
 

1
0

 
0

 
1
3

 

S
e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 d
e
c
i-

s
io

n
 m

a
k
in

g
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
3

 
5

 
0

 
2
8

 
0

 
2
6

 
5

 
1

 
3
2

 
1

 
6
1

 

U
n
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n

e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
-

in
g
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t)

, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
lly

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d
),

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

0
 

2
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

k
ill

e
d

 t
e
c
h
n

ic
a
l)
, 

P
e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
1
7

 
1
1

 
0

 
1
2
8

 
0

 
2
2
6

 
1
8

 
0

 
2
4
4

 
0

 
3
7
2

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(U

n
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
2
3

 
2

 
0

 
2
5

 
0

 
1
0

 
0

 
0

 
1
0

 
0

 
3
5

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
7
1

 
1
8

 
0

 
1
8
9

 
0

 
2
7
8

 
2
5

 
1

 
3
0
4

 
1

 
4
9
4

 



 

 

135 

1
8
.4

 –
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
B

a
n

d
s

 
M

a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

M
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
M

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
-

m
a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o
p
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
2

 
0

 
0

 
2

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
3

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri
-

e
n
c
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 m

id
-

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
2

 
0

 
0

 
1
2

 
0

 
7

 
1

 
0

 
8

 
0

 
2
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

a
lly

 
q
u
a

lif
ie

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
ju

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t,
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

, 
fo

re
m

e
n
, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

2
5

 
5

 
0

 
3
0

 
1

 
2
6

 
4

 
0

 
3
0

 
2

 
6
3

 

S
e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 d
e
c
i-

s
io

n
 m

a
k
in

g
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

2
 

0
 

0
 

2
 

0
 

3
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

4
0

 
5

 
0

 
4
5

 
1

 
3
6

 
5

 
0

 
4
1

 
2

 
8
9

 

1
8
.5

 –
 T

e
rm

in
a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
B

a
n

d
s

 
M

a
le

, 
A

fr
i-

c
a
n

 

M
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 
In

-

d
ia

n
 

M
a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o
p
 M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
0

 
0

 
2

 
2

 
1

 
2

 
1

 
0

 
3

 
3

 
9

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

lly
 q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p
e
ri
-

e
n
c
e
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 m

id
-

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
6

 
0

 
0

 
1
6

 
0

 
1
0

 
4

 
0

 
1
4

 
1

 
3
1

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

a
lly

 
q
u
a

lif
ie

d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
ju

n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
-

m
e
n
t,
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

, 
fo

re
m

e
n
, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

1
7

 
5

 
1

 
2
3

 
2

 
2
2

 
2

 
1

 
2
5

 
6

 
5
6

 

S
e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
re

ti
o
n

a
ry

 d
e
c
i-

s
io

n
 m

a
k
in

g
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
3

 
7

 
0

 
4
0

 
0

 
4
0

 
3

 
0

 
4
3

 
3

 
8
6

 

U
n
s
k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n

e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t)

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
lly

 q
u

a
lif

ie
d
),

 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

2
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

k
ill

e
d

 t
e
c
h
n

ic
a
l)
, 

P
e
rm

a
-

n
e
n
t 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

0
 

5
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(S

e
m

i-
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
9

 
4

 
0

 
2
3

 
0

 
4
1

 
6

 
0

 
4
7

 
0

 
7
0

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(U

n
s
k
ill

e
d
),

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
4

 
0

 
0

 
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
4

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

9
2

 
1
6

 
3

 
1
1
1

 
3

 
1
2
2

 
1
6

 
1

 
1
3
9

 
1
3

 
2
6
6

 



 

 

136 

1
8
.6

 –
 D

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 a
c
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

D
is

c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 a
c
ti

o
n

 
M

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
M

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
M

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
-

m
a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
m

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

D
is

m
is

s
a
ls

 
8

 
0

 
0

 
8

 
1

 
7

 
0

 
0

 
7

 
0

 
1
6

 

D
e
m

o
ti
o
n

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
1

 

S
u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
 w

it
h
o

u
t 
p

a
y

 
9

 
0

 
0

 
9

 
0

 
4

 
0

 
0

 
4

 
0

 
1
3

 

F
in

a
l 
w

ri
tt

e
n
 w

a
rn

in
g
s

 
1
9

 
3

 
0

 
2
2

 
1

 
1
2

 
5

 
0

 
1
7

 
1

 
4
1

 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 w

a
rn

in
g
s

 
2
2

 
6

 
0

 
2
8

 
4

 
2
5

 
8

 
0

 
3
3

 
1

 
6
6

 

V
e
rb

a
l 
w

a
rn

in
g
s

 
2

 
0

 
0

 
2

 
0

 
1

 
2

 
0

 
3

 
0

 
5

 

C
o
u
n
s
e

lin
g

 
1

 
2

 
0

 
3

 
0

 
3

 
0

 
0

 
3

 
0

 
6

 

C
a
s
e
 d

is
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
a

ir
-

p
e
rs

o
n
 /
 W

it
h
d
ra

w
n

 
1
4

 
0

 
0

 
1
4

 
1

 
1
2

 
4

 
0

 
1
6

 
1

 
3
2

 

R
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n

 
6

 
1

 
0

 
7

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
8

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

8
1

 
1
2

 
0

 
9
3

 
7

 
6
6

 
1
9

 
0

 
8
5

 
3

 
1
8
8

 

1
8
.7

 –
 S

k
il
ls

 d
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

M
a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
M

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

M
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 
M

a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

M
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 

A
fr

ic
a
n

 
F

e
m

a
le

, 
C

o
l-

o
u

re
d

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

In
d

ia
n

 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 
T

o
ta

l 

B
la

c
k

s
 

F
e
-

m
a
le

, 

W
h

it
e

 

T
o

ta
l 

L
e
g

is
la

to
rs

, 
S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 a
n
d
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

 
1
8
9

 
1
2

 
5

 
2
0
6

 
2

 
4
7

 
3

 
5

 
5
5

 
4

 
2
6
7

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 

1
9
8

 
3

 
3

 
2
0
4

 
1

 
1
8
9

 
5

 
1
5

 
2
0
9

 
5

 
4
1
9

 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
 P

ro
-

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
6
2

 
0

 
0

 
6
2

 
0

 
1
9
2

 
0

 
0

 
1
9
2

 
0

 
2
5
4

 

C
le

rk
s

 
1
8
4

 
5
1

 
2

 
2
3
7

 
9

 
2
5
3

 
1
2

 
1

 
2
6
6

 
7

 
5
1
9

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 S

a
le

s
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 A

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 F

is
h

e
ry

 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

C
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 T

ra
d
e
s
 W

o
rk

e
rs

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

P
la

n
t 
a

n
d
 M

a
c
h

in
e
 O

p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d
 

A
s
s
e
m

b
le

rs
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

E
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
s

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

6
3
3

 
6
6

 
1
0

 
7
0
9

 
1
2

 
6
8
1

 
2
0

 
2
1

 
7
2
2

 
1
6

 
1
4
5
9

 
E

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s

 
7

 
0

 
0

 
7

 
0

 
5

 
3

 
0

 
8

 
0

 
1
5

 



 

 

137 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
w

a
rd

s
 

T
o
 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 
g

o
o
d
 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

th
e
 
S

A
S

S
A

 
h
a
s
 
g

ra
n
te

d
 
th

e
 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 
re

w
a
rd

s
 
d
u
ri

n
g
 
th

e
 
y
e
a
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

T
h
e
 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
is

  
  

  
  
  

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
ra

c
e
, 
g
e
n
d

e
r,

 a
n
d
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 (
T

a
b
le

 1
9
.1

),
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
 (

ta
b

le
 1

9
.2

) 
a
n
d
 c

ri
ti
c
a

l 
o
c
c
u
p

a
ti
o

n
s
 (

T
a
b
le

 1
9

.3
).

 

D
e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 

C
o

s
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ry
 

(R
) 

A
fr

ic
a
n
, 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
0
1
7

 
3
8
5
8

 
2
6
.4

 
8
,4

7
8
,3

0
8
.0

1
 

8
,3

3
6
.5

9
 

A
fr

ic
a
n
, 
M

a
le

 
6
9
9

 
2
7
5
9

 
2
5
.3

 
6
,9

4
1
,5

3
6
.1

1
 

9
,9

3
0
.6

7
 

A
s
ia

n
, 
F

e
m

a
le

 
2
8

 
7
7

 
3
6
.4

 
4
5
1
,2

1
8
.8

5
 

1
6
,1

1
4
.9

6
 

A
s
ia

n
, 
M

a
le

 
3
5

 
8
9

 
3
9
.3

 
5
9
7
,3

3
9
.3

6
 

1
7
,0

6
6
.8

4
 

C
o
lo

u
re

d
, 

F
e
m

a
le

 
2
4
1

 
4
1
4

 
5
8
.2

 
1
,7

0
7
,7

7
1
.8

0
 

7
,0

8
6
.1

9
 

C
o
lo

u
re

d
, 

M
a

le
 

1
8
7

 
3
4
3

 
5
4
.5

 
1
,3

2
4
,0

8
0
.7

2
 

7
,0

8
0
.6

5
 

T
o
ta

l 
B

la
c
k
s
, 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
2
8
6

 
4
3
4
9

 
2
9
.6

 
1
0
,6

3
7
,2

9
8
.6

6
 

8
,2

7
1
.6

2
 

T
o
ta

l 
B

la
c
k
s
, 
M

a
le

 
9
2
1

 
3
1
9
1

 
2
8
.9

 
8
,8

6
2
,9

5
6
.1

9
 

9
,6

2
3
.1

9
 

W
h
it
e
, 
F

e
m

a
le

 
9
4

 
1
9
4

 
4
8
.5

 
9
4
5
,0

1
7
.3

1
 

1
0
,0

5
3
.3

8
 

W
h
it
e
, 
M

a
le

 
3
9

 
9
9

 
3
9
.4

 
4
9
0
,7

6
8
.1

6
 

1
2
,5

8
3
.8

0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

2
0

 
1
2
1

 
1
6
.5

 
3
1
3
,7

9
1
.4

8
 

1
5
,6

8
9
.5

7
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
3
4
0

 
7
8
3
3

 
2
9
.9

 
2
0
,9

3
6
,0

4
0
.3

2
 

8
,9

4
7
.0

3
 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

9
.2

 –
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
w

a
rd

s
 b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 
b

e
lo

w
 S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 

C
o

s
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ry
 

(R
) 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

5
 

1
4

 
3
5
.7

 
1
2
,2

5
3
.7

4
 

2
,4

5
0
.7

5
 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

1
1
4
4

 
4
2
5
4

 
2
6
.9

 
5
,9

4
6
,4

6
4
.3

5
 

5
,1

9
7
.9

6
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

7
5
9

 
1
9
1
3

 
3
9
.7

 
7
,2

5
0
,9

5
1
.5

9
 

9
,5

5
3
.3

0
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

4
3
2

 
9
6
0

 
4
5

 
7
,7

2
6
,3

7
0
.6

4
 

1
7
,8

8
5
.1

2
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

) 
0

 
4
0

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

) 
0

 
4
2
8

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

) 
0

 
2

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

0
 

1
2

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
3
4
0

 
7
6
2
3

 
3
0
.7

 
2
0
,9

3
6
,0

4
0
.3

2
 

8
,9

4
7
.0

3
 



 

 

138 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

9
.3

 –
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
w

a
rd

s
 b

y
 c

ri
ti

c
a
l 
o

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

s
, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0

 t
o

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

C
ri

ti
c
a

l 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

C
o

s
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ry
 

(R
) 

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

A
u
x
ili

a
ry

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

5
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
iv

il 
e
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
ia

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
le

a
n
e
rs

 i
n
 o

ff
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

 e
tc

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
 

1
0

 
3
0

 
5
,8

7
3
.8

8
 

1
,9

5
7
.9

6
 

C
lie

n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 C

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

5
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
a

ly
s
ts

.,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 s

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o
m

ic
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
4
0

 
2
0
8

 
6
7
.3

 
1
8
2
3

9
8
0

.5
 

1
3
,0

2
8
.4

3
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
c
le

rk
s
 a

n
d
 c

re
d
it
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

6
4

 
1
2
0

 
5
3
.3

 
2
9
0
2

7
0
.5

3
 

4
,5

3
5
.4

8
 

F
o
o
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

id
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
it
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

H
a
n
d

y
m

e
n

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t/
c
h
ie

f 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 &

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
&

 r
e
la

te
 p

ro
fe

s
-

s
io

n
a

ls
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

3
 

3
3
.3

 
3
6
9
6

6
 

3
6
,9

6
6
.0

0
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
5

 
8
3

 
4
2
.2

 
1
6
9
5

3
0
.8

1
 

4
,8

4
3
.7

4
 

H
u
m

a
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

L
e
g
a

l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 m
a
il 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
2

 
3
4
6

 
2
3
.7

 
4
0
9
8

5
8

 
4
,9

9
8
.2

7
 

L
o
g

is
ti
c
a
l 
s
u
p
p

o
rt

 p
e
rs

o
n
n
e

l,
 P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

6
2

 
1
4
0

 
4
4
.3

 
7
4
9
5

1
2
.3

1
 

1
2
,0

8
8
.9

1
 

M
a
te

ri
a
l-

re
c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
le

rk
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
7

 
9
6

 
3
8
.5

 
1
7
1
1

9
4
.3

8
 

4
,6

2
6
.8

8
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

M
e
s
s
e
n
g

e
rs

 p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

rs
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

2
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
0

 
9
0

 
3
3
.3

 
5
9
7
2

5
6
.2

8
 

1
9
,9

0
8
.5

4
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

1
2

 
3
3

 
3
6
.4

 
2
0
8
8

2
7
.6

 
1
7
,4

0
2
.3

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t 
5

 
9

 
5
5
.6

 
1
0
0
3

8
5
.6

5
 

2
0
,0

7
7
.1

3
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

8
7

 
1
5
7

 
5
5
.4

 
1
3
3
9

7
8
6

.6
1

 
1
5
,3

9
9
.8

5
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
8

 
6
1

 
4
5
.9

 
5
6
0
1

9
3
.9

9
 

2
0
,0

0
6
.9

3
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
L
e

g
a
l 
re

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

1
6

 
1
2
.5

 
2
1
3
6

9
.8

 
1
0
,6

8
4
.9

0
 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

6
0
7

 
1
5
8
4

 
3
8
.3

 
7
5
1
9

4
4
7

.4
8

 
1
2
,3

8
7
.8

9
 



 

 

139 

C
ri

ti
c
a

l 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e

s
 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

C
o

s
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 C

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ry
 

(R
) 

N
a
tu

ra
l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

rs
 &

 r
e
la

te
d
 c

le
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n

is
e
rs

, 
  

  
  
  
  
 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

3
8

 
1
6
8

 
2
2
.6

 
1
7
6
6

9
6
.8

4
 

4
,6

4
9
.9

2
 

O
th

e
r 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5

 
3
6

 
4
1
.7

 
2
2
1
3

1
3
.9

5
 

1
4
,7

5
4
.2

6
 

O
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

e
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
n

e
l.
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
3

 
1
5

 
8
6
.7

 
1
3
2
4

3
3
.9

7
 

1
0
,1

8
7
.2

3
 

O
th

e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o

n
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

R
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
5

 
3
9

 
4
1
.4

 
1
5
1
7

9
4
.3

5
 

1
0
,1

1
9
.6

2
 

S
e
c
re

ta
ri

e
s
 &

 o
th

e
r 

k
e

y
b
o
a

rd
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n

g
 c

le
rk

s
, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

5
5

 
1
0
7

 
5
1
.4

 
4
9
9
8

3
0
.2

4
 

9
,0

8
7
.8

2
 

S
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
 

1
0

 
1
0

 
1
0
7
2

3
.2

 
1
0
,7

2
3
.2

0
 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

1
9
6

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

1
0
0
6

 
4
2
6
1

 
2
3
.6

 
5
7
1
8

9
0
8

.3
9

 
5
,6

8
4
.8

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

2
 

5
 

4
0

 
1
9
8
8

5
.5

6
 

9
,9

4
2
.7

8
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
ia

n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
.0

0
 

0
.0

0
 

T
ra

d
e
 L

a
b
o

u
re

rs
 

0
 

2
7

 
0

 
  

0
.0

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
3
4
0

 
7
8
3
3

 
2
9
.9

 
2
0
,9

3
6
,0

4
0
.3

2
 

8
,9

4
7
.0

3
 

T
A

B
L

E
 1

9
.4

 –
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
la

te
d

 r
e
w

a
rd

s
 (

c
a

s
h

 b
o

n
u

s
),

 b
y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
, 
fo

r 
S

e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

S
M

S
 B

a
n

d
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
e
n

-

e
fi

c
ia

ri
e
s

 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 

o
f 

T
o

ta
l 

E
m

p
lo

y
-

m
e
n

t 

C
o

s
t 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 

C
o

s
t 

p
e
r 

B
e
n

e
fi

c
ia

ry
 

(R
) 

%
 o

f 
S

M
S

 

W
a
g

e
 B

il
l 

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 

C
o

s
t 

S
M

S
 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

B
a
n

d
 A

 
0

 
1
6
1

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
0

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

B
a
n

d
 B

 
0

 
3
9

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
0

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

B
a
n

d
 C

 
0

 
9

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
0

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

B
a
n

d
 D

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
0

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

0
 

2
1
0

 
0

 
0
.0

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
0

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

F
o

re
ig

n
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 

T
h
e
 t

a
b

le
s
 b

e
lo

w
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t

h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fo
re

ig
n
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
ls

 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
A

S
S

A
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
s
a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 b
y
 m

a
jo

r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

. 
T

h
e
 t

a
b

le
s
 a

ls
o

  
s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fo
re

ig
n
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
 a

n
d
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 m
a
jo

r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n

. 

 



 

 

140 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

0
.1

 –
 F

o
re

ig
n

 W
o

rk
e

rs
, 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
, 
b

y
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
n

d
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

P
e
r-

c
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

T
o

ta
l 

E
m

p
lo

y
-

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

E
n

d
 o

f 
P

e
-

ri
o

d
 

P
e
r-

c
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 i
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 

P
e
r-

c
e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
-

n
in

g
 o

f 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

E
m

p
lo

y
-

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

E
n

d
 o

f 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 

in
 E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

0
 

0
 

1
 

2
5

 
1

 
5
0

 
0

 
1

 
1

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 9

-1
2
) 

2
 

5
0

 
2

 
5
0

 
0

 
0

 
2

 
2

 
0

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 

1
3

-1
6
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

2
 

5
0

 
1

 
2
5

 
1

 
5
0

 
2

 
1

 
1

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

4
 

1
0
0

 
4

 
1
0
0

 
2

 
1
0
0

 
4

 
4

 
2

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

0
.2

 –
 F

o
re

ig
n

 W
o

rk
e

r,
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
, 
b

y
 m

a
jo

r 
o

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 

M
a
jo

r 
O

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

P
e
rc

e
n

t-
a
g

e
 o

f 

T
o

ta
l 

E
m

p
lo

y
-

m
e
n

t 
a
t 

E
n

d
 o

f 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

P
e
rc

e
n

t-
a
g

e
 o

f 
 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 

in
 E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

P
e
rc

e
n

t-
a
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
-

ta
l 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

B
e
g

in
-

n
in

g
 o

f 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

T
o

ta
l 
E

m
-

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
t 

E
n

d
 o

f 

P
e
ri

o
d

 

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

a
n

g
e
 i
n

 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

m
e
n

t 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
In

fo
r-

m
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
-

la
te

d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

1
 

2
5

 
1

 
2
5

 
0

 
1

 
1

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
S

o
-

c
ia

l 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
, 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

1
 

2
5

 
1

 
2
5

 
0

 
1

 
1

 

M
id

d
le

 M
a

n
a
g

e
rs

: 
A

d
-

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 r
e
la

te
d

, 
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

4
 

1
0
0

 
1

 
2
5

 
1

 
2
5

 
4

 
1

 
1

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
s
 s

u
p
p

le
-

m
e
n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
P

e
r-

m
a
n
e
n
t 

0
 

0
 

1
 

2
5

 
1

 
2
5

 
0

 
1

 
1

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

4
 

1
0
0

 
4

 
1
0
0

 
4

 
1
0
0

 
4

 
4

 
4

 



 

 

141 

L
e
a

v
e

 u
ti

li
s

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

0
 

T
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i

d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

e
 
n
e

e
d
 
fo

r 
c
a
re

fu
l 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 
o
f 

s
ic

k
 
le

a
v
e
 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 
ta

b
le

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
  

  
  
  

 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
ic

k
 l
e
a

v
e

 (
T

a
b
le

 2
1
.1

) 
a

n
d
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 l
e
a

v
e

 (
T

a
b
le

 2
1
.2

).
 I

n
 b

o
th

 c
a
s
e
s
, 
th

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 l

e
a

v
e
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

1
.1

 –
 S

ic
k
 l

e
a
v

e
, 

1
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
a

y
s

 
%

 D
a

y
s

 w
it

h
 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
C

e
r-

ti
fi

c
a
ti

o
n

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

u
s
in

g
 S

ic
k
 

L
e
a
v

e
 

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
-

e
e
s
 u

s
in

g
 

S
ic

k
 L

e
a
v

e
 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 

D
a

y
s
 

p
e
r 

E
m

-

p
lo

y
e
e

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 C

o
s
t 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

-
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

-
p

lo
y
e
e
s

 
u

s
in

g
 S

ic
k
 

L
e
a
v

e
 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 w

it
h

 
m

e
d

ic
a
l 

c
e

rt
if

i-

c
a
ti

o
n

 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

5
3

 
9
6
.2

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
R

 1
1
,3

3
7
.1

3
 

0
 

5
1

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

3
6
8
5

2
 

9
0
.3

 
3
2
7
9

 
5
8
.2

 
1
1

 
R

 1
3
,3

5
3
,5

5
5

.1
7

 
3
2
7
9

 
3
3
2
7

6
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

1
6
0
1

0
 

8
8
.8

 
1
4
7
3

 
2
6
.2

 
1
1

 
R

 1
0
,6

8
0
,5

1
0

.2
3

 
1
4
7
3

 
1
4
2
1

2
 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 9

-1
2
) 

6
1
7
9

 
8
5
.8

 
6
6
9

 
1
1
.9

 
9

 
R

 1
1
,4

1
4
,8

1
4

.7
1

 
6
6
9

 
5
3
0
4

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 

1
3

-1
6
) 

1
2
6
1

 
8
5
.9

 
1
3
9

 
2
.5

 
9

 
R

 2
,4

2
6
,9

1
7
.7

0
 

1
3
9

 
1
0
8
3

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

) 
1
0
8
9

 
2
.1

 
9

 
0
.2

 
1
2
1

 
R

 2
3
2

,9
4

5
.8

6
 

9
 

2
3

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

) 
2
2
4

 
7
4
.1

 
5
3

 
0
.9

 
4

 
R

 8
1
,1

6
7
.8

2
 

5
3

 
1
6
6

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

) 
2

 
0

 
1

 
0

 
2

 
R

 1
,3

3
4
.2

3
 

1
 

0
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

4
8

 
9
5
.8

 
8

 
0
.1

 
6

 
R

 8
8
,6

7
3
.1

0
 

8
 

4
6

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
) 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

R
 0

.0
0

 
1

 
7

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

6
1
7
1

8
 

8
7
.8

 
5
6
3
1

 
1
0
0

 
1
1

 
R

 3
8
,2

9
1
,2

5
5

.9
5

 
5
6
3
1

 
5
4
1
6

1
 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

1
.2

 –
 D

is
a
b

il
it

y
 l

e
a
v

e
 (

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t)
, 
1
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
0

 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
a

y
s

 
%

 D
a

y
s

 
w

it
h

 M
e
d

i-
c
a
l 
C

e
rt

if
i-

c
a
ti

o
n

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

u
s
in

g
 D

is
a
-

b
il
it

y
 L

e
a
v

e
 

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

u
s
in

g
 D

is
a
-

b
il
it

y
 L

e
a
v

e
 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 

D
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

E
s
ti

m
a
t-

e
d

 C
o

s
t 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

-
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a

y
s
 

w
it

h
 m

e
d

i-
c
a
l 
c

e
rt

if
i-

c
a
ti

o
n

 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
-

e
e
s
 u

s
in

g
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

L
e
a
v

e
 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

1
7
1

 
1
0
0

 
7

 
4
3
.7

5
 

2
4

 
6
3
,9

7
7
.3

7
 

1
7
1

 
7

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

8
6

 
1
0
0

 
6

 
3
7
.5

 
1
4

 
5
0
,7

1
6
.6

1
 

8
6

 
6

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

(L
e
v
e

ls
 9

-1
2
) 

7
 

1
0
0

 
1

 
6
.2

5
 

7
 

7
,1

3
8
.1

5
 

7
 

1
 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 

1
3

-1
6
) 

1
1

 
1
0
0

 
2

 
1
2
.5

 
6

 
2
7
,9

1
5
.4

7
 

1
1

 
2

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
7
5

 
1
0
0

 
1
6

 
1
0
0

 
1
7

 
1
4
9
,7

4
7
.5

9
 

2
7
5

 
1
6

 



 

 

142 

T
a
b
le

 2
1

.3
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t

h
e

 u
ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
n
u

a
l 
le

a
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 w

a
g
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 w
it
h
 t

ra
d
e
 u

n
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

S
C

B
C

 i
n

 2
0

0
0
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
n
u
a

l 
le

a
v
e
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

a
c
c
ru

e
d
 l
e
a

v
e
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
id

 a
t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

1
.3

 –
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
L

e
a

v
e
, 
1
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
 

S
a
la

ry
 B

a
n

d
 

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y
s

 

T
a
k
e
n

 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

w
h

o
 t

o
o

k
 

le
a
v

e
 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

2
5
5

 
2
0

 
1
1

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

8
3
7
0

8
 

2
0

 
4
0
8
3

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

4
0
5
1

2
 

2
2

 
1
8
0
7

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

2
0
0
7

1
 

2
2

 
8
8
3

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-1

6
) 

4
1
3
3

 
2
0

 
1
7
9

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
-2

) 
8
8

 
2

 
1
6

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 3
-5

) 
2
9
0

 
1

 
5
5

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 6
-8

) 
1
6

 
1

 
1

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

1
8
8

 
1
6

 
1
1

 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
(L

e
v
e
ls

 1
3

-1
6
) 

1
5

 
1
5

 
1

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
4
9
2

7
6

 
2
0

 
7
0
4
7

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

1
.4

 –
 C

a
p

p
e
d

 l
e
a

v
e
, 
1
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1

0
 

 
T

o
ta

l 
d

a
y
s
 o

f 
c
a
p

p
e
d

 l
e

a
v

e
 

ta
k
e
n

 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

-
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
a

y
s
 

ta
k
e
n

 p
e

r 
e
m

-

p
lo

y
e
e

 

A
v

e
ra

g
e
 

c
a
p

p
e
d

 l
e

a
v

e
 

p
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

a
s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
-

c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
0

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 

w
h

o
 t

o
o

k
 

C
a
p

p
e
d

 l
e

a
v

e
 

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
p

p
e
d

 
le

a
v

e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

le
 

a
t 

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

-

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

s
 

a
t 

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

-

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

 

L
o

w
e
r 

s
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 1

-2
) 

0
 

0
 

5
 

0
 

2
9
1

 
5
9

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 (

L
e

v
e

ls
 3

-5
) 

9
7

 
4
7

 
5

 
1
2

 
2
4
5
8

8
 

4
5
3
5

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

L
e
v
e

ls
 6

-8
) 

1
5
1

 
1
3

 
4
1

 
3
2

 
7
8
2
4

7
 

1
9
0
8

 

H
ig

h
ly

 s
k
ill

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 (

L
e
v
e
ls

 9
-1

2
) 

2
0
7

 
5

 
3
4

 
1
7

 
3
2
3
9

6
 

9
6
6

 

S
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
(L

e
v
e

ls
 1

3
-1

6
) 

6
9

 
3

 
3
1

 
5

 
7
0
1
1

 
2
2
7

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

5
2
4

 
1
5

 
1
9

 
6
6

 
1
4
2
5

3
3

 
7
6
9
5

 



 

 

143 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

1
.5

 –
 L

e
a
v

e
 p

a
y
o

u
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
0

 t
o

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
le

a
v
e

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 
ta

k
e
n

  

R
e
a
s
o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

(R
'0

0
0
) 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
p

e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 (

R
) 

L
e
a

v
e
 p

a
y
o
u
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 d

u
e
 t
o

 n
o

n
-u

ti
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

a
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

y
c
le

 
1
3
2
,5

4
7
.1

8
 

1
1

 
1
2
,0

4
9
.7

4
 

C
a
p
p

e
d
 l
e
a

v
e
 p

a
y
o

u
ts

 o
n
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 

 R
  
 2

,0
9
7

,4
9

8
.8

3
 

3
4

 
R

6
1
,6

9
1
.1

4
 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 

le
a

v
e
 p

a
y
o

u
t 
o

n
 t
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

9
/1

0
 

 R
  
 2

,2
3
0

,0
4

6
.0

1
 

4
5

 
R

7
3
,7

4
0
.8

9
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

4
,4

6
0
,0

9
2
.0

2
 

9
0

 
1
1
,4

5
1
.1

5
 

H
IV

 a
n

d
 A

ID
S

 &
 h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

2
.1

 –
 S

te
p

s
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
o

c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
e

x
p

o
s
u

re
  

U
n

it
s
/c

a
te

g
o

ri
e
s

 o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 a

t 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ti

n
g

 H
IV

 

&
 r

e
la

te
d

 d
is

e
a
s

e
s
 (

if
 a

n
y

) 
K

e
y
 s

te
p

s
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e
 r

is
k

 

x
x
x

 
x
x
x

 

x
x
x

 
x
x
x

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

2
.2

 –
 D

e
ta

il
s
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt

h
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 H

IV
 a

n
d

 A
ID

S
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
s
 (

ti
c
k
 t

h
e
 a

p
p

li
c
a
b

le
 b

o
x
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

) 

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 
Y

e
s

 
N

o
 

D
e
ta

il
s
, 

if
 y

e
s

 

1
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 S

M
S

 t
o

  
  
  
  
  

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
e

d
 i
n
 P

a
rt

 V
I 
E

 o
f 

C
h

a
p
te

r 
1

 o
f 

th
e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
, 
2
0

0
1
?

 I
f 

s
o
, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 h

e
r/

h
is

 
n
a
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

X
 

  
M

s
 L

e
b

u
w

e
 M

o
ta

u
n

g
 -

 S
e
n

io
r 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r:

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 W

e
lln

e
s
s
 

U
n
it

 

2
. 
D

o
e
s
 t
h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 h
a

v
e
 a

 d
e
d

ic
a
te

d
 u

n
it
 o

r 
h
a

v
e
 y

o
u

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll 

b
e
in

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
?

 I
f 

s
o
, 
in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
  
  
  
  

  
  
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 t
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
th

a
t 

is
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
. 

X
 

  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 U

n
it
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 o

f 
6
 s

ta
ff

  
  
  
  
  
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
t 
H

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
 a

n
d
 9

 C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs
 a

t 
R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
le

v
e
l.
 

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
b
u
d

g
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 R

2
.9

 m
ill

io
n
. 

3
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 o

r 
H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

y
o

u
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
?
 I
f 

s
o
, 
in

d
i-

c
a
te

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

/s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

X
 

  
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 E

m
p
lo

y
e

e
 

W
e
lln

e
s
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

E
W

P
):

 P
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
u

p
p
o
rt

, 
  

  
  
  
  

  
M

a
n
a

g
e
ri

a
l 
C

o
n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 l
if
e
 S

k
ill

s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 H

IV
 a

n
d
 A

ID
S

 M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

A
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
, 
F

ir
s
t 
A

id
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

ri
ti
c
a

l 
In

c
id

e
n

t 
  
  
  
  

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t.

 



 

 

144 

Q
u

e
s
ti

o
n

 
Y

e
s

 
N

o
 

D
e
ta

il
s
, 

if
 y

e
s

 

4
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 (

a
) 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
(s

) 
a
s
 c

o
n
te

m
p
la

t-
e
d
 i
n
 P

a
rt

 V
I 
E

.5
 (

e
) 

o
f 

C
h

a
p
te

r 
1
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
g
u

la
-

ti
o
n
s
, 

2
0
0

1
?
 I
f 

s
o
, 
p

le
a
s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 s

ta
k
e
h
o

ld
e
r(

s
) 

th
a
t 

th
e

y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t.

 

X
 

  
E

W
P

 A
d
v
is

o
ry

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

: 
P

e
te

r 
M

o
h

la
la

, 
R

a
je

n
 V

e
n
-

k
ia

, 
S

h
a
u

n
 K

ra
u
t,
 C

lin
t 
T

it
u

s
, 
C

a
ri
n
 K

o
s
te

r,
 L

e
b
u

w
e

 M
o
ta

u
n
g
, 

L
y
n

n
 S

w
a
n

e
p
o

e
l,
 N

k
o
s
ie

 S
h
o
n
g

w
e
, 
N

d
iv

h
u
h
o

 N
d
o

u
, 

S
a
k
h
ile

 
G

a
b
u

z
a
, 
N

o
m

p
h
e
lo

 C
a
ta

, 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

k
e
i,
 R

a
n

d
a
ll 

S
n

y
d
e
rs

, 
L
in

d
o
 

M
a
k
h
o
n

z
a
, 
R

o
s
e

 L
e

p
h
o

n
d
o

, 
N

to
m

b
ik

a
y
is

e
 K

o
b
e

li,
 T

h
a
m

i 
M

o
d

is
a
n
e

, 
M

m
a
m

o
la

to
 K

g
a

n
y
a

g
o
 a

n
d
 S

th
e
m

b
a
 M

o
a
ts

h
e
. 

5
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ra
c
-

ti
c
e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
s
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
u
n
fa

ir
ly

 d
is

-
c
ri
m

in
a
te

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 H

IV
 s

ta
tu

s
?
 I
f 

s
o
, 
lis

t 
th

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
/p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 s

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

  
X

 
T

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 E

E
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
n

 
a
ll 

H
R

 p
o
lic

ie
s
. 

6
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
H

IV
-p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 o

r 
th

o
s
e
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 t
o

 b
e
 H

IV
-p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f

ro
m

 d
is

c
ri
m

i-
n
a
ti
o
n
?

 I
f 

s
o
, 
lis

t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

X
 

  
H

IV
 &

 A
ID

S
 w

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 P

o
lic

y
, 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

M
a
n
a

g
e
rs

/S
u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

 o
n
 H

IV
 &

 A
ID

S
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e

 
W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
, 
re

a
s
o
n
a
b

le
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
-

m
o
te

 o
p
e
n
n

e
s
s
, 
a
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
n

-d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

c
o
u
n
s
e
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
h
o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 c

a
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

lif
e

 s
k
ill

s
 o

n
 

b
e
h
a

v
io

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 l
iv

in
g
, 
p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 p

ro
-

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
a
n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 W

e
lln

e
s
s
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 

7
. 
D

o
e
s
 t
h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 i
ts

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 t
o

 u
n

d
e
rg

o
 V

o
l-

u
n
ta

ry
 C

o
u
n
s
e

lin
g
 a

n
d
 T

e
s
ti
n
g

?
 I
f 

s
o
, 
lis

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
d

. 

X
 

  
C

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 V

C
T

 a
n
d
 c

re
a

te
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 l
iv

in
g
 (

h
o

w
 

to
 l
iv

e
 l
o
n
g

, 
h
e

a
lt
h

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
v
e
 l
if
e
 w

it
h
 H

IV
 &

 A
ID

S
) 

fo
r 

s
ta

ff
. 
 F

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

M
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 H

IV
 &

 A
ID

S
 D

is
c
lo

s
u
re

. 
 I

n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

 w
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
n
-

a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 E

v
id

e
n
t 

c
o
m

m
it
-

m
e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
. 

8
. 
H

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

A
S

S
A

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
/i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

&
 

e
v
a

lu
a
te

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

y
o
u
r 

h
e
a

lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
?
 I
f 
s
o
, 

lis
t 
th

e
s
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
/i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
. 

X
 

  
M

o
n

it
o
ri

n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

a
s
is

. 
E

W
P

 A
d
v
is

o
ry

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
. 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
, 

d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 
to

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 W

e
lln

e
s
s
, 
 ,
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
-

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 o
n
 s

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

-o
v
e
r 

a
n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n
d
 P

ro
-



 

 

145 

L
a
b

o
u

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 e
n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 w
it
h
 t

ra
d
e
 u

n
io

n
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
A

S
S

A
. 

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.1

 –
 C

o
ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

M
a
tt

e
r 

D
a
te

 
R

e
s
o
lu

ti
o

n
 1

 o
f 

2
0
1

0
 C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 S

A
S

S
A

's
 B

a
rg

a
in

in
g

 F
o
ru

m
 (

S
N

B
F

) 
2
9

-O
c
t-

1
0

 

  
  

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 h
e
a
ri

n
g
s
 c

o
n

d
u
c
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 S
A

S
S

A
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

u
n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.2

 –
 M

is
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
n

d
 d

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 h
e
a

ri
n

g
s
 f

in
a
li
s

e
d

, 
1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 o

f 
d

is
c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 h
e
a
ri

n
g

s
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 

T
o

ta
l 

T
o

ta
l 

C
a
s
e
 D

is
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
a

ir
p

e
rs

o
n
/W

it
h
d
ra

w
n

 
3
5

 
1
9

 
3
5

 

C
o
u
n
s
e

lin
g

 
6

 
3

 
6

 

V
e
rb

a
l 
W

a
rn

in
g
s

 
5

 
3

 
5

 

W
ri
tt
e
n
 W

a
rn

in
g
s

 
6
6

 
3
5

 
6
6

 

F
in

a
l 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 W

a
rn

in
g
s

 
3
8

 
2
0

 
3
8

 

S
u
s
p
e

n
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

p
a

y
 

1
3

 
7

 
1
3

 

R
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n

 
8

 
4

 
8

 

D
e
m

o
ti
o
n

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

D
is

m
is

s
a
ls

 
1
6

 
9

 
1
6

 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
8

 
1
0
0

 
1
8
8

 



 

 

146 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.3

 –
 T

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
m

is
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s

e
d

 a
t 

d
is

c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 h
e
a
ri

n
g

s
 

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
m

is
c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
T

o
ta

l 

F
ra

u
d
: 

S
o
c
ia

l 
G

ra
n

ts
 

1
2

 
6

 
1
2

 

D
is

h
o
n

e
s
ty

 
9

 
5

 
9

 

M
is

re
p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 
1
6

 
9

 
1
6

 

F
a
ls

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
Q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

In
s
u
b
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

 
2
8

 
1
5

 
2
8

 

D
e
re

lic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

u
ty

 
6

 
3

 
6

 

A
s
s
a
u
lt
/a

tt
e
m

p
te

d
 a

s
s
a
u
lt

 
2

 
1

 
2

 

N
e
g
lig

e
n
c
e

 
3
1

 
1
6

 
3
1

 

M
is

u
s
e
 o

f 
s
ta

te
 v

e
h

ic
le

 
1
1

 
6

 
1
1

 

A
b
s
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

6
 

3
 

6
 

A
b
s
e
n
te

e
is

m
 

1
2

 
6

 
1
2

 

L
a
te

 C
o
m

in
g
/l
e
a

v
in

g
 e

a
rl

y
 

1
6

 
9

 
1
6

 

S
ic

k
 L

e
a
v
e
 A

b
u
s
e

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

P
o
o
r 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

B
ri
n

g
in

g
 t
h

e
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 i
n
to

 D
is

re
p
u
te

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

N
e
p
o
ti
s
m

 /
 F

a
v
o
u
ri

ti
s
m

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

N
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

o
c
ia

l 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 P

re
s
c
ri
p
ts

 
1
6

 
9

 
1
6

 

U
n
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 S

tr
ik

e
 

1
 

1
 

1
 

N
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 F

le
e
t 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t/
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
o
lic

y
 

1
2

 
6

 
1
2

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 M
e

d
ia

 w
it
h
o

u
t 
a

u
th

o
ri

z
a
ti
o
n

 
1

 
1

 
1

 

B
a
d
/ 

ill
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

1
 

1
 

1
 

U
n
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 c

o
n

d
u
c
t 

3
 

2
 

3
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

1
8
8

 
1
0
0

 
1
8
8

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.4

 –
 G

ri
e
v

a
n

c
e
s

 l
o

d
g

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

g
ri

e
v

a
n

c
e
s

 a
d

d
re

s
s

e
d

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
T

o
ta

l 

T
O

T
A

L
 

4
0

 
1
0
0

 
4
0

 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.5

 –
 D

is
p

u
te

s
 l
o

d
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
is

p
u

te
s
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
U

p
h
e

ld
 

8
 

3
0

 

D
is

m
is

s
e
d

 
1
7

 
6
3

 

S
e
tt

le
d

 
2

 
7

 

T
o

ta
l 

2
7

 
1
0
0

 



 

 

147 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.6

 –
 S

tr
ik

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

S
tr

ik
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

6
7
2

 

T
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t(

R
'0

0
0
) 

o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 

R
 5

1
8

,4
7

7
.2

5
 

A
m

o
u
n
t 
(R

'0
0
0
) 

re
c
o

v
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
n
o
 w

o
rk

 n
o
 p

a
y

 
R

 0
.0

0
 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

3
.7

 –
 P

re
c
a
u

ti
o

n
a
ry

 s
u

s
p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1

0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

P
re

c
a
u

ti
o

n
a
ry

 S
u

s
p

e
n

s
io

n
s

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
s
p
e
n

d
e
d

 
3
3

 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h

o
s
e
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 e

x
c
e
e

d
e

d
 3

0
 d

a
y
s

 
2
9

 

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a

y
s
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e

d
 

1
0
0

 

C
o
s
t 
(R

'0
0
0
) 

o
f 

s
u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
s

 
R

 3
,4

5
7
,4

2
8
.7

9
 

S
k

il
ls

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 h

ig
h

lig
h
ts

 t
h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 s

k
ill

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t.

 

2
4
.1

 –
 T

ra
in

in
g

 n
e
e
d

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
rn

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

S
k
il
ls

 P
ro

-
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 &

 
o

th
e
r 

s
h

o
rt

 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 

O
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
T

o
ta

l 

L
e
g

is
la

to
rs

, 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
0
0
9

 
0

 
2
6
9

 
0

 
2
6
9

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
3
7

 
0

 
4
3
2

 
0

 
4
3
2

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
1
2
1

 
0

 
4
9

 
0

 
4
9

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
0

 
0

 
6
2

 
0

 
6
2

 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
0
1

 
0

 
5
7

 
0

 
5
7

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
4

 
0

 
3
3

 
0

 
3
3

 

C
le

rk
s

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
6
0
3

 
0

 
1
0
9
7

 
0

 
1
0
9
7

 

M
a
le

 
3
2
2

 
0

 
7
5
4

 
0

 
7
5
4

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
le

s
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
2
6
9
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
1
5
8
2

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 f

is
h
e

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

C
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
ra

d
e
s
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

P
la

n
t 
a

n
d
 m

a
c
h
in

e
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

rs
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 



 

 

148 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
rn

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

S
k
il
ls

 P
ro

-
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 &

 
o

th
e
r 

s
h

o
rt

 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 

O
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
T

o
ta

l 

E
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 o

c
c
u
p
a

ti
o

n
s

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
5

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
2
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

s
u
b

 t
o
ta

ls
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
4
5
4
3

 
0

 
1
4
7
2

 
0

 
1
4
7
2

 

M
a
le

 
3
2
9
0

 
0

 
1
2
8
1

 
0

 
1
2
8
1

 

T
o

ta
l 

 
7
8
3
3

 
0

 
2
7
5
3

 
0

 
2
7
5
3

 

2
4
.2

 –
 T

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
C

a
te

g
o

ri
e

s
 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
L

e
a
rn

e
rs

h
ip

s
 

S
k
il
ls

 P
ro

-
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 &

 
o

th
e
r 

s
h

o
rt

 

c
o

u
rs

e
s

 

O
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
T

o
ta

l 

L
e
g

is
la

to
rs

, 
s
e
n
io

r 
o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
0
0
9

 
0

 
5
9

 
0

 
5
9

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
3
7

 
0

 
2
0
8

 
0

 
2
0
8

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
1
2
1

 
0

 
2
1
4

 
0

 
2
1
4

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
0

 
0

 
2
0
5

 
0

 
2
0
5

 

T
e
c
h
n
ic

ia
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
0
1

 
0

 
1
9
2

 
0

 
1
9
2

 

M
a
le

 
1
1
4

 
0

 
6
2

 
0

 
6
2

 

C
le

rk
s

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
6
0
3

 
0

 
3
2
6

 
0

 
3
2
6

 

M
a
le

 
3
2
2

 
0

 
1
9
3

 
0

 
1
9
3

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

a
le

s
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
2
6
9
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
1
5
8
2

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

S
k
ill

e
d
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 f

is
h
e

ry
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

C
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
ra

d
e
s
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

P
la

n
t 
a

n
d
 m

a
c
h
in

e
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
e
m

b
le

rs
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
1

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

E
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 o

c
c
u
p
a

ti
o

n
s

 
F

e
m

a
le

 
1
5

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

M
a
le

 
2
4

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
0

 

G
e
n
d
e
r 

s
u
b

 t
o
ta

ls
 

F
e
m

a
le

 
4
5
4
3

 
0

 
7
9
1

 
0

 
7
9
1

 

M
a
le

 
3
2
9
0

 
0

 
6
6
8

 
0

 
6
6
8

 

T
o

ta
l 

 
7
8
3
3

 
0

 
1
4
5
9

 
0

 
1
4
5
9

 



 

 

149 

In
ju

ry
 o

n
 d

u
ty

 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

a
s
ic

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 i
n
ju

ry
 o

n
 d

u
ty

. 

T
A

B
L

E
 2

5
.1

 –
 I
n

ju
ry

 o
n

 d
u

ty
, 

1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
0
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

 

N
a
tu

re
 o

f 
in

ju
ry

 o
n

 d
u

ty
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

R
e
q
u

ir
e
d
 b

a
s
ic

 m
e
d
ic

a
l 
a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
ly

 
2
0

 
1
0
0
%

 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 T

o
ta

l 
D

is
a

b
le

m
e
n
t 

0
 

0
%

 

  
  

  

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
D

is
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

0
 

0
%

 

F
a
ta

l 
0

 
0
%

 

T
o

ta
l 

2
0

 
1
0
0

%
 



 

 

150 



 

 

151 

Part 6 
Other Information 
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List of contact details 

Chief Executive Officer - Ms V. Petersen: Tel: 012 400 2113 

Acting Chief Financial Officer - Mr. T Mothusi: Tel: 012 400 2609 

Acting Executive Manager: Strategy and Business Development - R. Ramokgopa: Tel: 012 400 2027 

General Manager: Strategic Planning, Operational Planning and Reporting - Dr KP. Govender: Tel: 012 400 2143 
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